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Further, details of rati.ogs assigned by credit racing agencies and migration of ratings 
during the year arc provided in Notes No. 63 (F) tl) Accounts included in the Financial 
Statements section of this Annual Report. 

DIVIDEND 

The Directors have not recommended any dividend for the financial year 2024-25. 

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION 

AND PROTECTION FUND: 

The.re were no amounts which were reguircJ to be transfer.red to the Investor 
1 �ducation and Protection l'und by the Company in accordance with the provisions of 
section 125(2) of the Companies 1\ct, 2013. 

RESERVES 

During the year under review, no amount wa:- transferred by the Cornpany to the 
statutory Reserve Fund. The Company cotnplic.s \Vith Section 45--IC of the Reserve 
Bank of India :\ct, 1934. 
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The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal 
Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of \Xlomen at \X1orkpl.ace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and RcdressaD Act, 2013 along \\<1th the follm\�ng details: 

(a) number of complaints of sexual harassment received in the year; - 1 (one)
(b) number of complaints disposed off during the year - 1 (one) and
(c) number of cases pending for more than ninety days. - Nil

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 

All contracts/ arrangements/ transactions entered into by the Company during the year 
under review with related parties were on arms' length basis and in the ordinary course 
of business including the following : 

- To facilitate the Company to avail unsecured loan facility(ies) from the Banks in
India, Fullerton issued standby letter of credit in Singapore. In connec6on
thereto, the Company executed tbe Guarantee Fee Letter with Fullerton. It \Vas a
short-term arrangement to bridge the gap till the ecpJity capital infusion. The
facility has been repaid by the Company and the guarantee arrangement is
discharged.

Further, as required undct J\fastcr Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking 
• Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023, "Policy on Matc:.riality of 
Related Party Transactions and on Dealing with Related Party Transactions" is 
available on website of IJ1c Company https://lendingkartfinance.com/policics-codes 

and enclosed the same as Annexure - D. 

During the year under rcvic\.v there were no materially significant related party 
transactions. None of the transactions with related parties fall under the 
scope of Section 188(1) of the ,-\ct. Accordingly, the disclosure of related 
party transactions as required under Section 134(3) (h) of the Act in Form ;\ OC-2 
is not applicable to the Company for FY 2024-25. Hence d1e Form is not attached 
to this Report. 

The disclosures in compliance with the .Accounting Standard on "Related Party" 
required as per point 1 and point 2 of Part .t\ of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEB'I LODR 
Regulation") and disclosures of transactions of the Company with any person r entity 
belonging to its promoter/ promoter group which hold(s) 10% or more shareholding 
as per point  2A of Part A of Schedule V of SEBT LODR Regulations 
have been provided in Note No. 41 of Notes to Accounts included in the 
Financial Statements section of th.is Annual Report....
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Management Discussion Analysis 2024-25 

1. India Economic Outlook 2024-25

India stands out as a resilient performer amid global uncertainty. GDP growth is 

estimated at 6.4%-6.5% for FY 2025-26 by both IMF and RBI, reflecting strong 

domestic economic momentum driven by robust consumption and investment trends 

leading as the world's fastest-growing major economy. 
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Nlicro, Small, and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs) are a key part of India's economy, 

contributing approximately 30% to India's GDP and over 45% to its exports . .As on 

Dec 2024, 5.70 crore MSMEs, with an employment of 24.14 crore are registered on 

Udyam Registration Portal and Udyam .Assist Platform (UAP). 

FY25 proved to be particularly challenging for the Unsecured MSME Lending and 

Retail Lending segments, with a noticeable deterioration in asset quality driven by rising 

borrower leverage and external economic pressures. High delinquency rates were 

particularly evident in small-ticket loans of up to t 10 lakhs. In addition, the recent 

imposition of higher tariffs by the US may significantly impact micro, small and medium 

enterprises (lVIS fEs). The textiles, gems and jewellery and seafood industries, which 

account for ~25% of India's total exports to the US, are likely to be the most affected. 
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Strengthening Capital and Risk Management Practices: As part of our ongoing 

commitment to strengthening Lendingkart's foundation, we are focused on raising 

additional capital and further fortifying our risk management and collections 

practices. 

5.2 Driving Scalability through Technology 

Technology is a critical aspect of Lendingkart operations for financial inclusion of 

MSMEs. Lendingkart utilizes a hybrid approach of proprietary analytical tools & 

machine learning based systems for credit underwriting, delivery & collections along 

with touchpoints for overall assessment. With increasing demand for seamless digital 

lending solutions, Lendingkart is committed to further invest in AI and machine 

learning technologies to refine the risk models and enhance customer experiences. 

In pursuit of this objective, Lendingkart is undertaking an exercise to revamp the 

technology platform over the next 12-15 months to make it scalable, versatile and 

efficient. 

5.3 Centralised Operations & Customer Service 

In order to unify our operations under a single, focussed leadership, centralised 

Operations & Customer Service is formed for enhanced collaboration across 

functions through unified processes and priorities, improved resource utilization, 

consistent performance metrics and governance for operational excellence and faster 

decision-making and execution, better customer service driven by a common 

strategic direction. 

6. Risk Types and Mitigation Strategies

6.1 Credit Risk 

Credit risk arises from potential losses due to borrowers or counterparties failing to 

meet contractual obligations, primarily from lending activities. In FY25, Lendingkart 

strengthened its credit monitoring framework by enhancing the credit assessment 

process of cash flow generations, Risk Gradings of the borrowers, usage of SME 

credit Scores supplemented with field visits, more involved underwriting along with 

enhanced touch points with the borrower, KYC Checks & verifications, 

strengthening collection & recovery infrastructure. 













Sr. Name of Director Director Capacity DIN Number of Board Other Remuneration in INR (Paid No. of 
No. Since (i.e. Meetings Directorshi during the financial year shares 

Executive/ (During financial ps as on ended March 31, 2025) held in 
Non- year ended March 31, and 

Executive/ March 31, 2025) 2025 converti 
Chairman/ Held/ Attended Salar Sitting Fee Comm ble 
Promoter/ Entitl y and for the ission instrum 
nominee/ ed to other Board and ents 

Independent attend com Statutory held in 

) pens Board the 
ation Committee NBFC 

meetings 
1. Mr. Harshvardhan 13/05/2015 Executive 01189114 16 16 1. - - - *1

Raichand Lunia (Managing Lendingkart 
Director) T echnologie 

s Private 
Limited 
2. 

Lendingkart 
Account 
Aggregator 
Private 
Limited 
3. SRO-Fr
Developme
nt
Foundation

2. Mr. Raichand 13/05/2015 Non- 01188845 16 15 1. - - - *1

Sardarmal Lunia Executive Lendingkart 
T echnologie 



Sr. Name of Director Director Capacity DIN Number of Board Other Remuneration in INR (Paid No.of 

No. Since (i.e. Meetings Directorshi during the financial year shares 

Executive/ (During financial ps as on ended March 31, 2025) held in 

Non- year ended March 31, and 

Executive/ March 31, 2025) 2025 converti 

Chairman/ Held/ Attended Salar Sitting Fee Comm ble 

Promoter/ Entitl y and for the ission instrum 

nominee/ ed to other Board and ents 

Independent attend com Statutory ' held in 

) pens Board the 

ation Committee NBFC 
meetin!?s 

s Private 
Limited 
2. 
Lendingkart 
Account 
Aggregator 
Private 
Limited 

3. Mr. Anindo 05/09/2018 Non- 00019375 16 16 1. - - - -

Mukherjee Executive Lendingkart 
Technologie 
s Private 
Limited 

4. Mr. Thallapaka 13/11/2019 Chairman and 05273533 16 16 1.BGSE - 24,25,000 - -

V enkateswara Rao Independent Financials
Limited
2.Easy
Home



Sr. Name of Director Director Capacity DIN Number of Board Other Remuneration in INR (Paid No. of 

No. Since (i.e. Meetings Directorshi during the financial year shares 

Executive/ (During financial ps as on ended March 31, 2025) held in 

Non- year ended March 31, and 

Executive/ March 31, 2025) 2025 converti 

Chairman/ Held/ Attended Salar Sitting Fee Comm ble 
' 

Promoter/ Entitl y and for the ission instrum 

nominee/ ed to other Board and ents 
.. Independent attend com Statutory held in 

) pens Board the 
1, 

ation Committee- NBFC 

meetings 

Finance 
Limited 
3.STCI
Primary
Dealer
Limited
4.Mitcon
Credentia
Trusteeship
Services
Limited
5. West End
Investment
And Finance
Consultancy
Private
Limited



Sr. Name of Director Director Capacity DIN Number of Board Other Remuneration in INR (Paid No. of 

No. Since (i.e. Meetings Directorshi during the financial year shares 

Executive/ (During financial ps as on ended March 31, 2025) held in 

Non- year ended March 31, and 

Executive/ March 31, 2025) 2025 converti 

Chairman/ Held/ Attended Salar Sitting Fee Comm ble 

Promoter/ Entitl y and for the ission instrum 

nominee/ ed to other Board and· ents 

Independent attend com Statutory held in 

) pens Board the 
ation Committee NBFC 

meetiru!s 
6.Cupid
Limited
7. Alkali
Metals
Limited
8.Indian
Immunologi
cals Limited
9. 

Lendingkart 
Technologie 
s Private 
Limited 

5. Mr. Pavan Pal 28/12/2022 Non- 07117387 16 15 1.Asset - - - -

Kaushal Executive Reconstructi
on Company
(India)
Limited



Sr. Name of Director Director Capacity DIN Number of Board Other Remuneration in INR (Paid No.of 
No. Since (i.e. Meetings Directorshi during the financial year shares 

Executive/ ' (During financial ps as on ended March 31, 2025) held in 
Non- year ended March 31, and 

Executive/ March 31, 2025) 2025 converti 
Chairman/ Held/ Attended Salar Sitting Fee Comm hie 
Promoter/ Entitl y and for the ission instrum 
nominee/ ed to other Board and ents 

Independent attend com Statutory held in 

) pens Board the 
ation Committee NBFC 

meetings 
2. Innoven
Capital India
Private
Limited
3. PNB
Housing
Finance
Limited
4.

Lending kart 
Technologie 
s Private 
Limited 

6. Mr. Hong Ping Yeo 21/04/2019 Non- 08401270 16 16 1. - - - -

Executive Lendingkart 
T echnologie 
s Private 
Limited 



Sr. 
No. 

7. 

8. 

Name of Director Director Capacity DIN Number of Board Other Remuneration in INR (Paid No.of 
Since (i.e. Meetings Directorshi during the financial year shares 

Executive/ (During financial ps as on ended March 31, 2025) held in 
Non- year ended March 31, and 

Executive/ March 31, 2025) 2025 converti 
Chairman/ Held/ Attended Salar Sitting Fee Comm hie 
Promoter/ Entitl y and for the ission instrum 
nominee/ ed to other Board and 

Independent attend com Statutory 
) pens Board 

ation Committee 
meetings 

Mr. Sreeram 29/03/2024 Independent 00472961 16 12 0 - 16,75,000 -

Ranganathan Iyer 
Ms. Rashmi 19/11/2024 Independent 08746775 5 5 1. Anheuser - 5,25,000 -

Sharma Busch Inbev
India
Limited

Notes: 

1. * As on 31 March 2025, Mr. Harshvardhan Raichand Lunia and Mr. Raichand Sardarmal Lunia were severally holding 1 (One)
equity share of the Company as the nominee of Lendingkart Technologies Private Limited. The Board of Lendingkart Finance
Limited at its meeting held on 24 July 2025 approved the transfer of 1 equity share held by Mr. Harshvardhan Raichand Lunia to
Mr. Prashant Prakash Joshi (presently Managing Director & CEO), as nominee of Lendingkart Technologies Private Limited. The
transfer of shareholding of 1 equity share held by Mr. Raichand Sardarmal Lunia was also approved by the Board of Lendingkart
Finance Limited on the same date i.e. 24 July 2025.

2. Mr. Harshvardhan Lunia, also held the position of Managing Director of Lendingkart Technologies Private Limited, holding
company of the Company. During the financial year 2024-25, the gross remuneration oft 3,50,00,000/- was paid by Lendingkart
Technologies Private Limited. No additional remuneration was paid to Mr. Lunia by the Company.

ents 
held in 

the 
NBFC 

-

-



3. Ms. Uma Subramaniam (DIN: 07434953) Independent Director passed away on April 26, 2024. She had been on the Board of the
Company since March, 2021 and had immensely contributed with her valuable guidance during her tenure as the Director of the
Company.

4. The Board of Directors appointed Ms. Pallavi Kanchan (DIN: 07545615) as an additional non-executive Independent Director of
the Company for a period of 3 (three) years with effect from July 19, 2024. She recused herself from the independent directorship
with effect from August 21, 2024 due to conflict of interest.

5. Mr. Pankaj Makkar (DIN: 03442209), non-executive Director of the Company, tendered his resignation with effect from
July 24, 2024.

6. Mr. Vikram Godse (DIN: 00230548), non-executive Director of the Company, tendered his resignation with effect from
July 31, 2024.

7. Mr. Sreeram Ranganathan Iyer (DIN: 00472961) was appointed as a non-executive Independent Director of the Company for a
period of 3 (three) years effective from March 29, 2024, at the 27th Annual General Meeting held on September 27, 2024.

8. The Board of Directors of the Company appointed Mr. Thallapaka Venkateswara Rao (DIN: 05273533), Independent Director, as
the Chairman of the Board with effect from December 4, 2024.

9. Ms. Rashmi Sharma (DIN: 08746775) was appointed as a non-executive Independent Director of the Company to hold office for
a term of 3 (three) years with effect from November 19, 2024 at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on February 17, 2025.

10. Mr. Harshvardhan Lunia (DIN: 01189114), Managing Director of the Company, vacated office of the Managing Director with
effect from June 30, 2025 due to the expiry of his tenure as the Managing Director.

11. Mr. Raichand Lunia (DIN: 01188845), non-executive Director of the Company, tendered his resignation with effect from July 31,
2025.























balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of 
such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an 
independent director. The person recommended to the Board for appointment 
as an independent director shall have the capabilities identified in such a 
description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the NRC may: 

i. use the services of an external agencies, if required;
11. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due

regard to diversity; and
lll. consider the time commitments of the candidates.

m. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors
and the Board.

n. Devising a policy on diversity of Board.
o. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent

director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent
directors.

(ii) Remuneration/ Compensation Functions:

a. Oversee the framing, review and implementation of Nomination and
Remuneration Policy ("Remuneration Policy") of the Company approved by the
Board.

b. Determine and recommend to the Board, the remuneration payable to the
directors and senior management of the Company.

c. Work in close coordination with the Risk Oversight Committee (RMC) of the
Company to achieve an effective alignment between compensation and risks.

d. Ensure that compensation levels are supported by the need to retain earnings of
the Company and the need to maintain adequate capital based on the Internal
Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)

e. Review and recommend compensation for the Key Managerial Personnel, and
each of the Senior Management Personnel and Leadership Team members,
which will be further approved/ ratified by the Board of the Company.

f. Conduct annual reviews or with such periodicity as may be determined by the
NRC, of the policies framed by the NRC.

g. Review deployment of key Human Capital strategies and tools specifically in the
area of talent acquisition, employee engagement and development and
succession planning.

(iii) Others:

Carry out such other functions as may be delegated by the Board from time to 
time, or as maybe necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties or 
mandatory by any statutory notification, amendment or modification. 



5.2.3. Meetings and Attendance during the year: 

The meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held Eight (8) 
rimes during the year on the following dates: 

1. May 08, 2024
11. August 08, 2024
ill. October 21, 2024
lV. November 12, 2024
v. December 12, 2024
Vl. December 27, 2024
Vil. February 13, 2025
Vll1. March 28, 2025

The details of the attendance of the aforesaid meetings are as under: 

SL Name of Member of Capacity Number of Meetings of 
No. Director Committee (i.e., the Committee 

since Executive/ 
Non-

Executive/ 
Held/Entitled Attended 

Chairman/ 
to attend 

Promoter 
nominee/ 

Independent) 
1. Mr. Sreeram 23/10/2024 Chairman - 5 5 

Iyer [Note 1] Independent 
2. Mr. Hong Ping 13/11/2019 Member - 8 8 

Yeo Non- Executive 
3. Mr. Thallapaka 13/11/2019 Member - 8 8 

Venkateswara Independent 
Rao 

4. Mr. Pankaj 13/11/2019 Member - 1 0 
Makkar [Note Non- Executive 
21 

Notes: 

1. Mr. Sreeram Iyer was appointed as the Member (Chairman) of the Committee,
effective from October 23, 2024.

2. Mr. Pankaj Makkar ceased to be Member of the Committee due to his resignation
as a non-executive Director of the Company with effect from July 24, 2024.











































SI. 
No. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

7. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Preceding Amount Balance Amount spent Amount transferred to any fund 
Financial Year(s). transferred to Amount in in the specified under Schedule VII as per 

Unspent CSR Unspent CSR reporting subsection (5) of section 135, if any. 
Account under Account under Financial Year Amount Date of transfer. 

subsection (6) of subsection (6) (in Rs.). (in Rs). 
section 135 (in of section 135 

Rs.) (in Rs.) 

2021-22 � 33,60,000 Nil � 27,18,300 Nil Not Applicable 

2022-23 � 41,44,700 Nil � 40,00,000 Nil Not Applicable 

2023-24 Nil Nil � 44,58,342 Nil Not Applicable 

Amount Deficiency, 
remaining to if any 
be spent in 
succeeding 

financial 
years. (in Rs.) 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 
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1. Background  

Lendingkart Finance Limited (“Company”) recognizes that related party transactions may have 
potential or actual conflicts of interest and may raise questions whether such transactions are 
consistent with the Company’s & its shareholders’ best interest and in compliance to the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR”), Master Direction – Non 
Banking Financial Company – Systemically Important Non- Deposit Taking Company and Deposit 
Taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (“Directions”), Indian Accounting Standards, 
(IND AS), IRDA (Registration of Corporate Agents) Regulations, 2015 (“IRDAI Regulations”) 
and Framework for Scale Based Regulation for Non-Banking Financial Companies and guidelines 
issued thereunder from time to time to the extent applicable to loans and advances to related parties 
(collectively referred to as the “RBI Guidelines”). 
 
Amendments, from time to time, to the Policy, if any, shall be considered by the Board of Directors 
of the Company based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee.  
 
This Policy applies to transactions between the Company and one or more of its Related Parties. 
It provides a framework for governance and reporting of Related Party Transactions including 
material transactions.  
 
2. Definitions  

Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the meaning as assigned 
below, and cognate expressions shall be construed accordingly:  

Annual 
Consolidated  

Turnover  

means Turnover as per the last audited Consolidated Financial Statements  

Annual 
Standalone  

Turnover  

means Turnover as per the last audited Standalone Financial Statements.  

Associated 
Entities  

Means the following:  

(i) directors (including the Chairman/ Managing Director) or relatives of 
directors;  

(ii) any firm in which any of the directors of the Company or their relatives, 
is interested as a partner, manager, employee or guarantor;  

(iii) any company in which any of the directors of the Company, or their 
relatives is interested as a Major Shareholder, director, manager, 
employee or guarantor.  

Key  Managerial  

Personnel 
(KMPs)  

The KMPs shall mean and include,  

i. Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager; 
ii. Company Secretary; 
iii. the Whole-time Director; 
iv. the Chief Financial Officer; 
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v. such other officer as may be prescribed under the Companies Act 
2013; 

Listing 
Regulations  

Means the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended, from time to time.  

Major 
Shareholder 

means a person holding 10% or more of the paid-up share capital or rupees 
five crore in paid-up shares, whichever is lower. 

Material 
Modification 

in relation to a Related Party Transaction approved by the Audit Committee 
or a material related party transaction approved by the Shareholders, as the 
case may be, material modifications shall mean any variation having an 
impact on the monetary limits already approved by the Audit Committee or 
Shareholders, as the case may be, exceeding 5% of transaction value, in each 
case from the approved limits. 

Material  Related  

Party 
Transaction  

Material Related Party Transaction shall have the same meaning as stated in 
Annexure 1 of this policy.  

Net Worth  The aggregate value of the paid-up share capital and all reserves created out 
of the profits and securities premium account and debit or credit balance of 
profit and loss account, after deducting the aggregate value of the 
accumulated losses, deferred expenditure and miscellaneous expenditure not 
written off, as per the audited balance sheet, but does not include reserves 
created out of revaluation of assets, write-back of depreciation and 
amalgamation. 

Potential 
Conflict of 
Interest  
 

Means conflict of interest either by being a party to an RPT or in case of an 
RPT with another body corporate, holding more than 2% of the paid-up 
share capital of the other body corporate. 
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Related 
Party  

 Related Party with reference to a company, shall include:  

(i) director or his relative;  

(ii) key managerial personnel or his relative;  

(iii) firm, in which a director, manager or his relative is a partner;  

(iv) private company in which a director or manager or his relative is a 
member or director;  

(v) public company in which a director or manager is a director and holds 
along with his relatives, more than two per cent. of its paid-up share 
capital;  

(vi) body corporate whose Board of Directors, managing director or 
manager is accustomed to act in accordance with the advice, 
directions or instructions of a director or manager excluding person 
giving directions or instructions in a professional capacity;  

(vii) any person on whose advice, directions or instructions a director or 
manager is accustomed to act other than advice, directions or 
instructions given in a professional capacity excluding person giving 
directions or instructions in a professional capacity;  

(viii) any body corporate which is:  

(A) a holding, subsidiary or an associate company of such company; 
or   

(B) a subsidiary of a holding company to which it is also a subsidiary;   

(C) an investing company or the venturer of the company;  

(ix) a director (other than an independent director) or key managerial 
personnel of the holding company or his relative with reference to 
the company.  

Related Party is further defined as per Reg. 2 (zb) of the Listing Regulations 
and applicable accounting standards. Please refer to Annexure 1 for Related 
Party Definition as per Listing Regulations and Accounting Standard.  
 
 

Related  Party  

Transaction’ or 
‘RPT’  

Shall mean a contract or arrangement with a Related Party as provided under 
the Act and the Rules made thereunder, as amended from time to time. 
 

Relative  
For an individual, ‘Relative’ shall mean and include:   

• Members of Hindu undivided family;  
• Husband or wife;  
• Father (including step-father) and Mother (including step-mother);   

• Daughter and Daughter’s husband;  
• Son (including step-son) and Son’s wife;  
• Brother (including step-brother) and Sister (including step-sister);   
• Domestic partner of any of the said persons, children and dependants of 

such domestic partner or spouse (IND AS-24).  
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Senior Officers  

(SOs)/ Senior  
Management/  

Leadership Team  

Means personnel of the Company who are members of its core management 
team excluding Board of Directors comprising all members of management, 
one level below the Chief Executive Officer & Managing Director, including 
the functional heads.  

Holding 
Company  

shall mean Lendingkart Technologies Private Limited.  

Turnover  
The gross amount of revenue recognized in the profit and loss account from 
the sale, supply, or distribution of goods or on account of services rendered, 
or both, by the Company as per its last audited financial accounts.  

Note: All words and expressions used herein, unless defined herein, shall have the same 
meaning as respectively assigned to them under the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed 
thereunder or any other applicable law.   

3. Policy Exclusion  

Following transactions shall not be considered as a related party transaction, in terms of this 
Policy [however disclosure in the financial statement as per SEBI LODR shall be made by the 
Company]:  

(a) Reimbursement of expenses incurred by/ for a Related Party for business purpose of the 
Company, or reimbursement received for expenses incurred by the Company on behalf of 
a Related Party, provided there is no specific benefit passed on to either party.  

(b) Any transaction in which the Related Party’s interest arises solely by way of ownership of 
securities issued by the Company and all holders of such securities receive the same 
benefits pro rata as the Related Party, or other pro rata interest of a Related Party included 
in a transaction involving generic interest of stakeholders involving one or more Related 
Parties as well as other parties.  

(c) Any transaction that involves providing of compensation to a director or Key Managerial 
Personnel, in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, in connection with 
his or her duties to the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associates including the 
reimbursement of reasonable business and travel expenses incurred in the ordinary course 
of business.  

(d) Recurring transactions flowing out of a principal transaction or arrangement for which the 
Audit Committee has granted its omnibus approval;  
 

(e) Requirement under Para 6 will not apply to loans and advances granted to directors, 
Associated Entities and Senior Officers against the following:  

(i) Government securities  

(ii) Life insurance policies  

(iii) Fixed deposits  

(iv) Stocks and shares  

(v) Housing loans, car advances, etc. granted to an employee/director of the Company, 
under any scheme applicable generally to employees/directors of the Company, 
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provided that the Company’s interest/ lien is appropriately marked with legal 
enforceability.  
 

(f) Any other exception which is consistent with the Applicable Laws, including any rules or 
regulations made thereunder, and does not require prior approval by the Audit Committee.  

4. Identification of Related Parties and maintenance of list of Related Parties  

(a) Secretarial department shall coordinate with the concerned stakeholders viz. Shareholders, 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Officers, to collate the relevant information 
and maintain the database of Company’s Related Parties in the format as per Annexure 2.  

(b) Each Director and KMPs of the Company shall, within seven days of his/her appointment 
and as at 31 March every, year disclose list of relatives and his/her interest in all the 
Companies or Firms or Body Corporate or any Association of Individuals on, in form 
MBP-1, which shall be placed before the Audit Committee and the Board at their first 
meeting held in the succeeding financial year.   

(c) Each SOs shall disclose list of their Relatives and/or Associated Entities, within seven days 
of his/her appointment and as at 31 March every year.   

(d) Any change in the aforesaid disclosure by the Directors, KMPs and SOs shall be disclosed 
by them within 7days of such change.  

(e) The database of Related Parties shall be updated based on inputs/ disclosures received 
from the Related Parties and other concerned stakeholders by the Secretarial Department 
and circulated to all the departments of the Company, in case of any change, or on a 
quarterly basis, whichever is earlier.  

(f) The said database of Related Parties shall be reviewed by the Secretarial team, on a quarterly 
basis.  

(g) The Company shall share the list of its Related Parties with its Subsidiary(ies) and obtain a 
similar list from its subsidiary, in case of any change or on a quarterly basis, whichever is 
earlier.   

5. Manner of dealing with Related Party Transactions  

RPTs undertaken by the Company is subject to obtaining prior approval of Audit Committee, 
Board and/ or the Shareholders, depending on its nature and if it exceeds the prescribed 
threshold limit. Situations under which said approval of Audit Committee and/or Board and/ 
or Shareholders, will be required, are as under:  

 I. Transactions requiring prior approval of Audit Committee  

a) AllRPTs including Material RPTs and subsequent Material Modifications thereof shall be 
subject to the prior approval of the Audit Committee. In the event any RPT is not 
approved and/or recommended by the Audit Committee, the RPT may be placed before 
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the Board of Directors for approval in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act. 

b) Only those members of the Audit Committee of the Company, who are independent 
directors, shall be eligible to consider and approve RPTs. However, non-independent 
directors are entitled to, and may voice their opinion at the Audit Committee meeting 
seeking approval of the proposed RPTs and this process including the opinions 
(including any dissent or objection) shall be recorded in writing in the minutes of the 
meeting. Arm’s length pricing report after external validation will be submitted before 
the Audit Committee for approval of any RPTs.  

c) in case any transaction involving any amount not exceeding one crore rupees is entered 
into by a director or officer of the company without obtaining the approval of the Audit 
Committee and it is not ratified by the Audit Committee within three months from the 
date of the transaction, such transaction shall be voidable at the option of the Audit 
Committee and if the transaction is with the related party to any director or is authorized 
by any other director, the director concerned shall indemnify the company against any 
loss incurred by it.  

 II. Transactions requiring prior approval of the Board of Directors  

a) Transaction covered under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Annexure – 3) 
which are not in the ordinary course of business of the Company or not on an arm’s 
length basis.  

b) Material Related Party Transactions and Material Modifications, requiring the approval 
of the shareholders, shall be approved by the Board. 

c) Related Party Transactions where Audit Committee of the Company is of the opinion 
that the same should be brought before the Board of Directors or if the Board of 
Directors suo-moto decides to review any such transaction. 

d) Any transaction not approved or recommended by the Audit Committee.  

 III. Transactions requiring prior approval of Shareholders  

a) Material Related Party Transactions as defined herein  shall require a prior approval by 
way of an ordinary resolution unless otherwise provided under the applicable law.  

b) The RPTs between insurance intermediaries that are not on arm’s length or in the 
ordinary course of business shall be further approved by the shareholders of the insurance 
intermediaries in the general meeting.  

 IV.  Omnibus Approval  

a) Audit Committee shall lay down the criteria for granting the omnibus approval and grant 
the approval in line with this Policy and such approval shall be applicable in respect of 
RPTs, which are repetitive in nature, detailed as under. Such criteria shall be 
recommended for the approval of the Board.   

1. maximum value of the transactions, in aggregate, which can be allowed under the 
omnibus route in a year;   

2. the maximum value per transaction which can be allowed;   

3. extent and manner of disclosures to be made to the Audit Committee at the time of 
seeking omnibus approval;   



  
 

    

 9  

  

4. review, at such intervals as the Audit Committee may deem fit, related party 
transaction entered into by the company pursuant to each of the omnibus approval 
made;   

5. transactions which cannot be subject to the omnibus approval by the Audit 
Committee. Audit Committee shall consider the following factors while specifying 
the criteria for making omnibus approval, namely: –   

1. repetitiveness of the transactions (in past or in future);  

2. justification for the need of omnibus approval.  

  

b) Audit Committee shall satisfy itself regarding the need for such omnibus approval and 
that such approval would be in the interest of the Company.  

c) Audit Committee shall review details of RPTs entered into by the Company pursuant to 
omnibus approval so granted, at its meeting, on a quarterly basis.  

d) Such omnibus approval will be valid for a period of one financial year and shall require 
fresh approval after the expiry of the year. Audit Committee may review the maximum 
value of the transactions during the year, if it is found that the value as approved earlier 
by Audit Committee is not sufficient.  

e) Only those members of the Audit Committee who are independent directors, shall be 
entitled to approve RPTs. The omnibus approval shall specify the following:  

o  name of the Related Parties;   
o  nature and duration of the transaction;   
o  maximum amount of transaction that can be entered into;   
o  the indicative base price or current contracted price and the formula for variation 

in the price, if any; and   
o  any other information relevant or important for the Audit Committee to take a 

decision on the proposed transaction and the minimum information as stated 
under para 7 herein.  

f) The Audit Committee may grant omnibus approval for unforeseen RPTs subject to their 
value not exceeding INR 50 lakhs , per transaction.  

 V. Restrictions in voting  

a) Any member of the Audit Committee/Board of the Company who has a potential 
conflict of interest in respect of any RPT/Material RPT and to any subsequent Material 
Modification thereto, shall restrain themselves from participating or voting at the meeting 
of the Audit Committee/Board, as the case may be.   

 VI. Review of Related Party Transaction  

a) Audit Committee and the Board shall review the list of RPTs, on a quarterly basis 
pursuant to omnibus approval/other approvals granted by it, as per requirements above, 
including RPTs with insurance intermediaries.   

b) Audit Committee and the Board shall review the status of long-term (more than one 
year) and/or recurring RPTs, on an annual basis.  

c) The statutory auditors of insurance intermediaries shall independently review the RPTs 
between insurance intermediaries on an annual basis and issue a certificate confirming 
compliance with the provisions of Sec 188 of the Companies Act. The certificate shall 
be submitted to IRDA by September 30 of the subsequent financial year.  
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6. Additional compliances in case of transactions with Associated Entities and Senior 
Officers   

 6.1 Loans, advances or awarding of Contracts to Associated Entities  

o Approval of the Audit Committees shall be required for granting of any loans, 
advances or awarding of Contracts aggregating to INR 5 crore and above to 
Associated Entities.  

o Above shall not apply for any loans, advances or awarding of contracts by the 
Company to its holding or subsidiary Companies unless Directors of the Company 
or their relatives is/are a Major Shareholder or has control over the said holding or 
subsidiary Company.   

o Directors, interested in any proposals for any loans, advances or awarding of 
contracts placed before the Audit Committee meeting for approval, shall disclose the 
nature of interest and shall recuse from the meeting and shall not vote on such 
proposals. However, such interested Director shall be allowed to attend the meeting 
with the permission of Chairman.    

o Any loans, advances or awarding of Contracts to the above borrowers less than INR 
5 crore shall be in pursuance of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
applicable Rules and Regulations thereof and shall be approved as per the loan 
approval matrix of the Company. Any such loans, advances or awarding of Contracts 
shall be reported to the Audit Committee and the Board in the immediate next 
meeting.  

o Company shall obtain details of all live loans, advances or Contracts (with the 
company) taken by an individual or their Relatives prior to becoming Director in the 
Company and the same shall be reported to the Board at the time of appointment.  

Any loans to firms and entities where individual or their Relatives are interested prior 
to becoming Director in the Company, shall be assessed at the time of appointment 
and approvals of the Audit Committee meeting as per this policy shall be obtained 
after the appointment as the Directors in the Company.  

 6.2 Loans, advances or awarding of Contracts to Senior Officer or their Relatives  

o Any loans, advances or awarding of Contracts by the Company to its Senior Officers 
or their relatives shall be reported to the Audit Committee and to the Board.   

o Further, any Senior Officer or any committee where senior officer is a member shall 
not approve any loans to his/her relatives. Such loan shall be approved by the next 
higher sanctioning authority under the loan approval matrix of the Company.  

6.3 General requirement  

o Company shall obtain declaration form the borrower giving details of the relationship 
of the borrower to its Directors/ Senior officers for availing loans and advances 
aggregating INR 5 Crore and above from the Company. Loans to borrower shall be 
recalled if any false declaration is given by the borrower.  
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o Company shall disclose in the Annual Report, any loans, advances or Contracts made 
to Associated entities/ Senior Officer or relatives of Senior Officer in addition to 
disclosure w.r.t. related party transactions as mandated under RBI circular dated April 
19, 2022 covering disclosure in financial statements notes to accounts of NBFCs. 
Disclosure shall be made in the format mentioned in Annexure 4 of this Policy.   

7. Information to be submitted for obtaining prior approval of Audit 
Committee/Board/Shareholders  

Below is the list of minimum information/documents to be placed before the Audit 
Committee, Board or the shareholders of the Company, as the case may be, for approval of 
the RPTs/ material RPTs and to any subsequent material modification thereto.  

(a) Name of the Related Party and its relationship with the Company or its subsidiary, 
including nature of its concern or interest (financial or otherwise);  

(b) Type, material terms and particulars of the proposed transaction;  

(c) Tenure of the proposed transaction (particular tenure shall be specified);  

(d) Value of the proposed transaction;  

(e) The percentage of the Company’s annual turnover, for the immediately preceding 
financial year, that is represented by the value of the proposed transaction (and for a 
RPT involving a subsidiary, such percentage calculated on the basis of the subsidiary’s 
annual turnover on a standalone basis shall be additionally provided);  

(f) any advance paid or received, if any; 

(g) the manner of determining the pricing and other commercial terms, both included as 
part of contract and not considered as part of the contract; 

(h) whether all factors relevant to the contract have been considered, if not, the details of 
factors not considered with the rationale for not considering those factors; and 

(i) If the transaction relates to any loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or 
investments made or given by the Company or its subsidiary:  

i. details of the source of funds in connection with the proposed transaction;  

ii. where any financial indebtedness is incurred to make or give loans, inter-
corporate deposits, advances or investments,  

• nature of indebtedness;  

• cost of funds; and  

• tenure;  
iii. applicable terms, including covenants, tenure, interest rate and repayment 

schedule, whether secured or unsecured; if secured, the nature of security; and  
iv. the purpose for which the funds will be utilized by the ultimate beneficiary of 

such funds pursuant to the RPT.  

(j) Summary of the information and justification as to why the RPTs/ material RPTs 
and to any subsequent material modification thereto is in the interest of the Company, 
as placed before the Audit Committee and/ Board;  
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(k) A copy of the valuation or other external party arm’s length pricing report, if any such 
report has been relied upon and submitted by the Company, as aforesaid;  

(l) Percentage of the counter-party’s annual consolidated turnover that is represented by 
the value of the proposed RPTs/ material RPTs and to any subsequent material 
modification thereto, on a voluntary basis;  

(m) Any other information that may be relevant. 

 

8. Roles and Responsibility 

Stakeholders Roles and Responsibilities 

Secretarial Team • To obtain relevant details from directors and key 
managerial personnel of the Company as per Clause 
4 of this Policy; 

• To obtain relevant details of other Related Parties; 

• To identify and prepare list of Related Parties; 

• To prepared and maintain data base of Related Party 
Transactions; 

• To send the list of Related Parties, including changes 
thereto, to all the concerned departments of the 
Company; 

• To ensure disclosures as per this Policy; 

• To upload the Policy on Related Party Transactions, 
as may be amended, from time to time on the website 
of the Company; 

• To place before the Audit Committee/ Board, details 
of existing loans and advances and contracts of 
directors proposed to be appointed. 

Finance Team • Based on updated list of related parties, updated by 
the Secretarial department, from time to time.  

• Provide details of RPTs/ material RPTs and any 
subsequent material amendment(s) thereto, 
including details of existing loans and advances and 
other contracts entered into with directors who are 
proposed to be appointed.  

• Ensure disclosure of details of RPTs in the Financial 
Statement of the Company as set out in this Policy 
and as per IND AS 24;  

• Make disclosure in the Financial Statement of the 
Company, in respect of any loans, advances and 
contracts with directors amounting to INR 5 crore 
and above.  

• Arrange for arm’s length report in respect of Related 
Party Transactions proposed to be entered into by 
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the Company, after external validation, and to place 
the same before the Audit Committee for their 
review. 

Human Resource Team • To obtain list of Relatives from the SOs of the 
Company, in terms of Clause 6 of this Policy;  

• To update database of SOs pursuant to any change 
in the details of previous disclosed by the SOs.  
 

All Departmental Heads • To obtain relevant information from the person with 
whom the Company proposes to enter into with any 
transaction, so as to establish whether or not such 
person is to be considered as a related party under 
the extant related party norms. Such information is 
to be shared promptly with the Secretarial 
Department.  

• Based on the said information, the Secretarial 
Department to review whether the transaction 
proposed to be entered with such person, is a related 
party in terms of the extant related party norms.  

• Secretarial Department to review and confirm, 
whether the proposed transaction comes within the 
purview of related party norms, then such customer/ 
vendor/ person shall be categorized as a related party 
and database updated, to facilitate compliances in 
terms of this Policy.  

• To co-ordinate and provide relevant information in 
respect of any RPT/ material RPT or any subsequent 
material amendment thereto entered/ to be entered 
into by the Company to the Secretarial/ Finance 
Department, for seeking the requisite approval of the 
Audit Committee/ Board/ Shareholders of the 
Company, as applicable. 

 

9. Disclosure  

(a) This Policy shall be uploaded on the website of the Company and reproduce RPT Policy 
in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of the Annual Report.  

(b) Policy on Related Party Transaction shall be appropriately disclosed in the Directors 
Report of the Company;  

(c) The particulars of RPTs would form part of the Board’s Report prepared in compliance 
and requirement of section 134(3) (h) of the Act in Form AOC-2.  

(d) The Company shall disclose particulars of RPTs in prescribed Form MBP-4 Part A and 
Part B, as applicable.  

(e) In the event of applicability of Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company shall disclose details of 
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RPTs along with its standalone financial results, on a half yearly basis, in terms of 
Chapter VIII of SEBI Operational Circular dated July 29, 2022 and upload the same on 
its website.  

(f) Details of RPTs shall be disclosed as per disclosure norms under the Listing Regulations 
and other applicable Guidelines that may be issued by RBI.   



  
 

    

 15  

  

Annexure 1 
Definition Clause 

Material  Related  

Transaction  

  

  

Party  Material Related Party Transaction under the Companies Act, 
2013  

Following transactions with Related Parties, which are not in the 
ordinary course of business or not on an arm’s length basis. It shall 
include:  

(i) sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials amounting 
to 10% or more of the turnover of the Company;  

(ii) selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any 
kind amounting to 10% or more of net worth of the Company;  

(iii) leasing of property of any kind amounting to 10% or more of 
the turnover of the Company;  

(iv) availing or rendering of any services amounting to 10% or 
more of the turnover of the Company;  

(v) appointment of any agent for purchase or sale of goods, 
materials, services or property amounting to 10% or more of 
the turnover of the Company;  

(vi) Appointment to any office or place of profit in the company, 
subsidiary company or associate company with monthly 
remuneration exceeding two and a half lakh rupees;  

(vii) For remuneration for underwriting the subscription of any 
securities or derivatives thereof, of the company exceeding 1 
% of the net worth.  

Note:   

i) The Limits specified in (i) to (v) above shall apply for transaction 
or transactions to be entered into either individually or taken 
together with the previous transactions during a financial year.  
ii) The Turnover or Net Worth shall be computed on the basis 
of the Audited Financial Statement of the preceding financial 
year. 

 
Material Related Party Transaction under Listing 
Regulations:   

(i) Means a transaction with a Related Party where the 
transaction/ transactions to be entered into individually or 
taken together with previous transactions during a financial 
year, exceeds Rs. 1000 crore or 10 (ten) percent of the Annual 
Consolidated Turnover of the Company, as per the last audited 
financial statement of the Company, whichever is lower.  

(ii) However, transaction involving payments made to a Related 
Party for brand usage or brand royalty, shall be considered 
material, if it individually or taken together with previous 
transactions, during a financial year, exceed 5% of the Annual 
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Consolidated Turnover of the Company, as per the last audited 
financial statement. 

 
It is clarified that the threshold for transaction(s) of similar nature, 
shall be computed considering all previous transaction(s), entered 
into during a financial year. 
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Related Party  As per Reg. 2 (zb) of the Listing Regulations  
Related Party means a related party as defined under Section 2(76) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 or under the applicable accounting 
standards. 
  
Provided that:   

(a) any person or entity forming a part of the promoter or 
promoter group of the Company; or   

(b) any person or any entity, holding equity shares:   
(i) of twenty per cent or more; or   

(ii) of ten per cent or more, with effect from April 1, 2023; in 
the Company either directly or on a beneficial interest basis 
as provided under section 89 of the Act, at any time, 
during the immediately preceding financial year; shall 
be deemed to be a related party.   

Provided further that this definition shall not be applicable for the 
units issued by mutual funds which are listed on a recognised stock 
exchange(s)  
  
As per IND AS 24 [ Relevant for seeking approval of Audit 
Committee/ Board/  
Shareholders and disclosure in the Annual Report]  

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Company  

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to 
the Company, if that person:   
(i) has control or joint control over the Company;   

(ii) has significant influence over the Company; or   

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the 
Company or of a parent of the Company.  

(b) An entity shall be deemed to be related to the Company, if any 
of the following conditions applies:   
(i) The entity and the Company are members of the same 

group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and 
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).   

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other 
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a 
group of which the other entity is a member).   

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.   

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other 
entity is an associate of the third entity.   

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the 
benefit of employees of the Company or an entity related 
to the Company. If the Company itself is such a plan, the 
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sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting 
entity.   

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person 
identified in clause (a) above.  

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) above, who has significant 
influence over the Company or is a key management 
personnel of the Company or its holding company.  

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, 
provides key management personnel services to the 
reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity. 
  

(c) Whilst determining a related party, an associate includes 
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes 
subsidiaries of the joint venture.   

 
It is clarified that:   

• Close members of the family of a person are those who fall 
within the meaning of the term ‘relative’ under the Companies 
Act 2013 and that includes a person’s spouse or domestic 
partner, brother, sister, parents, children and dependants of that 
person’s spouse or domestic partner.  
  

• Compensation includes all employee benefits (as defined in Ind 
AS 19 Employee Benefits) including employee benefits to which 
Ind AS 102 Sharebased Payments applies. Employee benefits 
are all forms of consideration paid, payable or provided by the 
entity, or on behalf of the entity, in exchange for services 
rendered to the entity. It also includes such consideration paid 
on behalf of a parent of the entity in respect of the entity. 
 

• Compensation includes:   
(a) short-term employee benefits, such as wages, salaries and 

social security contributions, paid annual leave and paid sick 
leave, profit sharing and bonuses (if payable within twelve 
months of the end of the period) and non-monetary benefits 
(such as medical care, housing, cars and free or subsidised 
goods or services) for current employees; 
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(b) post-employment benefits such as pensions, other retirement 

benefits, post-employment life insurance and post-
employment medical care;   

(c) other long-term employee benefits, including long-service 
leave or sabbatical leave, jubilee or other long-service benefits, 
long-term disability benefits and, if they are not payable 
wholly within twelve months after the end of the period, 
profit-sharing, bonuses and deferred compensation;   

(d) termination benefits; and   
(e) share-based payment.  
 

• An investor shall determine whether it is a parent by assessing 
whether it controls the investee. An investor controls an investee 
if and only if the investor has all the following: (a) power over 
the investee; (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its 
involvement with the investee; and (c) the ability to use its power 
over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns 
[IND AS 110]  
  

Key management personnel are those persons having authority 
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the 
activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any 
director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity.  
  

• Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial 
and operating policy decisions of an entity, but is not control 
over those policies. Significant influence may be gained by share 
ownership, statute or agreement.   
  

• Government refers to government, government agencies and 
similar bodies whether local, national or international. A 
government-related entity is an entity that is controlled, jointly 
controlled or significantly influenced by a government.  
  

• Whilst identifying each possible related party relationship, focus 
shall be on the substance of the relationship and not merely the 
legal form. 
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 However, the following shall not be considered as related parties:   

a) two entities simply because they have common director or 
key management personnel or because a key management 
personnel of the Company has significant influence over the 
other entity. 

b) two venturers, simply because they share joint control over 
a joint venture.   
a) providers of finance, (ii) trade unions, (iii) public utilities, 

and (iv) departments and agencies of a government that 
does not control, jointly control or significantly influence 
the Company, simply by virtue of their normal dealings 
with the Company (even though they may affect the 
freedom of action of the Company or participate in its 
decision-making process). 

b) a customer, supplier, franchisor, distributor or general 
agent with whom the Company transacts a significant 
volume of business, simply by virtue of the resulting 
economic dependence.  
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Annexure 2    

Sr. 
No.  

Disclosure received 
from  

Name of Related 
Parties  

Nature of interest  
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Annexure 3 

 

List of related party transactions, under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013:  

a) sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials;  

b) selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind;  

c) leasing of property of any kind;  

d) availing or rendering of any services;  

e) appointment of any agent for purchase or sale of goods, materials, services or 
property;  

f) such related party's appointment to any office or place of profit in the company, its 
subsidiary company or associate company; and  

g) underwriting the subscription of any securities or derivatives thereof, of the company:  

  

Provided that no contract or arrangement, in the case of a company having a paid-up share 
capital of not less than such amount, or transactions exceeding such sums, as defined under 
‘material RPTs’ herein, shall be entered into except with the prior approval of the company 
by a resolution.  

 

No member of the Company shall vote on such resolution, to approve any contract or 
arrangement which may be entered into by the company, if such member is a related party. 
Provided that this shall not apply to the company if ninety per cent. or more members, in 
number, are relatives of the promoters or are related parties.   

 

However, the above stated provisions shall not apply to any transactions entered into by 
the Company in its ordinary course of business other than transactions which are not on 
an arm’s length basis.   

  

The requirement of passing the resolution by shareholders shall not be applicable for 
transactions entered into between a holding company and its wholly owned subsidiary 
whose accounts are consolidated with such holding company and placed before the 
shareholders at the general meeting for approval.  

  

For the purpose of this clause,  

  

(a) the expression “office or place of profit” means any office or place—  

(i) where such office or place is held by a director, if the director holding it receives 
from the company anything by way of remuneration over and above the 
remuneration to which he is entitled as director, by way of salary, fee, 
commission, perquisites, any rentfree accommodation, or otherwise;  

(ii) where such office or place is held by an individual other than a director or by 
any firm, private company or other body corporate, if the individual, firm, 
private company or  

body corporate holding it receives from the company anything by way of 
remuneration, salary, fee, commission, perquisites, any rent-free 
accommodation, or otherwise;  
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(b) the expression “arm’s length transaction” means a transaction between two related 
parties that is conducted as if they were unrelated, so that there is no conflict of 
interest.      



  
 

    

 24  

  

Annexure 4 

Disclosure as Loans to Directors, Senior Officers and relatives of Directors  

                    (Amount in crores)  

Particular  Current Year  Previous 
Year  

Directors and their relatives      

Entities associated with directors and their relatives      

Senior Officers and their relatives      

  

Related Party Disclosure as per Guidelines on Disclosure requirements under Scale Based  

 
@ Disclosures for directors and relatives of directors should be made separately in separate columns from the KMPs 
and relatives of other KMPs.   

# The outstanding at the year end and the maximum during the year are to be disclosed.          

* Specify item if total for the item is more than 5 per cent of total related party transactions. Related parties would 
include trusts and other bodies in which the NBFC can directly or indirectly (through its related parties) exert 
control or significant influence.  
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SKP & CO. us 
Company Secretaries 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2025 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment an d Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules , 2014) 

To, 

The Members, 

Lendingkart Finance Limited 

CIN: U65910MH 1996PLC258722 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 

and the adherence to good corporate governance practices by Lendingkarc Finance Limited 

(hereinafter called "the Company") . Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided 

us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory comp I ia nces and 

expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 

and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 

audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering 

the financial year ended on March 31 , 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed 

hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism 

in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT LENDINGKART FINANCE LIMITED 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records , 

as applicable, maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31. 2025 

according to the provisions of: 

1. The Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and the rules made there under, as applicable ; 

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder; 

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulati o ns made thereunder 

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 

Commercial Borrowings; 

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'), wherever applicable :-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations , 2011; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015; 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requi rements) Regulations , 2018; 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee 13enef'its ancJ 

Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non 

Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act 2013 and 

dealing with client; 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2021; 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 

2018. 

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT LENDINGKART FINANCE LIMITED 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and; 

j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) 

Regulations, 2018 

6. The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Rules and Regulations made and Directions, Circulars 

and Notifications issued hereunder. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

We further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition 

of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 

compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 

notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance except wherever a meeting was duly 

called on shorter notice as per the prescribed procedure , and a system exists for seeking and 

obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 

meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members', if any, views are captured 

and recorded as the part of the minutes. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance 

with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
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We further report that during the audit period, the Company has issued and allotted Non­

Convertible Debentures of INR 300 Crores (Indian Rupees Three Hundred Crores) in aggregate, 

which have been listed on BSE Limited ("BSE"). During the audit period, the Company has 

issued and allotted 1,49,76,509 (One Crore Forty-Nine Lakh Seventy-Six Thousand Five 

Hundred Nine) Series A Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of face va lue INR 100 

(Indian Rupees Hundred) each on right issue basis to Lendingkart Technologies Private 

Limited, holding company of the Company.However, the Company has not undertaken such 

events as public, preferential issue of shares, or sweat equity; buy-back of securities; major 

decision by the Members in pursuance to Section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013; merger, 

amalgamation or reconstruction; Foreign Technical Collaboration or any other like 

event(s)/action(s) having a major bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above 

referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, et cetera. 

Place: Vaishali 
Date: 13.08.2025 

For SKP & Co. 

~:;,.;;.~<:.....> Sundeep K. Parashar) 
M. No. : F6136 
C.P. No. : 6575 
PR No. : 1323/2021 
UDIN : F006136G000991791 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this 
report. The figures reported hereinabove have been rounded off to the nearest crore of rupees. 
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Annexure-A 

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date issued to Mis Lendingkart Finance Limited 

(CIN: U65910MH1996PLC258722) is to be read along with this letter: 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based 

on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial r·ecords. 

The verifi cation was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 

secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed provide a 

reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial record and Books 

of Accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was 

limited to the verification of procedure on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 

conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Date:13.08.2025 
Place: Vaishali 

(C cle p K. Parashar) 
M. No. : F6136 
PR No. : 1323/2021 
C.P. No. : 6575 
UDIN: F006136G00099 l 791 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPOR'T

To the Members of
Lendingkart Finance Limited

Report on rhe Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements

l Opinion

we have audited the accompanying lnd AS Financial Statements of Lendingkarl Finance
Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 3 l, 2025. the statenrent
of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive Income, the statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement ofCash Flows for the year ended on that date and notes to the lnd eS Finaicial
stat€ments, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as "Ind AS Financial Statements").

ln our opinion and to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us. tlre
accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements gives a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 ofthe Companies Act,2013 (the "Act") read
with the companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules,20l5, as amended, ("lnd AS") and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, ofthe state ofaffairs ofthe Company as at March
3 I, 2025, the loss Iincluding other comprehensive income], the statement ofchanges in equity and
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

2, Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with rhe Standards on
Auditing specified under Section i43(10) ofthe Act. Our respons ibilities under rhose Standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the lnd AS l'inancial
Statements section ofour report. We are independent ofthe Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ("lCAI") rogerher wirh rhe
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the lnd AS I.inancial Statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and rve have fulfilled our other erhical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code ol llthics. We believc that thc
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
the Ind AS Financial Statements.

3. Key Au(lit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters thal, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit ofthe lnd AS Financial Statements oflhe current year. These nrafters were addressed
in the context ofour audit ofthe Ind AS Financial statements as a whole, and in fornring our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opi[ion on these matters. we have deterrnined
lhe rratters described below to be the key audir matters lo be cornmunicated in our rcporl.

/'lv
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Our Audit Approach:
Our audit approach was a combination oftest of
intemal controls and substantive procedures
which included the following:
. a) Evaluating the Company's policy. as

approved by the Board of Directors. lbr
impairment of carrying value ol loans and
advances and assessing appropriateness ol
the Company's impairment methodologies
as required under lnd AS 109.

b) Obtained an understanding of the ECL
model adopted by the Companl including
the key inputs and assumptions including
management overlays.

c) Testing the design and effectiveness of
intemal controls over the following:

) key controls over the completeness and
accuracy of the key inputs, data and
assumptions into the Ind AS 109
impairment models.

) key controls over the applicalion of the
staging criteria consistent with the
definitions applied in accordance with the
policy approved by the Board of Directors
including the appropriateness of the
qualitative factors.

) managemenl's conlrols over authorisation
and calculation of post model adjustments
and management overlays to the output of
the ECL model.

d) Also, for a sample of ECL allowance on
loan assets tested:

) Sample testing over key inputs, data and
assumptions impacting ECL calcu lations
to assess the completeness, accuracy and
relevance of data, reasonableness of
economic forecasts, weights. model
assumptions applied, and make inquiries
with management.

) We tested the operating elfectiveness of
the controls for staging of loans and
advances based on their past-due status.

D we evaluated reasonableness of LGD
estimates by comparing actual recoveries

Sr.
No.

Kcy audlt matters Ifow our audlt addresred the key audlt
matter

I Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on Loans
and Advances
Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments ("lnd
AS 109") requires the Company to
provide for irnpairment of its Loans and
Advances ("Financial Instruments")
using the Expected Credit Losses
("ECL") approach. ECL involves an
estimation of probability-weighted loss
on Financial Instruments over their life,
considering reasonable and supportable
information aboul past events, current
conditions, and forecasts of future
economic conditions which could impact
the credit quality oflhe Company's loans
and advances.

As at March 31,2025, the carrying value
ofloan assets measured at amortized cost,
aggregated Rs. 138,235.30 Lakhs (net of
allowance of ECL Rs. 8359.22 Lakhs)
constituting 52.82 %o of the Company's
total assets.
In the process, a significant degree of
judgement has been applied by the
management for:

) Data inputs - The application of ECL
model requires several data inputs. This
increases the risk of completeness and
accuracy of the dala that has been used
to apply assumptions in the model.

) Model estimations - Inherently
judgmental models are used to estimate
ECL which involves determ ining
Probabilities of Default ("PD"), Loss
Civen Default ("LCD"), and Exposures
at Delault ("EAD") considering impact
of infrequent past events on future
probability of default and forward -
looking macro - economic faclors. The
PD and the LGD are the key drivers of
estirnation complexity in the ECL and
as a result are considered the most

I
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Sr.
No.

Key audit mattcrs How our audlt addressed the key audlt
matter

l)Defining qualitative/ quantitative
thresholds for'significant increase in
credit risk' (*SICR-) and 'defauh'
panicu larly for corporate porlfolio,
wherein Company's credit risk function
also segregates loans with specific risk
characteristics based on trigger events
identified using sufficient and credible
information available from internal
sources supplemented by extemal data.
Impairment allowance for these
exposures is reviewed and accounted on
a case- by -case basis.

d) Qualitative and quantitative factors
used in staging the loan and estimation
of behavioural life for the loan assets
measured at amortized cost.

e) Adjustments to model driven ECL
results to address emerging trends.

Refer Note 3(vii) and Note 58(C) of the
Ind AS Financial Statements.

post the loan asset becoming credit
impaired with estimates of LGD.

) tested a sample of performing (stage l)
loans to assess whether any SICR or loss
indicators were present requiring them to
be classified under stage 2 or 3.

> we tested the mathematical accuracy and
computation of the allowances by using
the same input data used by the Companv.

e) We also evaluated the adequacy of the
adjustment after stressing the inputs used in
determining the output as per the ECI-
Model and ensured that the adjustment was
in conformity with the amount approved by
the Audit Committee.

Q Testing management's controls on
compliance with disclosures lo confiflr the
compliance with the provisions of relevant
provisions of Ind AS 109 and the RBL

g) Evaluating the appropriateness of the
Company's Ind AS 109 impairment
methodologies and reasonableness of
assumptions used.

h) We also made managemerrt enquiries with
respect to the overlay quantum.

i) For models which were changed or updated
during the year. evaluating whether the
changes were appropriate by assessing the
updated model methodology.

k) Read and assessed the disclosures included
in the lnd AS financial statements irr respect
of expected credit losses with the

I

significant judgmental aspect of the
Company's modelling approach.

j) Discussed with the management, the
approach, interpretation, systems and
controls implemented in relation to
probability of default and stage-wise
bifurcation of product-wise portlolios for
timely ascertainment of stress and early
waming signals.
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requirements of lnd AS 107 Financial
Instruments: Disclosure ("lnd AS 107") and
Ind AS 109.

4. Information Other than the Ind AS financial statemenls and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. l'he
other information comprises the information included in the Directors Report, Corporate
Governance Report and Management Discussion and Analysis, but does not include the lnd AS
Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon. These reports are expected to be nrade

available to us after the date ofour auditor's report.

Our opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the lnd AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider rvhether

the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS Financial Statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course ofaudit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Wlren we read the other information included in the above reports, if we conclude that there is

material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
govemance and determine the actions under the applicable laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Stalements that give a true and lair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income.
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under Section 133 ofthe Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies: rnaking judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and dcsign.
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. relevant to the
preparation and presentation of tlre Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

n

5

Sr.
No.

Kev audit matters How our audit sddressed the key audit
matter
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In preparing the lnd AS Financial Statements, Company's Board of Directors is responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, mafters
related to going concem and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative bul to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

6. Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the lnd AS financial statements.
as a whole, are lree from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on auditing will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions ofusers taken on the basis ofthese Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on auditing, we exercise professional .iudgmenl
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identifo and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intenlional ontissions.
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. U nder secrion I 43(3 )( i) of rhe Acr.
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has an adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

lt.

l Evaluate the appropriateness ofaccounting policies used and the reasonableness ofaccounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty e\ists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubl on the ability of the Company
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that material uncertainty exists. we are required
to draw aftention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS Financial
Statements or, ifsuch disclosures are inadequate, to modifo our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However. future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

I

L
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v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content ofthe Ind AS Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other maners, the planned
scope and timing ofthe audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identifo during our audit.

From the mafters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these mafters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumslances, we determine that a mafter should not be communicated in our reporl because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

7. Reporl on Other Legal and Regulatory Ilequiremcnts

I

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the
Central Govemment of India in terms of section 143( I I ) ol the Act. we give in the
"Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by section 143 (3) ofthe Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose ofour audit;

b. ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination ofthose books except for the matters
stated in paragraph 2(h)(vi) below on reponing under Rule I l(g).

c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement ofChanges in Equity and the Statement ofCash Flow dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books ofaccount.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid lnd AS Financial Statemenrs comply with the Ind AS
specified under section 133 ofthe Act read with Companies (lndian Accounting Standard)
Rules, 2015, as amended.;

e. On the basis of rvritten representations received from the directors as on Marclr J l.
2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none ofthe directors is disqualified as on
March 31,2025, from being appointed as a director in terms ofsection 164(2)oftheAct.

I

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate rvith them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and
where applicable, related safeguards.

t.
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f. With respect to the adequacy ofthe intemal financial controls with reference to the Ind

AS fin"n"ial Statements ofthe Company and the operating effectiveness ofsuch controls'

refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B" to this report'

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance

ii,n ,f," r"q,1it"*ents of section 197( I 6) of the Act' as amended' in our opin ion and to the

best of oui information and according to the explanations given to us, there is no

remuneration paid by the Company to iti directors during the year under the provisions of

section 197( l6) ofthe Act.

h. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance

*itf, nuf" I I of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014' as amended' irr orrr

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

tD The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on the financial

po.ition i,i its'lnd AS financial statements - Refer Note 50 to the lnd AS Financial

Statements.

(iD The Company has made provisions, as required under the applicable law or Ind AS'

for material ioreseeable iosses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative

contracts;

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 3 l'
2025;

(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best.of its knowledge and belief'

no frna. havJbeen advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or

share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any

other personlsl or entityliesl' including foreign entities (.'Intermediaries,.), with the

underitanding, ,vhethei recorded in writing or otherwise, that the lntermediary shall,

wtrether, direiily or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in

anymannerwhatsoeverbyoronbehalfoftheCompany-(,'UltimateBeneficiaries.')
orirovide any guarantee, iecurity or the like on behalfofthe u ltimate Beneficiaries

(Refer Note 59(iv) to Ind AS financial statements);

(b)TheManagementhasrepresentedthat,tothebestofitsknowledgeandbeliefl.
no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies).

including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether

.ecorded-in*ri-tirgototherwise,thattheCompanyshall,whether'directlyor
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identifled in any manner

whatsoeverbyoronbehalfoftheFundingParty(..UltimateBeneficiaries',)or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

iRefer Note 59(v) to IndASfinancial statements); and /)
v
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(c) Based on audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause ( i) and ( ii) of Ru le I I (e), as prov ided u nder
(a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

(v) The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year

(viJ Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting softrvare systems for maintaining its books of account for the financial
year ended March 3 l, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software, except in respect ofone accounting software (LMS). the
audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level to log any direct data changes
up to January 27 ,2025.

Further, during tlle course ol our audit rve did not come across any instance ol'the
audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention except for the
software mentioned above regarding with the audit trail tillJanuary 27,2025.

For Mukund M, Chitale & Co.
Chartercd Accountants
Firm registration No. 106655W

Abhay V. Kamat
Partner
Membership No. 039585
UDIN: 250395858MIW8Q24 I 4
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29,2025

CHARTERED
A C C O U N TA N T S
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Relerred to in paragraph [7(i)l under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our
report ofeven date

According to the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

(i) ln respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment, Righr of Use Assets and Inrangible
Assets:

b) As per information and explanations given to us the Property, Plant and Equipment and Righr
of-Use Assets have been physically verified by the managernent at reasonable intervals. ln our
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the operations
of the Company and on the basis of explanations received no material discrepancies were
noticed during the verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis ofour examinatiotl
of the records of the Company, the company does not have ownership of any imrrovable
property.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right ol LJse

assets) or Intangible Assets during the year.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us. no proceedings have been initiated
or is pending against the Company during the year for holding any benami propeny under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

( ii) a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting underclause 3(ii)(a) ofthe Order
is not applicable.

b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of llve crore rupees, in
aggregateJ from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of loans (assets). Basis
the information and explanation provided to us and basis our audit procedures undertaken, we
have not come across any difference between the information submitted in the quarterly returns
/ statements filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions when compared with
the books ofaccount and other relevant information provided by the Company. 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report of even date on the Ind AS financial statements of
Lendingkart Finance Limited

a) A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars. including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. and relevan( details of
Right-of-Use Assets.

B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Intangible Assets.
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( iii)

( iv)

a) The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company and its principal business is to give loans.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) Considering that the Company is a Non - Banking Finance Company, the investments mad€,
guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of all loans and advances
granted in the nature of loans are not prima facie prejudicial to the Company's interest.

c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated. Note 3(vii) to the Ind AS Financial Sratemenrs sets
out the Company's accounting policy for the impairment of financial assets. including loans. In
accordance with this policy, as at 3l March 2025, loans with aggregate outstanding balances of
t6,348.83 lakhs were categorised as credit-impaired ("Stage 3"), and loans with aggregate
outstanding balances of a6,l25.l8 lakhs were categorised as having a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition ("Stage 2"). Relevant disclosures in respect of these loans
have been made in Note 65 to the Ind AS Financial Statements. Given the nature of the
Company's business and the volume of loans involved, il is not practicable to provide a
borrower-wise schedule of loans where repayment of principal and/or interest is in arrears.

d) In respect of loans granted and advances in the nature of loans provided by the Cornpanv. there
is no overdue amount for more than ninety days as at the Balance Sheet date except for the
following cases as on March 3l ,2025:

Rs. ln Lakhs
Tolal Amount

6.148.83

Funher, basis discussiorrs rvith the management we understand that the reasonable steps have
been taken by the Company for recovery ofthe principal and interest.

e) The Company is engaged primarily in lending activities and hence reporting under paragraph
3(iii)(e) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

f) Basis the information and explanations provided to us, during the year, we did not come across
any loans or advances in the nature of loans that were eilher repayable on demand or without
specified terms of repayment, except for a loan of Rs. 1,762.57 lakhs given to the holding
company.

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans.
investments, guarantees. and securities given in respect of which provisions ofsections 185 and
186 ofthe Companies Act 2013 are applicable, and hence nor commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of the direcrives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to'1-6 or any other relevant
provisions ofthe Act and the rules framed thereunder hence reporting under paragraph 3(v) ofthe
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

0
/

Principal Amount Intcresl Amounl

2.865 5795.64 551. l9

(v)

Number of
Cases
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(vi) The maintenance ofcost records has not been specified by the Central Govemment under Section
148(l) ofthe Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Thus,
reporting under paragraph 3(vi) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) In respect of Statutory dues:

a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statulory dues. including
employees' state insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory
dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities except for payment of provident fund dues
where there has been delay for two cases. As explained to us, the Company did not have any
dues on account ofsales tax, wealth tax, duty of customs, duty ofexcise and value added tax.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records, there are no dues of provident fund, employees' state insurance and goods and
services tax that have not been deposited on account ofany dispute except, in case of lollowing
dues of income tax have not been deposited by the Company on account ofdisputes:

Name
of the
statutc

Nature of the dues Disputed
Amount
(Rs. in
Lakhs)

Amount
Paid /

Adjust€d

Period to
which the
amount
relates

Forum where
dispute is pending

Goods
and
Services
Tax,
2017

Goods and Services
Tax

r 3.93 20t9-20 Assistant
Conr m issioner
(Appeal to
Appellate
n uthorit) )

07 .12 2020-21

Total

(v iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which have

not been recorded in the books ofaccount but have been surrendered or disclosed as income in the
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, l96l (43 of l96l) during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(viii) ofthe Order is not applicable.

(ix) a) According to the infonnation and explanations given to us, the Company has not delaulted in
repayment of loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b) Basis the information and explanation provided to us, the Company has not been declared a

willul defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and to the best ofour knowledge and
belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company were, applied by the Cornpanv during
the year for the purposes for which the loans were obtained.

(Note : The above balance do nol include amounls ofinterest ond penolty.)

?
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d) On an overall examination ofthe Ind AS financial statements ofthe Company, funds raised on
short-term basis do not seem to have been used during the year for long-term purposes.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates
companies. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(e) ofthe Order is not applicable.

Q According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates
companies. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ixx| ofthe Order is not applicable.

(x) a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (x)(a) ofthe
Order is not applicable.

b) The company has made preferential allotment of Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares
during the year and the requirements of Section 62 of the Companies Act.20ll have been
complied with and the funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were
raised.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and to the best ofour knowledge. no
report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT- 4 as
prescribed under rule l3 ol Cornpanies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the year and up to the date ofthis report.

c) According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not received any whistle
blower complaints during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (xii) ofthe Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to the inforrnation and explanations given by the management, transactions rvith the
related parties are in coirpliarrce with section 177 and 188 ofthe Act where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the Ind AS financial statements. as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xi) a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the company or
on lhe Company has been noticed or reported during the year, other than instances of frauds
noticed and reported by the management in terms of regulatory provisions applicable to the
Company amounting to Rs.306.47 Lakhs.

/
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(xiv) a) [n our opinion the Company has an adequate intemal audit system commensurate with the size
and the nature of its business.

b) We have taken into consideration, the internal audit reports for the period under audit issued to
the Company till the date while determining the nature, timing and extent ofaudit procedures.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them as referred to
in section 192 ofthe Act. Thus, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) a) The Company is required to be registered under section 45-lA ofthe Reserve Bank oflndia Act,
1934 and it has obtained the registration.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, the company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial Activities during
the year without a valid certificate ofregistration (CoR) from the RBl. Further as represented by
the Management, the company has not engaged in Housing Finance Activities.

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no CIC in the Group and
hence reporting under paragraph 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses in the current year of Rs. 2,200.47 Lalchs. ( FY 2023-24
Nil).

(xviii) There has been no resignation of statutory auditors during the year and hence reporting under
para$aph 3 (xviii) ofthe Order is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates ofrealization offinancial assets and payment offinancial liabilities, other
information accompanying the Ind AS financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date ofthe audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date ofBalance Sheet as and when they fall due within a period ofone year
from the Balance Sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
ofthe Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date ofthe audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a

period ofone year from the Balance Sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

()
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(xx) a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, the Conrpany does nol meet the criteria for Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) under Section 135 ofthe Act during the year. Accordingly, second proviso to sub-section
(5) ofsection 135 of the said Act and paragraph 3(xx)(a) ofthe Order is not applicable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, the Company did not have any ongoing project in terms of Section I 35 of the
Act during the year. Accordingly, provision ofsub section (6) ofsection 135 ofthe said Act and
paragraph 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountanls
Firm Registration No. 106655W

Abhay V. Kamat
Partner
Membership No. 039585
UDIN:250395858MIW8Q24 I 4

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29,7025
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors'Report of even date on the Ind AS financial statements
of Lendingkart Finance Limited

Referred to in paragraph [7(ii)(f)l under Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of
our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section l4J of rhe
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

')

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to the lnd AS
Financial Statements of Lendingkart Finance Limited ("the Company") as of March 3 l. 2025. in
conjunction with our audit ofthe Ind AS financial statements ofthe company for the year ended on
that date.

J

q

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial
controls based on the intental control over financial reporting criteria established by the Cotnpany
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Intemal Financial controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute
of chartered Accountants of India C'lcAr'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adheience to
company!s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection offrauds and errors.
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial infonnation, as required under the Compan ies Act, 201 3 (..Act,,).

Auditors' Responsibility
our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's intemal financial conlrols over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Audiring as specified under section 143( l0) of the Acr, to rhe extenr
applicable to an audit of internal tlnancial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards
and the Cuidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perlonn thc
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectivell, in all
material respects.
Our aud it involves perform ing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy ofthe internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectivinesi. our audit of
internal financial conlrols over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weaknesi exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures sclected depend on the auditor's judgment. including tlte assessntent
ofthe risks of rnaterial misstatenrerrt ofthe financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Conrpany's intemal financial controls system over finarrcial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability offinancial reporting and the preparation offinancial
statements for external purposcs in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's intemal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that:

(l) pertain to the maintenance ol records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions o1'the assets ofthe Company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to perm it preparation
of financial statements in accordarrce with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures ofthe Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations ol
management and directors of the Cornpany; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal l'inancial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because ofthe inherent Iimitatiorrs of internal financial controls over financial reporting. inclLlding
the possibility of collusion or intproper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occrrr and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
intemal financial control over linancial reporting may become inadequate because ofchanges in
conditions, or that the degree ol'compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate intemal financial controls system over financial
r€porting and such controls werc opcrating effectively as at March 3 l, 2025 based on the criteria lor
internal financial control over tinancial reporting established by the Company considering the
essential components ofinternal conrrol stated in the Guidance Note issued by rhe ICAI.

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co-
Chartered Accountants
Finn Registration No. 106655\\'

bhay V. Kamat
Partner
Membership No. 039585
UDIN: 250395858MIW8Q24 l.l

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29,2025
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lendillgtan Finance rimited
Sal.nce shcet.s at March 312025

(r in lokhs unless otheNise stdtedl

21,719.66

33,255.52

157.63

1,38,235.30

1,987.83

43,8S5.04

37,045.60

342U.94
898.05

2,73,@4.22

59,377.4L

2,41,210.98 3,44,569.22

2,774.74

14,446.00

2q).82
24.98

s2.17

589.23

2,565.6
352.19

4,501.45

3,593.49

538.06

5Z.m

2,984.28

415.58

20,500.74

2,6t,7t7,72

12,091.45

3,56,561.08

81,587.82

8r,650.33
4,335.09

19,8,'5.72

14.84

824 08

1,m,345.81
L,37,2U.O9

5,477.72

30,083.03

91.59

653 91

1,88,257.a8 2,73,929.67

!,204.29
724.9L

1,011.89

1,609.32

1,929.20 2,621.21,

19,395.30

s7,129.34

4,4L8.79

75,691.47

80,110.25

3,56,661.06

Carh and cash equil/alents
Eank balances otherthan cash.nd cash €quivalents

Otherfinancialassec

U.bllltl.s.nd Equity
U.bllltl.i
flnanclal ll.bllitlej
Trade Payablet

(i) lota I outstand'ng duer of micro enterprl5es and rm.ll ent€rprirei
('i) rotal outstandinS dues ofcredhorr other than micro enterprires.nd

rm.ll ente.prise3
D€bl Securinet
sorrowinsr (Other than debt se.urities)
subordinated liabiliries
Other fina ncaal liabilaties

Iotal liabilitiei and equity

Non flnan.l.l llabilhlcs

Olher non-fi nancial liabilitiet

tqulty

lc!iient r.r assers (N€0

Defered tax asset (Net)
ProDenv, Dlant and eouiDment
lntan8ible as5€ts

lntangible assets under dev€lopment

RiSht-ol-ure asrets
Othernon-fin,n.lal,(otr
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7

8

9

10

11

t2
13
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16
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14

18
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20

21
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25

25
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rorMukund M. Chitale & Co.

No. 105555W
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Oltl No.05273533

Prarhant Prakarh.lorhi
Chief Executive Otlic€r

Date: May 29 2025 Date: M.y 29 2025
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Anisha 5€th
Chiet rinan.irl Orfic..

Rochak oh.riwal

Memb€rship No.457383

M€mb€rship o.0395E5

oate: M.y 29 2025

tl'L

MUMBAI

INDIA

t

F

oz -

Date: May 29 2025

Mar.h 312025

The a(.ompanying Notes are an intesral part olthe Ftnrnct.t sr.tements.
Ar perourreport of ev€n date
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Date: May 29 2025



Lendingkart Finance Umited
Stat€ment ot Profit & Loss tor the Year €nded March 312025

(< in lokhs unless othetwise

Revenue rrom op€rations

Fees and commission incoln€
Net Gain/(Losslon derocognition of fina ncia I instruments
Total Revenue from operations
Other lncome

Total lncome

Erpenser

Fees and commission expenses
lmoairment of financial inltruments
Employee Senef it expenses
Depreaiataon and amortisation expenses
Other Expen5es

Total Expensas

Profit/(Losr) betore Tar

Tat Expcnsa :
. Current tax
- Deferred Tax (income)/expense

Total Tax Expenses

Prof ll/ltoss) alter tax

Other compaehenslve lncome
(a) ltems that will not be reclassllicd to proflt or lors
Remeasurement gain / (losses) on defined benefit plans

change in fairvalue of investment through OCt
lncome tax relatingto items thet wilt not be reclassified to profit or loss

Othe, comprahensive incoftq net of tar
Totrl Comprehensive lnaome

Earnint pcr equity sharet ltn obtolutc l]
Eesic

0iluted

28

29

30

31

32

33

34
35

36

37

38

39

39

81,2n.74
3,218.15
1,769.57

1,01,336.81

7,576.44
5,281.41

85,219.45 1,14,195.10
479.44 449_71

86,698.94 1,14.644.81

29,779.74
9,845.15

s2,345.57
L6,472.O5

1,002.05

16,906.20

27,Oa5.44

12,s62.39
25,631.49

L4,13s.O2

941_4L

25,657.71
1,26,350.76 1,06,513.46

(39,6s1.82)

(19817.86)

8,031.35

665.53

L,357.21
(10,817.86) 2,023.80

(28,833.96)

(1.3s)
(0.82)

0.55

5,007.55

(32.83)

8.26
(1.62) (24.s7)

128,835.581

(51.e1)

61

5.982.98

13.50

13.60

The accompanying Not€s are an integaalpart of the Flnancial Statements.
As perour report of eveh date

1

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chedered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105555W

of Board of Dirertors

0Hl

Partner
Membership No. 039585

Prashant Prakash Joshi

Chief Executive Orricer Cha

Thallapa

DIN No.05273533

Membership No. A57383

Plece: Mumbai
Oate: May 29 2025

PlaEe: Mumbai
Date: May 29 2025

Place: Bengaluau

Oate: May 29 2025

D1.^'^'. *"
Anisha Seth

Chief Financial Olticer
Rochak Dhariwal
CompanySecretary
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Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29 2025

Place: Ahmedabad
D.te: May 29 2025

Notes March 312025 Ma..h 312024
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tendingkart Flnance llmited
Statement orCash Flow ror the Yea. ended March 312025 (< ln lokhs unless othetwise stoted)

Oper.ting actiuitles
Profit before tax
Adrusted fo,l

lmpact of EtR of financial assets

lmpact of EIR of financial liabilities
Upfront Bain on direct asslgnment
lmpact of Corporate Guarantee Fee5

lnterest on finahce lease liability
Provision for Bratuity
Provision for leave benefit
lmpairment of loans
lmpairment of other financial as5€ts

Bad debts written offs
oiscount on Commercial Paper
lnterest lncome on lnvesthent
Depreciation and amoatisation
lnterest on banl deposit5
lnterest on term loans

Finance costs

PPE & lntanSible assets under development writter off
Actua ria I ga in/(loss) recoSnised in OCI

Change in fair value of investment through OCt

lnterest received on bank deposit
lnterest received on term loans
Repayment of linance cost

Cash generated lroft opehtint activitiet betore wo.tlnt <.phalchantas

Chantes ln worklnt 6pital:
- (lncrease) / decrease in trade receivables
- (lncrease) / decrease in loans
- (lncrease)/ decrease In other financialAssets
. (lncrease)/ decrease in othea non-financialAssets
- lncrease / (d€crease) in other financial liabilities
' lncrease / (decrease) In other non-financial liabilitles

- lncome Tax ald
Net

2,746.61
(1,3S7.61)

.1,765.57l,
1,600.57

425.!L
57.38

135.02

2,359.31

34,558.33

L5,427,93

354.47

124.78t
1,002.05

(3,83s.77)

.34,654.121
28,652,19

1o.24)
(1.3s)

(0.82)

(39,651.82)

|.2,992.72)

'1,624.77)
(s,281.41)

1,460.65

367.06

120.86

313.14
(197.44)

4,212.52

27,616.41

351.87

941.41

12,s46.141
(39,648.89)

28,443.75

3.42
(32.83)

8,031.35

6,022.89 11,537.70
3,752.92

36,542.71
(29,598.73)

2,436.68
35,605.74

l'31,178.47)

16,7t9.79 18,401.71

740.43

55,188.59
(20,019.01)

(195.47)

(9,032.07)

(884.41

(814.81)

(s3,4s7.80)

(s,196.78)

(44s.13)

(3,081.81)

{1s0.96)
43,517.85 144,74s.s8)

2,294.62 (1,s47.s3)

lnvertlnt actlvltlei:
Purchase of PPE and intangible assets

ProceedsIron sale of fixed assets

Movement in bank balances otherthan cash and caih equivalents
lnterest received on bank deposit
lnvestment in Goveanment securities

(6e2.67)

1.25

1,O32.27

10.35

11,973.40)

.676.44],
0.96

(10,724.39)

FinencinS activitlesi
lssue of equity share capital (includin8 securitie! premium)
Share issue expenses
Proceeds from debt securities
Repayment of debt securities
Proceeds from borrowings (otherthan debt securitles)
Repayment of borrowinSs (otherthan debt securitles)
Proceeds/(repayment) of subordinated llabilities
Proceeds from issue ofcommercial paper
Repayment of commercial paper
change in Cash Credit/ Overdreft
Repayment of lease liabilities

!!9!99!Vll9p.ly-"nt) trom securitisation bo.rowinS

$,432.72
(183.34)

3r,753.47
(i14,719.30)

31,817.14
(s7,862.46)

(1,000.00)

8,000.00
(13,334.41)

(1,365.93)

(93s.1s)

(2&5s8.9s)

77,655.50

123,919.72],
1,08,870.84
(77,059.31)

3,000.00

7,438.89
(4,070.43)

(4,836.70)

(730.94)

(9,619.44)
Net cash 8en€rated I

INDIA

t

ro2

FI
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Panicula6 March 31 2025 March 31 2024

{Net)

45,4L2.47

Net cash generated r.om / (used in) investinS activities /.1,622,20\ (11,399,87)

financlna actlvltles 157.557-211 76,728.69



Ca5h and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 37,086.60 18,0s0.89
Cash and aash equ

Componenti of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand
Balances with banks
- With banks in current accounts
- ln deposit accounts with original maturlty of less than 3 months

10,485.64
13,234.O2

14,775.54

22,311.06
cash and cash

(< ln lokhs unless othe,wise stdted)

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the lndirect method as prescribed in lnd AS - 7 on Statement of cash-flows

The accompanyinS Noter arc an inte8ral part olthe Flnanclal StatemenB.
As per our report ofeven date

Lendingkart Finance Limited
Statement o, Cash Flow for the Year ended March 31 2025

tor Mulund M. Chitale & Co.
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{13,366.94) 19,035.71
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Lendingkan Finance Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31 2025

(< in Lokhs unless otherwise stoted)

1. Corporateinformation

Lendin8kart Finance Limited ("the Company") is a public limited company domiciled in lndia. The Company is a "Non-
BankinB Financial Company" as defined under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of lndia ("RBt") Act, 1934 and engaged
in the business of providing working capital loan to the Small and medium sized enterprises and others and personal
loans. The Company is a non-deposlt taking non-banking financial company (NBFC) registered with the Reserve Bank of
lndia (RBl) with effect from 15 April 2014, with Registration No. B-13.02085 (lssued in lieu of CoR No. B-O9.OO3G3). RBt,
vide the circular -'Harmonisation of different categories of NBFCS' issued on 22 February 2019, with a view to provide
NBFCs with greater operational flexibility and harmonisation of different categories of NBFCs into fewer categories based
on the principle of regulation by activity, merged the three categories of NBFCs viz. Asset Finance Companies (AFC), Loan
Companies (LCs) and lnvestment Companies (lcs) into a new category called NBFC - lnvestment and Credit Company
(NBFC-lCC). AccordinEly, the company has been reclassified as NBFC lnvestment and Credit Company (NBFC-tCC).

The Company has its registered office at Office 3 Connekt,4Ol/8, 4th Floor, Silver Utopia, Cardinal Gracious Road, Andheri
East, Mumbai Suburban - 400099, Maharashtra, lndia. As at March 31 2025, Lendingkart Technologies Private Limited
("Holding Company") owned 100% of the company's equity share capital and has the ability to control its operating and
financial policies.

2, Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) as per the
Companies (lndian Accounting standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and notified under section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) along with other relevant provisions of the Act and the Master Direction - Reserve
Bank of lndia (Non-Eanking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Oirections, 2023 ('the NBFC Master Directions')
issued by RBl. The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

2.1 Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the
Division lll of Schedule lll to the Act applicable for preparation and presentation of the financial statements and
disclosure required by Master Directions of the RBl. The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented
as per the requirements of lnd A5 7 "Statement of Cash Flows

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and
reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
without being contingent on a future event.

2.2 Use of estimates and iudgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with lnd AS requires management to make estimates,
assumptions and exercise judgments in applying the accounting policies that affect the reported amount of assets,
liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of
income and expenses during the year.

The Management believes that these estimates are prudent and reasonable and are based upon the Management's
best knowledge of current events and actions. Actual results could differ from these estimates and differences
between actual results and estimates are recognized in the periods in which the results are known or materialized.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

3. Material accounting policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements

(i) Revenuerecognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured and there exists reasonable certainty of its recovery.
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Lendingkart Finance Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31 2025

(< in Lokhs unless otherwise stoted)

a, lnterest income
(il The Company calculates interest income by using the effective interest rate (ElR) method to gross carrying

amount of financial asset other than credit impaired assets.
(ii) When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as 'Stage 3', the company

calculates interest income by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost of the financial
asset. lf the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the company reverts to calculating
interest income on a gross basis.

(iii) Loan processing fee/docu ment fees/stamp fees/ annual maintenance charges which arean integral panof
financials assets are recognized through effective interest rate over the term of the loan. For the
agreements foreclosed or transferred through assignment, the unamortized portion of the fee is recognized

as income to the Statement of profit and loss at the time of such foreclosure/transfer through the
assignment.

(iv) Additional charges such as penalty, cheque dishonour, foreclosure charges, delayed payment charges etc.
are recognized on realization basis.

The effective inte.est .ate method

lnterest income/ expense is recorded using the effective interest rate (ElR) method for all financial instruments
measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life ofthe financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, tothe net carrying amount ofthe
financial instrument.

The company recognises interest income/ expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a

constant rate of return over the expected life of the financial asset/ liability. The future cash flows are estimated
taking into account all the contractual terms of the asset/ liability. lf expectations regarding the cash flows on the
financial asset/ liability are revised for reasons other than credit risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive or
negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset/ liability in the balance sheet. The adjustment is

subsequently amortised through lnterest income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss,

b. Net gain on lair value changes

The realised gain from financial instruments at FWPL represents the difference between the carrying amount of
a financial instrument at the beginning of the reportinS period, or the transaction price if it was purchased in the
current reporting period, and its settlement price.

The unrealised gain represents the difference between the carrying amount of a financial instrument at the
beginning of the period, or the transaction price if it was purchased in the current reporting period, and its carrying
amount at the end of the reporting period.

c. Net gain/(loss) on de-recognition of financial lnstruments under amortised cost category
Gains arising out of direct assignment transactions comprise the difference between the interest on the loan
portfolio and the applicable rate at which the direct assignment is entered into with the assignee, also known as

the riSht of Excess lnterest spread (ElS). The future Els basis the scheduled cash flows, on execution of the
transaction, discounted at the applicable rate entered into with the assignee is recorded upfront in statement of
profit and loss. lncome from direct assignment transaction represents the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and

consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability).

FIN
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The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset/ liability) is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition, commission, fees and costs incremental and directly attributable to the specific lending
arrangement.



Lendingkart Finance Limited
Notes forminB part of financial statements for the year ended March 31 2O2S

(< in Lokhs unless othetwise stoted)

d. Rendering of services

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model as set out in lnd AS

115 to determine when to recognize revenue and at what amount.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in the contract with a customer and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when services are
provided and it is highly probable that a significant reversal of revenue is not expected to occur.

lf the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable amount, the company estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for rendering the promised services to a customer. An

amount of consideration can vary because of discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions, incentives,
performance bonuses, or other similar items. The promised consideration can also vary if an entitlement to the
consideration is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of a future event.

(ii) Recognition of expenditures

a. Finance costs

Borrowing costs on financial liabilities are recognised using the ElR.

b. Fees and commission expenses

Fees and commission expenses which are not directly linked to the sourcing of financial assets/ liabilities, such as

commlssion/incentive incurred on value added services and products distribution, recovery charges and fees
payable for management of portfolio etc., are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis.

c. Taxes

Expenses are recognized net of th€ Goods and Services Tax/Service Tax, except where credit for the input tax is

not statutorily permitted.

(iii) Financial lnstruments

A financial instrument is defined as any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a, Date of recognition
Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities and borrowings are initially recognised
on the trade date, i.e., the date that the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions ofthe instrument.
Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to the customers' account. The company recognises debt
securities and borrowings when funds are received by the company.

b. lnitial measurement of financial instruments
The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business
model for managing the instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair value, except in the
case of financial assets and financial liabilities at FWPL, transaction costs are added to, or subtracted from, this
amount. When the fair value of financial instruments at initial recognition differs from the transaction price, the
company accounts for the Day one profit or loss, as described below.

c, Day one profit or loss
When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair value is based
on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the company recognises the
difference between the transaction price and fair value in net gain on fair value changes,

FIN4
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Lendintkart Finance limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31 2025

(< in Lokhs unless otherwise stoted)

d. Measurement catego.ies of financlal assets

The company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the
contractual terms, measured at either:

> amortised cost
> fair value through other comprehensive income (FvOCt)
> fair value through profit or loss (FWPL)

(iv) Financial assets and liabilities

a. Bank balances, loans, Trade receivables and financlal assets at amortised cost
The company measures Bank balances, Loans and other financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following
conditions are met:

> The financial asset is held within a business model with the obiective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows.

> The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principaland interest (5PPl)on the principalamount outstanding.

The details of these conditions are outlined below.

), Business model assessment
The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial
assets to achieve its business objective. The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument by
instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios.

lf cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Company's original expectations,
the Company does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model but
incorporates such information when assessing newly originated financial assets going forward. The business model
of the Company for assets subsequently measured at amortised cost category is to hold and collect contractual
cash flows.

> The SPPI test
As a second step of its classification process the company assesses the contractual terms offinancial to identify
whether they meet the SPPl test.

'Principal' for the purpose ofthistest is defined as thefairvalue of the financialasset at initial recognition and may
change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the
premium/discount).

The most siSnificant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time
value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the company applies judgement and considers
relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the period for which the
interest rate is set.

b, Debt securities and other borrowed lunds
After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue funds, and costs that are an
integral part of the ElR.

c. Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading and have been either
designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be measured at fair value under
lnd AS 109, Management only designates an instrument at FWPL upon initial recognition when one of the
following criteria are met. Such designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis:

> The designation eliminates, or 5ignificantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwis
recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis;

r. I
INDIA t-

*7

from measuring the assets or

UMBAI

FI



Lendingkart Financ€ Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31 2025

(< in Lokhs unless othetwise stoted)

> The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed, and their performance evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy; Or

> The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not significantly modify the cash
flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or it is clear with little or no analysis when a similar
instrument is first considered that separation of the embedded derivative{s) is prohibited

d. Financialassets at FVOCI

The Company classifies its investments and financial assets as FVOCI, only if both ofthe following criteria are met:
> The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the

financial assets; and
> Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of Principal

and lnterest (sPPl) on the principalamount outstanding.

e. Financial guarantees and undrawn loan commitments
Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements (within Provisions) at fair value, being the
premium/deemed premium received. Subsequent to initial recognition, the company's liability under each
guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance or the amount initially recognised less

cumulative amortisation recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

> The premium/deemed premium is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over
the life of the guarantee.

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the commitment, the Company
is required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer. Undrawn loan commitments are in the
scope of the ECL requirements.

The nominal contractual value of undrawn loan commitments, where the loan agreed to be provided is on market
terms, are not recorded in the balance sheet.

(v) Reclassification of financial assets and liablllties
The company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the

exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial

liabilities are never reclassifi ed.

(vi) Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

a. Derecognition of financial assets du€ to substantial modification of terms and conditions

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a Iinancial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is

derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired, The company also
derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for
derecognition.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
> The company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; Or
! The company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control ofthe asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between:
> the carrying amount (measured at the date of derecognition) and
> the consideration received (includ ing any new asset obtained less any new lia bility assumed ) is recognised in

profit or loss.
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l"endingkart Flnance Limited
Notes forming part ot financial statements for the year ended March 31 2025

(< in Lokhs unless otherwise stoted)

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the company retains the contractual rights to receive the
cash flows of a financial asset (the 'ori8inal asset'), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to
one or more entities (the 'eventual recipients'), when all of the following three conditions are met:

> The company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has collected equivalent
amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full recovery of the amount
lent plus accrued interest at market rates.

, The company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients. The
company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf ofthe eventual recipients without material delay. ln
addition, the company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash
equivalents including interest earned, during the period between the collection date and the date of required
remittance to the eventual recipients.

The company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the
asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing
additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained
control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the company's continuing
involvement, in which case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration the company could be
required to pay.

lf continuing involvement takes the form of a written or purchased option (or both) on the transferred asset, the
continuing involvement is measured at the value the company would be required to pay upon repurchase. ln the
case of a written put option on an asset that is measured at fair value, the extent of the entity's continuing
involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

b. Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying
value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

(vii) lmpairment olfinancial assets

ln accordance with lnd AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets at amortized cost along with related undrawn commitments
and loans sanctioned but not disbursed (collectively known as exposure at default).

a. Overview ofthe ECL principles
The company records allowance for expected credit losses for al! loans, other debt financial assets not held at
FWPL, together with loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, in this section all referred to as

'financial instruments'. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under lnd AS 109.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected
credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case,

the allowance is based on the 12 months'expe€ted credit loss (12mECL).

The 12mECL is the portion of LTECL5 that represent the ECLS that result from default events oo a financial
instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.
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Lendingkart Finance Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31 2025

(< in Lokhs unless otherwise stoted)

Both LTECLs and l2mECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis, depending on the nature
of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments.

The company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reportinB period, of whether
a financial instrument's credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in

the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.

Eased on the above process, the company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described
below:

The Company classifies its financial assets in three stages having the following characteristics:

> Stage 1: unimpaired and without significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition on which a 12-month
allowance for ECL is recognised. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved, and the
loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

> Stage 2: a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition on which a lifetime ECL is recognised. Stage

2 loans also lnclude facllltles, where the credit rlsk has lmproved, and the loan has been reclasslfled from Stage

3.

> Stage 3: objective evidence of impairment and are therefore considered to be in default or otherwise credit
impaired on which a lifetime EcL is recognised.

For financial assets for which the company has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire
outstanding amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced. This is

considered a (partial) derecognition of the financial asset.

b. The calculation of ECL5

The company calculates ECLs to measure the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the ElR.

A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

> Probability of Default (PD)

The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may

only happen at a cenain time overthe assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and

is still in the portfolio.

> Exposure at Default (EAD)

The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected

changes in the exposure after the reporting date, includlng repayments of principal and interest, whether
scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities, and accrued interest from
missed payments.

> Loss tiven Default (LGD)

The Loss Given Default ls an estimate ofthe loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. lt is

based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to
receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. lt is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAO.

The maximum period for which the credit losses are determined is the contractual life of a financial instrument
unless the company has the legal right to call it earlier.

lmpairment losses and reversals are accounted for and disclosed separately from modification losses or gains that
are accounted for as an adjustment of the financial asset's gross carrying value.

The company, considering the macroeconomic environment and other available information, esti rious
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Lendingkart Finance Limit€d
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31 2025

(1 in Lokhs unless otherwise stoted)

> State-l:
The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date, The company calculates
the 12mEcL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12 months following the reporting
date. These expected 12-month default probabilities are applied to a forecast EAD and multiplied by the
expected LGO. This calculation is made for each of the three scenarios, as explained above.

> Stage-2:
when a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the company records an allowance
for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained above, including the use of multiple scenarios, but
P0s and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime ofthe instrument.

> Stage-3;
For loans considered credit-impaired, the company recognises the lifetime expected credit losses for these
loans. The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

> Loan commitments:
When estimating LTECL5 for undrawn loan commitments, the company estimates the expected portion of the
loan commitment that will be drawn down over its expected life. The ECL is then based on the present value of
the expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down, based on a probability-weighting of the three
scenarios, The expected cash shortfalls are discounted at an approximation to the expected EIR on the loan.

> Financial guarantee contracts:
The company's liability under each guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount initially recognised less

cumulative amortisation recognised in the statement of profit and loss, and the ECL provision. For this purpose,

the company estimates ECLs based on the present value of the expected payments to reimburse the holder for
a credit loss that it incurs. The shortfalls are discounted by the risk-adjusted interest rate relevant to the
exposure. The calculation is made using a probability-weighting of the four scenarios. The ECLS related to
financial guarantee contracts are recognised within Provisions.

c, Contract assets

The company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on contract assets. The
application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLS at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition. The company uses a provisiofl matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its
assets. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the assets
and is adjusted for forwardlooking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated for changes in the forward-looking estimates.

(viii) Sovereign Credit Guarantee Schemes

Credit Guarantee Fund Trust for Micro and Small Enterprises {CGTMSE) has been set up jointly by Ministry of MSME,
Government of lndia and SlDBl to catalyse flow of institutional credit to Micro & Small Enterprises {MSEs).

Credit Guarantee Fund for Micro Units (CGFMU) is the Credit Guarantee Trust under the management of National
Credit Guarantee Trustee Company Limited (NCGTC), established by the Department of Financial Services, Ministry of
Finance.

CGTMSE and CGFMU have been instrumental in providing guarantee cover on credit extended by eligible Member
Lending lnstitutions [MLlsl to MSES. The Company is a MLI in these schemes and has obtained sovereign guarantee
cover on its portfolio. Accordingly, the Company has incorporated the benefit of this sovereign guarantee cover in
calculation of impairment of loan assets.
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(ix) Write-offs

The Sross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. lf the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the
available accumulated loss shall be reversed, and the totalamount amount will be provided as write off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities to comply with the Company's
procedures for recovery of amounts due. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on financial
instrument on statement of profit and loss,

Determination of fa ir value

The company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value

is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between

market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the

transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
> ln the principal market for the asset or liability, or
, ln the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate

economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are

available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

ln order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of
valuation techniques, as summarised below:

> Level-l financial instruments

Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the company has access to at the measurement date. The company considers markets

as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical

assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet

date.

> Level-2 financial instruments
Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly
observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument's life. Such inputs include quoted

prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive
markets and observable inputs other than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied

volatilities, and credit spreads. ln addition, adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the
asset or the extent to which it relates to items that are comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such

adjustments are based on unobservable inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the company
will classify the instruments as Level 3.
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> Level-3 financial instruments
Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole

For assets and Iiabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

(x) Foreign Currency translation

a. Functional and presentatlonal curency
The company financial statements are presented in lndian Rupees (l) which is also the functional currency of the
company.

b. TEnsactions and balances
Transactions in foreiSn currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency at the spot rate of exchange
ruling at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into the functional currency at
the spot rate of exchanSe at the reporting date, All differences arising on non-trading activities are taken to other
income/expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the spot
exchange rates as at the date of recognition.

(xi) Leases

The company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, ifthe contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

a. Company as a lesr€e
The company applies a sintle recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

> Right-of-use ass€ts
The company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-
of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straightline basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the
assets.

lf ownership of the leased asset transfers to the company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-
of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

), Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the company and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the company exercising the option
to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses
(unless they are incu
payment occurs.

rred to produce ventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
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ln calculating the present value of lease payments, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. ln addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

> shon-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases i.e., those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. lt
also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are
considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

b, Company as a lessor
Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially allthe risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental lncome arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms. lnitial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

(xii) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and cash at bank, including fixed deposits &highly liquid securities
with an original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

(xiii) Propeny, plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when it is probable that the future economic benefits that
are attributable to the assets will flow to the company and the cost of the assets can be measured reliably.
Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. The cost excludes expenditures related to day-to-day servicing, which are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred,

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price (after deducting trade discounts and
rebates) including import duties and non-refundable taxes, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its
working conditioo for its intended use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the written down value method using the rates
arrived at based on useful life of the assets prescribed under Schedule ll of the Act which is also as per the useful life
of the assets estimated by the management.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for
by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting
estimates.

Property plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in other income / expense in the statement of profit
and loss in the year the asset is derecognised. The date of disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is

the date the recipient obtains control of that item in accordance with the requirements for dete ena
performance obligation is sati 115. 1 FI
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(xiv) lntangibleassets

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the expected
future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the company.

lntangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

lntangible assets are amortised using the straight-line method over a period of three years, which is the
Management's estimate of its useful life. The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end
and adiusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(xv) lmpairment of non-financial assets

The company assesses at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. lf any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimates the asset's
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of
an as5et exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
a mou nt.

ln assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flo\rys are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount ratethat reflects current market assessments ofthetimevalue of money and the risks specific to the asset.
ln determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account.

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determ ine whether there is an indication that previousiy
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. lf such indication exists, the company estimates
the asset's recoverable amount, A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only ifthere has been a change
in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.
The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

{xvi) Financialguarantees

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements (within 'other liabilities') at fair value, being
the premium received. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined as per impairment requirements of lnd AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Any increase in the liability relating to financial guarantees is recorded in the statement of profit and loss under
impairment of financial instruments. The premium received is recognised in the statement of profit and loss under
interest income on a straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee,

(xvii) Retirement and other employee benefits

a. Provident fund
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the government provident fund. The company recognises contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. lf the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds th
already paid, the deficit payable to heme is recognised as a liability after deducting the
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paid. lf the contributioo already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet
date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction
in future payment or a cash refund.

b. Gratuity liability
Gratuity liability is a defined benefit plan and the costs of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined using the pro.iected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with
a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
> The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
> The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net deflned benefit liability or asset. The company
reco8nises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss:

> Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments or
nonroutine settlements; and

> Net interest expense or income

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtalled, the resulting change in benefit that relates
to past service ('past service cost' or past service gain') or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a
defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

c. Compensatedabsences
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to
pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on
the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end.

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past
events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obliEation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the effect of the time value
of money is material, the company determines the level of provision by discounting the expected cash flows at a
pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to the liability. The expense relating to any provision is presented
in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

(xix) Taxes
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(xviii) Provisions

a. Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities, in accordance with the lncome Tax Act, 1961 and the lncome
Computation and Oisclosure Standards {ICDS) prescribed therein. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting date in the jurisdiction where the
company operates and generates taxable income.

o

*

t-



Lendingkart Finance Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31 2025

(< in Lokhs unless otherwise stoted)

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

b. Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
> Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a

transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss.

> ln respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:
> When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition

of an asset or Iiability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

> ln respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is

no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

c. Goods and services tax /value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring erpens€s
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/value added taxes paid, except:
i When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in

which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item, as applicable.

> When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.
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The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of non-financial
assets or liabilities in the balance sheet. The ineligible input credit is charged off to the respective expense or
capitalised as part of asset cost as applicable.

(rx) Contlngent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a

present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot
be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the financial statements. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in
respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, it is disclosed only
when an inflow of economic benefits is highly probable.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to the counterparties for
supplying/development of asset and amount of undisbursed portfolio loans.
Cgntingent assets, contingent liabilities and commitments are reviewed at each reporting date.

Contingent liobilities recognised in o business combinotion

(xxi) Share issue expenses

Direct expenses in connection with issue of shares are ad.lusted from securities premium account to the extent
available.

(xxii) Earnings per share

4. Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations except under common control are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate ofthe consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, For each business combination, the Company elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree's identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. At the acquisition date, the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date falr values. For this
purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabillties representing present obligation and they are measured
at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not
probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis
indicated below:

Deferred tax assets or liabi
recognised and measured
resPectively.

lities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
in accordance with lnd AS 12 lncome Tax and lnd AS 19 ts

s
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A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is

measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements for provisions
above or the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with the requirements for revenue recognition.

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing profit after tax (excluding other comprehensive income)
attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net pro{it or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share -
based payments arrangements of the Company entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acqurree are measured in accordance with lnd AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identiflable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. lf the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration
transferred, the Company re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the
liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measu.e the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date.
lf the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration
transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no
clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing
the same through OCl.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Company's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. lf the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill

allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in

the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill

is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part ofthe operation within that unit is disposed of,

the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when

determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generatinB unit retained.

lf the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Company reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.

Those provisional amounts are ad.iusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that date. These ad.iustments are

called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition
date.

5. Critical accounting estimates and iudgments and new amendments

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities atfected in future
periods.

Accounting estimates and judgments are used in various line items in the financial statements for e,g.:
Business model assessment -

Fair value of financial instruments - Note no. 56
Effective lnterest Rate (ElR)

lmpairment on financial assets - Note no, 58(C)
Provisions and other continSent liabilities - Note no. 24 and 50
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Provision for tali expenses - Note no. 38
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When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date.

o



Lendingkart Finance Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31 2025

(< in Lokhs unless otherwise stoted)

> Residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified new standards or amendment to existing standards under Companies (lndian
Accounting Standards) and Rules as issued from time to time. the Company applied following amendments for the first-
time during the current year which are effective from 1 April 2024:

Amendments to lnd AS 116 - Lease liability in a sale and leaseback
The amendments require an entity to recognise lease liability including variable lease payments which are not
linked to index or a rate in a way it does not result into gain on Right of Use asset it retains.

ii. lntroduction of lnd AS U7
MCA notified lnd AS 117, a comprehensive standard that prescribe, recognition, measurement and disclosure
requirements, to avoid diversities in practice for accounting insurance contracts and it applies to all companies
i.e., to all "insurance contracts" regardless of the issuer, However, lnd AS 117 is not applicable to the entities
which are insurance companies registered with lRDAl. The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements
and based on its evaluation has determined that these amendments do not have an impact on the Company's
Standalone Financial Statements.

t.
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LendinglGn Fi.a..e Umhed
Notesto Uoan<ial rt.remen$ lorth. Y€ar.nd€d March 312025

l< in lokhs unl.ss othe*tsc ttored)

- i. d€poslt.c.ounti slth ondnal matudt uFto 3 monthr
10,485.5jr
t1,234 02

74,775.54
21,311.06

8,719.66 37,046.@
(i) Balance in cu(ent account as at31M.r.h 202s ancludes amouot ol144.3E which pert.ins to E*row.ccounts ofcolende.s (Ma.ch 31 2024: a
1,022 86).

(ii)Short-term d€positi ar€ mrde forvaryint pe.iodr of betwe€n oned.y and thr€e honihr, dependint on th€ immedlat€ c.eh requirem..ts of
the company, and earn lnlerest at the resp€ctive short-term deposil rates. As at M.rch 312025, tixed d€posits ofr 4693.74 ar€ pledged aSainst
(redit fa.illties lMarch:112024r r 173.13).

1

a Trade Re.€ivables

rir.d d€poriB wlth b.nk
oeposits- maturitymo-e !h.n 3 months but less thao 12 months
Deposits- maturitymo.e than 12 months

32,494.89

760.63
29,944_97

4,275.97

33,255.52 44,204.94

ASainn Credit facilnies
Aeain't FLDG to col€ndeE

Unsecured - Conridered Sood
L€ss: lmpatment allowanc€

r57.63 898.05

157.63 898.05

(i) undi.puted Trade receivabl€s-

lii)undirputed Trade R€r€ivEbles - which
h.ve si8nific.nt increare in credit rist

iiii) Undisputed Irade Re.eivables - credit

{iv)Oisputed Trade

Beceivabl€Honsider€d good

{v}Disput€dTr.deRec€iv.bles-which
havesiSnificant lncr€a5e in credit risk

(vi)Disputed Trade Receivables - cre.lit

65.31 92.00 0.32 157.63

65.11 92.00 0.32 157.53

(i) Undistuted Trade receivables-

(ii)UndGputed Trade Receivables - which
have signlficant increale in credit rirl

(]ii)Undasguted Trade ieceivables - cr€dh

Rereivables{onsidered good

{v) Oisputed frad€ Seceivabl€s - whkh
lave sitnificant incr€aEin cr€dh rlsl

468.09 429.96 898.05

468.O9 429.96 894.05

INDIA ra
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Outst ndln, to. followlni @rlodsf.om due dateof ulmenl
l-2 ye.6 2.3 y€als

l2,ss8.is
12,580.10

11,012.92

t7,374.61

3oJ8;,

March 312025 March 312024

Outeiandlns for tollowlna perlods lrom due date of raymed
L.ssthan6 5 months -l



tess: lmpairmc.t loss.llowance (Reter note 5E (C))
1,44,831.95

{8,359.22)

2,1E952.12
(s,943.90)

2,13,004.221,36,472.14

Te.m loans to Hold ina rompany {lnt€r-company loan} ,,762.57

1,38,235.30 2,1:t,008_22

(il se.ur€d
Le$: lmpakment lors allow.nce
Iotal{,

llil unsc.u..d
Less: lmpairm€n! lo5r allowanc.

7,46,594.32
(8,359.22)

2,18,952.12
(5,943.90)

2,13,008.22Total(ii) 1,3E,235.30

1,34,235.30 2,r3,@8.22Total (Al = {i) + (ii}

(81 out ol Above

lllPubll.se.ror
Lesti lmoairment lossallowance
Total li)

7,46,594.52
(8,3s9.22)

2,18,952.12
(5,943.90)

(li)others
tess: lmpakm€nt losr allowance

roral{ii) 1,38,235.30 2,t3,008.22

Total lBl = {il } (li) 1,38,235.30 2,1?,oo8.22

1,46,594.52
(8,359.22)

2,$,952.12

15,943.90)

lc) out ot Abov!
(i)ln lndia
Less: hpatmenl los5 allowance

1,38,215.30 2,13,@4.22rorar{i)

{ii} ouBide rndia

Less: lmpairment loss allowance

Tot!ltc)-(il+{il) 1,38,23S.30 2,r3,008.22

(< in lokhs unletsorheryite tloredl

(i) No Trade re.eivabler .re due from diredors or other office.s of th€ company either ever.lly or jointly with any othe. perron, nor any trad€
receivable..e due tom ttrmrorprivat€ companaB i. whach any di.e<tor is a pa.toe., a director or a membe..

{ii) Date of aanEctjoo conridered ar due date of paym€nt.

Allthein(rumentr.requoted invertmentt

l. There ,r€ no lo.nr or adv.nces, i6 fte nature of loanr, which are Eanted to promoteG, directoE, xMPs and the rcl.t€d panier (ai defined

under the Companies Ad,2013l,.ither sev€rally or jointly with any oth€r person that are repayableon demand or wilhout specifyinS any terme

or period ot rep.yme.l oth€rtha. m.ntaoned in l{oteno.43.

2. Impakm.nt losr allow.n.e Indud6 non-fund bar.d eposurc s imp.irmcot loss.llowance of I 12.77 a3 it Mir.h 31 2025 (131.79 as.t
March 312024)

182 OTg MaturinS on 17-04-2025 -5.43*
910r8 01.05-2025 - 6.r;2%

G525May20Z5C Maturint on 25-05-2025 -6.43%

5,@,000

10,00,000

5,00,000

498.32

994.35

495.16

1,987,81

lnv.rtm.ntr rn..sur.d .i f.h y.lu. ih.outh olh.. co6p..h.nslv! ln.oh€
1,987.83

1,987.83

1,987.83

Total 1,987-83

INDIA r
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tendinSkad ri..rc. Umit.d
Notee to linancial iarement! tor th€ Yearended M.rch 312025

I t12025
Trca!urv Bilk/6-Sec/Yield Rat.

March 112024March 31 2025

Mar.h 312024March 312025

!l\.



Lendlngtan f ln.nc€ Umhed
Noter to fin.ncial lt.tcmenti for th€ ye.. €nded M.nt 312025

in lakhs unlett otheNise stoted)

Int€rest re.eavable on assagnment ofloa.s

Receiv.ble from co-lenders

Receivable from credit guarante€ rch€m€
Othert

3,391.52

577.52
21,i141.68

3t,724.62
254.10

6,276.21

573.97
44,555.32

15,450.16

169.73
57,t89.64 67,035,19

(13,534.60)(Les, : hpairment allow.nce (7,663.98)

43,855.04 59,371.41

t1 Oth.r tinancial a$eti

(D ble ,.om co lenders includes .ssetr re.otnised .s per lnd AS with correspondinS Guarantee lirbility recorded under Other finahcial
iabilitier in note no.23

13 Oefered tar aiset

'Refer note 38for Defered rar movement and Tar reconciliarion

cllr

r'j

Advance income tax (net ofprovisions) 2,).7A.14 4,507.45

2,L74.74 4,507.45

Drtci.rd a.r .rrA on.c.ount ot
Carry forward of unabsorbed loss€s

P.ovirion for erp€n*s allowed for tar purpor€5 o. p.ymentbaltt

Una,Ylonired procesdng fee
Leaie li.bility
EIR ol Gua...te€ feeg

Unwlnding discount of Security O€posit
Differcn.e between taxdepreciarlon and depreciation charted forthe finan.irt reporting
lnteren on market lint€d debentures

9,7!3.51
475.14

4,632.2t
159.25

754.30

0.16

4!.70
94.58

249.50

4,444.t0
258.52

1,829.32

17r..63

837.58

46.99

4t.77
147.16

Grosr DeferedTax turetr 16,090_45 7,977.17
oct n dt r ll.bility oi.c.ount ol:
On account of ec!.itis:tion and dk€ct.$ignm.n!

Unamortised bonowint con

708.U
645.83

249.14

2,951.18

751.08

64t.35
Gror5 O€ferr€d Iax Uabilities 1,644.45 4,383.52
D€tered lax Assets (Net) 14,446.@ 3,593.49

INDIA |-
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L.ndi.gkarl Fan.n.e Umlted
Noler to tlnanrlal 5tatements tortheYearerd€d M.rch 312025

(< ln ldkhs unless othe&ite

14

(i) There are no contractual com mitm€nts for the acqulsltaon of p.operty, plantand equipment.
(ii) rhere is no borrowinr cons capitalieed dudnrth€ yearended March 31202s (Ma.ch 3r 2024: Nit).
(iii) There hav€ been no r€valuation durinrthe yearended March 312025 (March 312024: Nil).
(iv) rhe titl€ deeds otallthe lmmov3ble prop€rtiesheld bythe Company (otherthan propertteswhere theCompany

is the lessee and the lease aSreem€nts are duly executed in favour ofthe tesse€), are hetd in the nem€ of th€
Company.

(v) The Comiany har not r€v.lued its Prope(, Plant.nd [quipm€nt (induding Right-of-Use Arsers).

lvi) There is no CwlP duranS th€ year.

t5

(i) The Company has not revalued its lntantibte assets.

cost

Ai.t April0l2023

Disposals

704.61

578.99

49.74

58.85

5.41

105.19

42.35

1.41

858.85

626.75

51.19

2,749,17

2,520.72

951.95
Ar at Mar.h 3l 2024 7,234.O2 54.25 146.12 !,444.42 4,318.14

Oilposals

48.43

7.39

0.52

3.71

2.53

1.74

51./t8

tz.a4

595.32

797.O2

Ae at March 312025 1,275.06 61.07 146.91 1,483.06 4,12!.44

A.cumulited depred.tlon
As.tAprll012023

Dirposals

493_26

313.98

47.O7

89.37

18.11

1.32

514.42

340.31

48.39

1,150.54

s51.27

373.95
Ae at Ma.ch 312024 760.19 40.00 106.16 906.34 1,333.86

Oispotals

274.15

6.92

6.23

3.09

1,6.92

1.42

297.4O

11.43

Qr.4A
453.96

Ar al March 312025 1,027.42 43.14 121.55 I,192,27 1,557.38

Ar at March 312025

As at March 312024
247.64

473.4t

17.93

24.26

25,25

39.96

290.82

538.05

2,566.06

2,944.24

a5 rt APdl 01 2023

Disposals

294.34

49.70

Ai at Mar.h 312024 344.04

0isposali

0.09

As al Mar.h 312025 344.13

Ac.u6ulat.d.monl'rtlon
As at Aprll 0l 2023

Dispolak

248.05

43.99

As.t March 312024 292.U
Chaq€ for the year

Disposals

27.77

As at March 312025 319.15

As .t March:112025

A5 at March 31 2024

24.98

52.00

INDIA
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Property, plant and equipment

office
Ritht-of-use

11.78

a.22



r.nd6ar.^ Fh& u6n.d
xd.r ro fi...d.| r@tuna ld d. r*..d.d M.rdr l1 aqlt

52 r2

Add: Acqukition dunnS th. y.rr lin .not.6r^.r)
Le$: lmpallm€nt Los!, ln.nf

rndlr.cr r.r.rldlB MrLbL ld urlk Oo.

12 96

11.55

du6 of .GdnoE othu rh.. mioo e.r.EriE .nd im.tt
9r.59

r.s3
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I!ndl..k.dlxlEufrlt.d
{d.. !o ,...*hl lbr.rns d t E v..r .n&d M.Eh 11 tots

(i) l.{o hGBr h.s b..n p.ld / B pnr6l. b, d! comrny durha ri. v..r to "slrpllar" ..abc.il !.d.r rh. Mr..o, 5m.lt .hd Mediuh tnt6pd*r Oa.|opm6r A.! 2006-
liil rn. di5cl6u.n .€a:.din! oko ..d s.l drtrDrll6 he 5s d.r.mh.d b in. dd rud lsrbt h& b.a id.ntfi.d o. dE b.!:r or hrddton .v.tubt. whh rh!

(ill) 0.!. ol t..edi6n i, .onnd€Ed .t d!. d.tE ol piymni_

,nvl.ly pl&.d Ed..Ebl.non..6v.rrbr€(,.b.nNEr
tn.m.l Commd.l 8oi@i.3t (tCB)

kivr.ly rl..ed rd..m.br. @868.!rbt. .,.n tud
lo.i@i.x! by isu. ol com....l p.p.6

ail7.t0 3ila.19

Dr6t.ly pl{.d ..dEmbk .o^<m*rdar. d"b.tuB

(i) P.o.edt nom itiu. ot Debr Gu liB ,. unhs.d lor rh. purpo* tor f,'hi.h rh. Gcn er :.. a$u.d .nd L in lrE'qdl rrE oeb.nruE Trun o..i at6.d Dy th. cdnp:.y.
(i')rh. qu.d..ly r.,l!r.! fl.d by th. conrrnywitn b k.nd tr6rei.b lBrftltio^r.r. i^ aa@m.ht wirh rh. bookr ot &d.E ot th!.onp..y.
liii) TneE h., ba. io d.Luh i. i.p.Fdr o, PriMip.t .6d rir..et d hdorira'
(iv)fund, Els.d on lhoa i.rm b.rir hanorban u*d ta t nr r.m @,!4.
lvl fte d.b.niur. r'e e.u.ed by

.) HYporh*.rb. ol b@k d.bt5 .nd l@lv:bl.., p@*nt .nd tuiu.. ol th. cohp.ny oo dI. .nmr o, 1,05 to i.to ria6 ot @ttr.ndiq .lE^r o, rt h.ntuG). Th. cffip..r
ha, .t .ll dm6, lot th. *u..d ilcDr, Einlrl..d iufiLhnt 8sd @.r .! fiied t^ dl. r$..rir infom.tion m.mo6ndud toEld3 rh. p.t dp.t .nou.! i6rd6t x<.wd
th.rM, and {.h othE .utu a tullsEd dl.GL.
b) co.r...r. 3u.mre ot rh. Hotdi.3 ,o M.rh 31 2025 k I 553s7.ta (Mach 31 2o2a i, I 35.559.53).
d C.En .olar.al ii th. lom ol llr.d d.p6rllt s .! Mr(h 31 2025 13 t 4,693-7a (MrEh 3t 2o2ai {r)
dl olh.r Fln .Lk a*t3 ior M.Eh ,1 2025 15 t1r,505.99 (M.dr ,1 2O2a: xit)

vil to @ co.wnibL d.b6tur6 .nd .ny oth.r bo@ina & !u.. t.at b, dk*ro6 ..d/or oth.R,

D.b..turt .r rr M.rch 31 202t

0i,

133.49

t

3

3t

5

15

,7
,
2

12

I

lrdr

sc!4!&

&!-t!!dt

1t
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L€ndl.lt.^ ti..n.. unft.d
Nor.r io fir...1.1 i.r:n.n.. ror th. Y..r .nd.d M.Eli 31 20n5

u!!!!!

gc!4!-d

Hrl r..lv

On ll.lurllr lalll.O

9X-tzr

l2xl5*
3

l2

15

333.33

5,413l:r

7J@.@ 5

1

:l5

I

t2

5,295.33

133.39

1,250.m 312.50 12

I
a
2

3

977.2t

o. ir.iudre l&llctl

,l
on Marurilv ISull.tl

2

1,735.71

27,611.6,

aorowi.a. u.d.r s..uritiDUo. lrDt thouah ..nrl..t.)

Irom o$a thr b..lt

lo..!E.f.bl.{d.tuna

carh cr.dr from b.il!

9,992.75

25r.15

ll0 u-mutd

,@m holdlna .6p.ny

n@ olnd ri& b..rr

INDIA

F

t-



r€ndi.ak.. IitEE unh.d
tor.s ro ,t'r.r.l or.mnB d ih y..r ..d.d M.r6 U ,0t5

(i) Ih. c.nD.ny hrt uad lund. to. rh. lul,a fq rtkh dE tundr .E nts.d t m Ert! sd fh.fttJ ludrlto.a
(ii) Tn. q!.dnly cilrc fiLd by th. Cotrl,:rv widt bsL .hd ftn.rdrt tErtrurim .E h .altffit {drh rt. b6B of .@nE oi rh. (6r..v.
(ri) $.8 h:r b.6 m d.l&n h rop.yffir o{ prh.rC.l .^d thtsBt on bomwinri
(rvl Fundr oi{d s rhqr l.m b-L hft not b6 c!.d lq bni Ern p{Do*.
(v, rh. r.m bar/ wki^g 6prbr d.h.nd rM, 63h @dnl @doft .o !&Ed byl

a) HyDorhdion ol b@t d.brs .d c.nr!k, D.!sr -d i(!.. ot di. C.np..y lro rh. .rr.nt ot 1 to 133 nn.r of ern.nnha b.^ .t@nrl. fi.e. rh. cmDo 1r...
,r.I im6,lor lh. t*uEd Isn lo-./CqOO. m.hrCn.d suiicknr.$.t G.c$ iot d ir dE Bp..dw htffiir ffii.don is.rdt rh. ,,iElp.r.mu.i,lhrs.n
*ou.d th6M. .^d lch o6ff tuh! amntlond$.r.1..
bl Coao.d. alranle ot th. Holdin3 lorl! ry s:t 31Mrfth 2t25It I Lta1.55lM*h 312024: I35.20r,2a )
.) co.po..t 3u.r..t . atvsr by ufidr. xoldkE @np..t.t.t ,1 ,rrrtfi 2025 tr I 7,35a_03 lMrch 3t 202a: t x[ )

d) arrt bsr d.bllt gqr.nte lFtOGl an $.106 of p.uLty d.poshr s .r Mach !t 2025 ! I 2a5,2t (Mxh :t1 m2a: \ 250.@)

.) r.m b.nt Ov.rdan .nd F5h .r.dh el.d frm balr .@ai by pl!d!! .l fn.d d.rorG 3 .r ia.dr 11 2015 a, r 10,255-92 lMr.fi 31 2O2a: r 1O,O72.rt)

(vi) Io t m ldne .nd .ny othB bor i., i. auanter, bv dkEi.E ,r, / d odEB.

lui) ri6l b$ .lel.uh su.rnre (rLoG) l^ th. rom or &.d d.porirt lor su.ittt:tlo. F.B..dd! s .r M.Eh 3l ,ors k I 2,22r.., (M.r.h 31 2o2.: I rfaoos)

d.6.nd lo.ni r! ar Mr(h 31to.

*
I

13.3r

233.09

333,33

:*
10,545.m

,,1al,5,
t 1,33

24.41

2,043.33

11,95433

2,494.74

395.30

-17X
1rx.l5x

I

11,33s.17

21,.36.51

t6

5

333.33

22 ,,t54.29
2,63a.04

3,141.57

431.33

I

6

95

12

51.32

Es4Ur
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t

kndrntkrn fh..c. r1hh.n
nor.e to lrn.nrrd i.r.r.nr! td ih. Y..r .ni.d Mr6 a1 2015

a$et r.ro.ded .s Re.€,vabre lrom .o endeE under Orher n^ir. al

l') Ih. cmpiy h.r !..d tundt ld th. purp6* lor *hi.h th. tonds .E nr*d tr6 8.nk! ,.d ai..n.ol i^rtrutonr.
(ii) rheG h.r b.€n n. rr.t d in rp.ymat 6f pd..ir.l .nd lnt.r.rt o. boro$nir.

!1e!!t!I

5

t

lrm dh, rrun h,nrr
t.517,71 2,530.23

o. M.rudtv lBul.tl

2

g!!4dqGc!E!)
2

36.53
(5s.a1)

Erp€n* .nd olh.r p.y.bl.s
,.yrbL tdudr CGI*ding
P.Y.bL re..dr dr*r 6a!n6r ol b5r

P.Y.bhi ro holdi.s .ohprriY

S..vice o blt tion o^ ..( ou m ol !Eurid..tb^

555.23

9,O72.39

t61.ao

13,224.44

P@rn@ to, .nplov.. b.*lh,
Provkion lor 3r.ru[, b€n.fB
P Dvl non lor le:ve ben€litg

il\. cHl
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r..diirk.n nn.@ Unn.d
i{ or., ro fin r.crr r trrr.h.nit td ttE y..r ..d.i it rd 31 2025

(t tn totht lnt tt orh*tt u.i.dl

r.rf,!/ ri3htt.tta(h.d tos.n.sA Compulro ly Conv.nitk Prl.r.n.. th.r. ol [r. r0o lllly p:id

Ihc divtdend coupon r.re ol 5.ri6 a Prel.ree sn:r6 k o.ffilra G(o pohr 160 ze.o :erc mE p€i!€nq per a.nun.

o.t.ili ol ...h Sh:..hold.r holdi.r moa th.n 5x rh.6 :nd lh. nsb.r oa rllx h.ld

ci{l

r.mt/ .i.hrr .rr.dld to.$4, .i.6
lh. comp:nv h! ont m. cL,i of .qulty rh.at i.vt^t . p.r v.lu. ol &. 10/. p- rh.E, t*h !h&.nd.h. ie .lialbL td o.. Er. ,.. sh.E h.ld. fi. dMd.rd p.o9oi.d, il v, by
$.lo.dorotrddtntubj.<rroril.+p.ddolsh.r€hold.4l^th..6!l.3AnnurrG.n.r.lMdrh!.hrh!4n!olltquld.tbnolti.Cohp-t,tEhoBeof.qury.h.tsrl
b. ..rilbd & 6dr ..m.lnha n*ts ol th. Conp.ny rtis dhnbutlor ol ri pr.LEnti.l .munB Tn. dlndbution ,i[ b. in p.opo.lio. ro th. .unbd ol .quty thft h.ld by

oun^3 th. t... ..d.d M.Eh 3l IoIt, ln. csrrv kruld 1.a9,76,500 s.rls   compukon! comnibL Pr.f.a.c. shaG h:rng le 6lE ir. 1m u.n. l'sdta A Pdd.nc.

Sr.r.i A P.eIae... 5hac5 ih.ll r.nk p..i'p.!- wiln th. Eqoiy 5h.6 of rhe Cmp.ny, .@pt h Gi.tir io lh€ votin! ri hn rh€.s, which .h.ll be in dod:n.. ailh s..$on
47(21 of lh. Comr..hs A.i, 2011.

rh. s.li6 A r/.Lr.n.. rh.r6 sh.ll b. .utom.nc.[y co.rn.d i^to aquity sh..6, d dr. ..ni.n or (i) rn. br.n d.t o. rhkh rh. 5.re3 A t..Gr.... sh.@r .k r.q!k d ro be
(o.En€d i^io tq! ily Sha E und. r .p9lt.h l. t w i. .o n n.ctlon *nh rny in (i.l lohlk orLn.a ot ihe Conp.ny, (ii) lh. d.l. r!.old l. rnn^a bl th. hold. r o, th. ousl.ndin,
s€.i6 A Pr.r.r.n.. sh.r6, d (ili) ih. sriry o, 19 (hrhcr..n) ye.6 ed 1r (.le..I monrnr Lod ttu d.r. .r .llorm.ni {or b, och otnn d.t. .r EY b. r.qulr.d under .pplk ble

L:wl ol rh. S€.s A Pr€re..n e 51i 6. Jh. Go^*rslo. r.tio for 1,a9,75,509 5€ri6 A C.mpulsnry conv.rdhh Pr.tet.^.. th.r.s of t lOO e*h wil be 1:1.

) & !.. th. tude of rh. conp y, t.dudhi lt3 r Bt r .a rhrdtoldd / m.nu6! -d oihd dRL6rl6 rR.k d lrm rh.Enodd Eli.dl.a h.n fELl l.Lr..! lh. .bd.
!h,.holdrn, ar.6B bolh h!.1 .nd b.n n C M.rihlp o, 3ta.
(il) th. compay hs no! .lbn rl .ny bo^u! $rs in lrE ivt yr* lmnf,dh.ly prcdi.N M.dr !l 2olt.

5,07,27,600 Equity !na.B .l I 10 ...h
Conven bre Frcl€'€n.€ sh.r€ ol Rs. r@e.(h

It.4d, $5.s16.d ..d ldt ,.ld up
.,a1,!ttt! t{dt ,rEo ol I lO ..dr
Ar rh. b€ain.i4 of th. ye.r
chanso due lo pnd p.riod.nor
R.n.t.d b.1.... rh. bqinni.! of rh. yr..
Add: lssu€d duri.s rhe y.:.

a,a$,79

1,49.15,509 &rl.i A Cmpd-dly C..y..il5L PEL|t@ .i.G oa r.. l@ .xi
At th. bqrhnlng o, lrE y.ar
Ch.q.. du. to prid p€iod .do(
R.tul.rl bJ.*. ar $. b.rh.hr ot rh. w.r
add litu.d dunna th. F.,

No .r s€ri.i A codpulJory conv.nrbL P.ers6.. dr'6 o1 fu.1@ .*h tuUY p.id h.ld
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nor.r to frn.Ml.l rbt.ru.a ld OE Y..r .6d.d M.r.i ,r zol'
t1 in hth' !nLt oth*t* tbEdl

8rbn.. ar th. b.alnnln8 or rh. y..r
Add: Pcml06 on i$u. or Sh.r6 3,155.2r

633.3a!
3rlrn.. rt th. end olrh. Y..r

2,514.16

D..fuil ..tri.l @t&siLr ftm h.ldt mrry
B.la.<..r th. b.ah.i.g olrt v.,
A.n: adahon/(o.r.ihnl dori.ra rh. v.,
0.r.... rr rh. .nd or rh. Y..t

(23,33s.531

1.52

5,932.94

7.,4,

(!01.5r,

B.hre n th. t aLdry ol rh. y€.r
lda: Ft'tt / (ro$l r.. d!. y!,

t s: h.6., onrr dD..liclE Lrft
Reau'!fuir ,.lnr I (lor*) oh d.fn d ta.lir c.n ln r or lI)
Ls:Tr 3l€rEd to sr.turory ar'.fu u/r 3rtbn a5-lc ol i.fr a..l ol lndl. &1 l9!a

s.lrft..tth..hd ol rh. y..r

3ddory rn.M 4. ...don aSrc .t t.s-. B.nl ot lndl. &! lt:,a
8ilatr...r th. b€ainnin3 of th. ye.r
Add : anouirranrt.r.d durin.ih.F:r
a.r.n.. d i,E.nd or rh. v.:.

(r 0r) t14.57)

6h.r C.6r.h.n lv. lm
8rl.6.. .r ih. b.,$rrn3 ot ih. y..t
R.nenlrsmr laiB / Irog) o^ d.fi..d badn d.n (na ol t.rl
G.nr. in f.t v.!E ot i@nftfr rh@rr Oo {nd of bl
s.hi...rlh..ndotlh.v..r

l|rrua rnd ,uD@. ol E .m!

56ur'nL! ,r.mlum r.pr.r.nrs p..mium B.iv.d on r$u. o, slq6. Thlr amu on b. udF .d in *@rnaE Ini tn prdiro6 ol th. aotlpsis r.i 2013.

(iil sbru...y '!..ft l.r.rd FrtrE i r.led..]r* oatli. x.t.o i..!r.ardL &r,1!x,
sr.t{toryr4eEDr.5t th. t...G fcnd.E.r.d udd s.don atlt ollh. i*N l-k ot lndLad,1914, In. comp.ny k rcqui4rl to tr.mfa r {6 ml ld th- !*nty
!.r.oto tl' mr p.ofn 4ryy....r di*lo*d ln rh. 

'|t.@nr 
ol,.onr d 16,In. *.rur.ry @m o^ b! unh.d for til. B,p@t.. D.Y b. $.dlLd bydt r.'!G 8..k of

rndi. L6 titu to 0F..

id.irn.ynin;cr.e^$roiJof.tlorofftsEtt.drhcco6p4/rl...piron.tr.in.d.rnlna!ae(.dnd*tlhcu.a.ty..rproic,tdw.dbt16*1lt,dlvildd
p.yocq v.nrLR to 6e6.1 .ed d at !4h otls .pFop.LtloB to sp..ift ed. h .ls ln.l!d6 ,rp..t ol tm{cd.nr ol d.6n d b.n.fit pl-*

{ivl 0..6.d ..pt.l .mrdbld.n ,Em noldia @nD.iY
rt..o6rr.y i! b€ins.h.[cd to, CorpoEt Gu.r t .lc tr ti. holdina @p.,ry ior pr@dina lu&nrs to $.l.ndd'3 ol lh€ .6rrnv. Th. Cmpr.y d@3 noi a.y th.
Gu.anle t€ ro hotdr6! .mp.ry but .h..t t ri. tr* h iB rbEm..r ol pEfir d bs .nd .4j&u tt. .munr pry.hl. a D..m.d ..9iLl .ontdbudon lom lh. Holdint

tv) o$a Cdrlrnoj{ L.oDr
rh. comp.nv h5.Ld.d ro Eotn-e ci.nt6ln tll.t,l v:lu. ol csr.in fidn r.lh.tsllMt' -d d.lin d b.n.6r,l{ h oth.r4Flh.rslYt lrEru. fi& d8a6.4
{.umulrr.d *fth rh. fvlocr @e $rhh .quw.
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Lendintkan tinance Limited
Notes to fidan.ial statem€nts forthe Year end€d Mar.h 312025

(< in ldkhs unlets otheryise stored)

28 tnlerest lncome

29 Fees and commission incom€

30 Net

:U Other ln.ome

32 Finan(e Costs

33 Fe€s and commission

34

of tinancial instrumentt

Gain on assignment of loans

Ioss on modification of loans

2,885.45

{1,115.88)

6,172.30

(890.89)

Total L,769.57 5,281.41

on Iiaancial instrum€nts at amortised (os!

O,! flnanclalaisets mea3ured al Amorlis€d corl
lnterest on term loans

lnt€rest on fixed depositswith banks

lnterest on lnter-corporate loan

Other charges

Other interest income
Revenue from colending

Onfinanclal asseri mc.rured at Falrvaluc throuth OCI

lnterest income on lnvestments

34,654.12

3,435.71

274.13

o.61

19.90

42,4t4.37

24.74

1.43

30.08

s9,109.67

39,543.89

2,546.74

at,231.74 1,01,335.81Total

s47.49

6,509.41

519.98

Penalinterest income

Commission lncom€ from lnsurance

Other Commission lncome

907.13

2,236.81

74.20
3,218.r5 7,576.8afotal

2?.44

37.99

263.99

o.24
153.81 86.81

201.20

60.11

101.59

Gain on dereco8nitioh of Asset

UnwindinS dircount of security deposit
lnt€r€st on income tax refund
Profit on sale of property, plant & equipm€nts (n€tl

Others
479.44 449.7LTotal

8.005.51

11,295.40

5,001.52

351.87
367.06

829.38

1,232.50

12,574.55

11,584.52

2,4L1.37

354-41
42S.11

1,827.61

602.01

on Flnancl.l ll.bilhles h.a5ur.d .t.motlsad co,t
On debt s€curitaes

On borrowhSs (other than debt s€curiti€s)

On securithation liabilities
On commercial papert

On leas€ obliSation
Oth€rs

On Financlal llabilitie5 m€asuredattairvalue
On debt securitie5

27,OA5.44Total

72,562.399,84S.1SCommissio6 and Brokerage
9,445.15 12,562.39Total

2,359.31

!s,427.93
34,558.33

(197.44)

8,661.35

17,167.58lmpairment of other financial a55et5
25,631.49s2,34t.s7
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Particulars Mar.h 312o25 Me..h :t1 2024

Mar.h 31 202S March 312024

March 31 2025 Mar.h 312024

Mar.h 312024Parti.ulars March 312025

March 312025 March 3r.2024

March 312025 t t\/l*"h 31 ,or4r_.l

29,779.74
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L€ndingkart Finance Umited
Notes to flnancialstatements forthe Y€ar ended Mar.h 312025

(t ln lokhs unlessotheruite stotedl

35

As a prudent measure following the ass€ssment of portfolio performance, the Company has written ofl on-book
loan5 amounting to \ 2,593.41 lakhs and reco8niz€d Bn additional provision of t 458.52 lakhi on other financial
assets related to loans fallint within the 151-80 days past due.geint buc*er. h addirion, rhe Company
recorded a mana8ement overlayof 14,066.61|a*hs during the linancialyear ended March 312025.

Sala.ies and wages

Contrlbution to provident and other funds

Reimbu6ement of ESOP expenses
Leave benefit expense
Gratuity

12,535.30

391.03

2,520.01

479.t3
126.35

419.23

12,014.38

362.81

1,173.23

423.95
121.86

638.79
15,472.O5 74,735.O2

Benefit

36

37 Oth€r

37.1 Auditor'5 R€muneration

'Thh lnclud€s depreciatlon/amorlisation ofTanglble assets, lntangible assets and RiSht of use asseta - Refer

note 14 and 15

Depreciation and amortisation erpenses' 1,002.05 941,.41

1,002.05 941.41Total

79.31

167.81

41.15
38.60

192.11
167.40

7,O25.72

29.S0

2,033.98

2,7A7.61

5,477.79

1,389.13
2@.74

25.39
14.18

329.O2

39.98
73.04

2,050.54

27.90

49.58

51.06

52.83

91.39

89.61
104.73

]Ll.23
45.52

218.05

503.83

7,103.97

21.58

2,150.43

3,388.11

7,999.76
4,544.47

323.95

40.71

27.23
391.20

35.39

136.11

3,092.66

23.06

33.93

3.42

26.16

s6.93

81-57

Repairs and maintenance

Telephone and communication expenlc
FrankinS and stamping expensei
Marketing and sales promotion expense

Audlto/stees and expenses (Refer note 37.1below)
L€tal end Professional aharget

service charges ot outsouac€d employees

Soverelgn Gua€ntee fees

Ucense fees

BrandinS fees

Buslness supporl services

Prlntint and statlon€ry
Iravellin8 expenses

Bank charges

Courier expense5

Software license fees

Rates & taxes

Seclrity expenses

loss on sale of PPE

Oirector sitting fees

Housekeeping exp€nses

Miscellaneous €rpenses
16,906.20 25,657.71lotal

25.61

t.54
0.98

0.98

0.29

3.3s

15.83
2.40Tax audit fee

TP audit fee
ln othaa capaclty :

certification tervices

Reambursement of expenses
21.s829.50Total

INDIA
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tendingkart Iinance [imited
Notea to financial slatemenB Ior the year ended March 31 2025

(< in lokhs unlessothetwise stoted)

666.53

Curent tar expense

current tax for the year
Total Current Tax Expense 666.53

8,112.78

2,739.11
(34.09)

2.77
(1,360.04)

Deferred tares
Change in deferred tax assets

Change in deferred tax llabilities

Acquisition on account of Business combination
(10,817.86) L,357.27Net deferred tax expenre / (income)

Total lax expense (10,817.86) 2,023.80

38 Tar

38.1 Reconciliation of income tax and the

38.2 Movement in Deferred Tax for the ended Mar(h 2025

for the

(39,6s1.82)

2s.17%

19,979.57)

402.83

l,1,24L.67)

0.55

(5.79)

8.26

8,031.3s

25.r7%
2,021.33

Pioflt befoae ihaome tar erpense
Effective Tax Rete

ln(ome tax expenses calculated at Effective tax rate

Reaonaillation
Expenses disallowed
Tax adjustments of earlier years

Others
(10,817.86) z,o21.aoTotal tax expense

(0.34)

(0.21)

4,444.1O

258.52

!,829.32
171.63

837.58

46.99

47.71

347.16

(s,259.41)
(216.18)

(2,802.89)

12.38

13.28
(0.16)

5.29

lL2.s7l

97.66

o.2L

9,713.51

415.14

4,632.21

159.25

754.30

0.15

41.70

54.58

249.50

Defearcd tax asict for deductlble tempo.ary
differences on:
carryforward of unabsorbed losses

Provision for expenses allowed fo. tax purposes on payment basis

Expected credit loss

{Jnamortised processing fee

l-ease liability

Guarantee fees

L,nwinding discount oI Security Depotit

Difference betu/een tax depreciation and depreciation charged for the

financialreporting
lnterest on market linked debentures

lnvestment in T-bills and G-sec
{0.5s) 7,977.Lr(8,112.79)16,090.45Gross Deferred Tax Assets

2,951.18

751.08
581.36

12,242.33)
(1os.2s)

{391.s8)

708.84

645.83

289.78

Deterred tax liability for deduclible temporary

On accountof securitisation and direct assiSnment

Rlght of LJse Asset

Unamortised borrowing cost
4343.62(2,739.16)1,644.45Gioss Oeferred Tax Liabilities

34.09busi combinationne55a5set5Deferred acquired

3,593.49(o.ss)(10.817.86114,446.00Net Deferied tax ch.rtel{c!94!!I!q!!9-y!9l-
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March 31 2025 Mar.h 312024Partiaular5

Recotnlsed ln

ocr
March 31 2024March 31 2025
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Lendingkart Finance l-imited
Notes to financialstatements lor the year ended March 312025

(< in lokhs unless otheflvise stoted)

D€te.red tax asset tor daductible temporary
dltferen(€s on:
Carry forward of unabsorbed losses
Provision for expenses allowed for tar purposes on payment besls

Expeded credit loss

Unamortired prccessing fee
Lease Iiability
Guarantee fees
Unwinding discount of Securaty D€posit
Difference betwern tax depreciation and depreciation charged torthe

financialreporting
lnterest on market linked debentuaes

4,444.70

2s8.62
1,829.32

171.63

837.58

46.99

4L.7!

347,L5

486.89

(10o.97)

{12s.9s)
(104.23)

(309.03)

53.62
(22.ss)

(7.30)

126.7s

(8.26)
4,930.99

149.39

1,703.37

67,40

528.S5

53.62

24.44

34.4L

473.97
Gross Deferred Tax Assets 7,977.11 12.17) (8.26) 7,966.08
Dererred t.x li.bility lor deductible tc.npora.y
difrerenaes on:
On account of securitisation and direct assignment
Right of use fuset
Unamortised borrowing c05t

2,951.18

751.08

681.36

457.41

348.14

553.87

2,493.74
402.40

127.49
Gross Oeferred Tax Liabilaties 4,383.62 1,360.04 1,023.63
Net D€ferred tax .harte/(creditl ror the year 3,S93.49 1,157.27 (8.26) 4,942.45

Movem€nt in Deferred Tax for the ended March 31, 2024

39 E.rn Per Share

'Diluted EP5 being anti dilutive hence Basic and Oiluted Earnin8s per share are same

ot-
9

(B) weighted average nurnber of equity shares for basic earnings per sha.e
(C)Weighted average nlrmber ofequity 5hares for diluted earnings per share*
8a5ic earninS per share in 1(A,/B)
oiluted earning per share in { (A/C)

(A) Net profit/(loss) after tax for the year {28,833.96)
4,65,76,992

4,65,76,992

(61.91)

(51.91)

5,007.55
4,4\47,93!
4,41,87,93L

13.60

13.60

IN DIA
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Deferred tax essets (net) March 31 2024
RecoSnised in
Statement of
Profit or loss

Recognised in
oct

Mar.h 312023
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Lendingkart Finance Limited
Notcs fbrming part of financial statements for the year ended March 3 | 2025

({ in Lqkhs unless otherwise stdted)

40. Segment lnformation

The Company operates in a single reportable segment i.e., financin8, since the nature of the loans is exposed to similar
risk and return profiles. The Company operates in a single geographical segment i.e., domestic, and accordingly, there
are no separate reportable segments as per lnd AS 108 - Operating segments.

41. Related Party Transactions:

Related party disclosures as required under lnd AS 24, " Related party disclosure,,are given below.

(a) List of related parties

* No Remuneration paid during the year ended March 31. 2025 and March 31 2024.

,0 o

Ultimate Holding company
Fullerton Financial Private Limited (w.e.f March
27 2025].

Holding company Lendingkart Technologies Private Limited

Entity having significant influence in Holding company
Fullerton Financial Private Limited (upto March
26 202s)
Mr. Raichand Lunia

Mr. Anindo Mukher.iee

Mr. Hong Ping Yeo

Mr. Pavan Pal Kaushal

Mr. Vikram Godse (Resigned w.e.f. July 31

2024].

Non - Executive Directors

Mr. Pankaj Makkar (Resigned w.e.f. July 24
2024||

Mr. Thallapaka Venakateswara Rao (Appointed
as chairman ofthe Board w.e.f. December 4

20241

Ms. Uma Subramaniam (Cessation w.e.f. April
26 2024 due to demise)
Mr. Sreeram Ranganathan lyer (Appointed
w.e.f. March 29 2024)

Ms. Rashmi Sharma lAppointed w.e.f
November 19 2024)

lndependent director

Ms. Pallavi Kanchan (Appointed w.e.f. July 19
2024. Recused herself from the independent
directorship on Augusl 21 2024.
Mr. Harshvardhan Lunia* - Managing director
(Cessed to be chairman of the Board w.e.f.
December 4 2024).
Mr. Gaurav Singhania - Chief Financial Officer
(resigned w.e.f. June 20 2024)
Ms. Anisha Seth - Chief Financial Officer
(appointed w.e.f. December 12 2024)Key Management Personnel

Mr. Umesh Navani - Company Secretary
(Resigned w.e.f. June 09 2023)
Mr. Darshil Shah (Appointed w.e.f. August 08
2023 and resigned w.e.f . July 24 2024)
Mr. Rochak Dhariwal (Appointed w.e.f. October
2L 2024].

INDIA
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Lendingkart Finance Limited
Notcs fomlingpa offinancial statements for the year ended March 3 I 2025

({ in Lakhs unless olhet w-ite stated)

Sr. No.

1 Lendingkart Technologies Private [amited

lssue of Share capital (including share premium) (Refer
Note U 178,832.721

License fee for use of software (Refer Note 2) 1,837.77 5,s92.60
Corporate guarantee fees charged (Refer Note 2) 1,500.57 1,450.55

Fees for use of'Lendingkart' Brand (Refer Note 2l 238.66 297.20

Business support charges paid 24.27 37.35

Reimbursement of ESOP expenses 2,520.O7 1,o76.36
Reimbursement of collection on behalf of holding
company

'660.46 7,928.74

Unsecured inter-corporate loan taken (10,000.00)
Unsecured inter-corporate loan repaid 7,666.57
Unsecured inter-corporate loan repayment received (696.83)
Processing fees paid on inter-corporate loan 12s.00
lnterest income on inter-corporate loans (278.13].

lnterest expense on inter-corporate loans 7,528.7 4 1,,771.26
Unsecured inter-corporate loan given*1 2,364.99
Rec overy of Business support chargesir 1273.92)

2 Fullerton Financial Private Limited
Guarantee Fees

3 Mr. Thallapaka Venakateswara Rao
Director sitting fees 24.25 13.00

4 Ms. Uma Subramaniam

Director sitting fee 11.00

5 Mr. Sreeram Ranganathan lyer
Director sitting fees 16.75

6 Ms. Rashmi Sharma

Director sitting fee 5.25

7 Transaction with the companies in which Director of the
Company is the director
Ruptub Solutions Private Limited
Lodging & Boarding

One 97 Communications Limited

Commission Exp 0.29
SRO-FT Develo pment Foundation

fv'lembership Fees 5.50
Oigital Lenders Association of lndia
Membership / Sponsorship fees 18.00

7 Transactions with KMP

Salary and perquisites (Refer Note 3) 81.00

(b) Transactions during the year with related parties

* Excludes 50% reversal of goods and services tax input credit.
**These assets are acquired on account of business combination.

\\. qHi r
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Nature of transactions* March 31 2025 March 31 2024

143.15
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Lendingkart Finance Limited
Notes fonrring pan offinancial statements for the year ended March 3l 2025

({ in Lakhs unless olherwise sldted)

(c) Balance receivable/(payable) to Related parties

(d) Capital contribution in the company

(e) Guarantees given by Ultimate Holding and Holding Company

Note l: Pursuant to Board Resolution dated October 29 2024 and March 31 2025, the company allotted preference shares
to the Lendingkart Technologies Private Limited. For detailed terms of preference shares refer note 26 to the financial
statement.

such expert, license fees are revised from Aprll 01 2022. License fees include pla tform fees for use of platform of the
and Guarantee fees is charged by the
pany does not pay the Guarantee fees
siders the amount payable as Deemed

Holding company. Branding fees is for use of Brand name of the Holding Company.
Holding Company for providing guarantees to the lenders of the Company. The Com
to holding company but charges the same in its statement of profit and loss and con
capital contri bution from the Holdi

Note 2: The Company has entered into License Agreement with Holding Company dated June 19 2015 which was further
renewed on February 14 2023 for use of the licensed softwar€ to digitally lend money to its customers.

The services provided by the Holding Company to the Company are of a specialised nature and the company has engaged
the services of an expert to assess the arm's length price for this inter-company transaction. Based on the assessment of

., .,/

1 Lendingkart Technologies Private Limited

)Borrowings (includi ng interest of 1 150.20 (8,483.54) {10,080.33)
Loans and Advances (includin interest of < 94.40 7,762.57
Other Pa ables (s6s.23) (1,006.68)

2 Man Personnel5a to (21 -26)

Lendingkart Techn ologies Private Limited
1 Equitv share capital 4,41.8.79 4,4r8.79
2 Compulsorily Convertible Preferenceshare 14,97 6.51
3 Securities Premium 77,L38.66 67,282.4s
4 Deemed Capital contribution 4,774.93 2,574.36

Fullerton Financial Private Limited - Ultimate Holding
Compqny

Loans borrowed from financial institutions and Banks
guaranteed by the Holding Company (including CC facility)

Sanctioned amount 25,000.00
Outstanding amount 7,354.08

Lendingkart Technologies Private Limited - Holding

1
Loans borrowed from financial institutions and Banks
guaranteed by the Holding Company (including CC facility)

Sanctioned amount 90,5s0.00 1,29.350.00
Outstanding amount 38,841.65 86,207.24

2

Non-Convertible debentures issued to financial institutions,
banks and other companies guaranteed by the Holding
Com

Sanctioned amount 89,340.00 96,540.00
Outstanding amount 65,857.14 86,659.58

INDIA
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Sr. No. Nature of transactions March 31 2025 March 31 2024
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Sr. No. Nature of transa€tions March 31 2025 March 312024

Sr. No. Nature of transactions March 31 2025 March 31 2024



Lendingkart Finance Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year cnded March 3l 2025

({ in Lakhs u ess othenrise stuted)

There are no provision for doubtful debts/ advances or amounts written off or written back for debts due from/ due to
related parties.

42. Relationship with struck off companies

Sr.

No.
Name of struck-off Company

Nature of
transactions

O/s balance
as on March

31 2025

O/s balance
as on March

312024

Relationship
with

Company
Enfros lndia Solutions Private

Limited
2 Professional Biotech Private Limited

3

4
Provided term

loans*
CDS Life Sciences O c Pvt Ltd

1
Karyana99 Marketing Private

Limited
Mentor Corporate Management

Consultants ap Private Limited

Arsh Wardrobes Private Limited

3.66 Borrower

2.42 Borrower

3.04 3.04

3.15 Borrower

0.33 Borrower
0.08 0.08 Borrower

Borrower

Borrower

0.98

1,6.25 76.25

3.21 Borrower

Lodging & Boarding

and Reloaction
0.03

*The above term loans are written off in the books of accounts

The above disclosure has been prepared basis the relevant information compiled by the Company on best effort basis which

has been relied upon by the auditors

Holding comPan

9

10

44

45

Based on the information available with the company, there are no micro, small and medium enterprises (MsMEs)to whom

the company has paid interest, 
"|. 

;;;';;; ;;ti"tt" on.o*'*nains amounts (under'the ?:"-'l:i":: 
of section 16 of

Micro, small and Medium gnt"rpris", b"r"ropment Act, 2006) during the-year ended March 31 2025 is Nil (March 31 2024

- Nil).

46

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to < 2'200 47 lakhsintheFY 2024-25lF 'Y 2023-24-Nil)'

AspersEBloperationalcircularsEBl/Ho/DDHs/P/clRl2o2Tl6T3datedAUgustlo2o2l,asamended,thecompanyisnota
Large CorPorate.

EmploYee stock oPtion Plans

The Holding comPanY has EmPloYee

has sranted options to acquire its eq

grorip policv/ arrangement, Holding

the same under the emPloYee cost a

Stock oPtion Plans ("ESOP") sch

uitv shares that would vest in a g

CompanY has cross charged the

eme in force.
raded manner to ComPanY 's emploYees. Based on th

lr.value af such EsoP. The companY has r

Under ESOP scheme, Holding ComPanY

fa

t-
s

)r

Percentage to the total Loans

and Advances in the nature of

loans

Amount of loan or advance in the nature of loan

outstanding
Type of Borrower

7.20%1,7 62.s7

47

mounting to { 2,520 01 for thq

'7"

Acc

ch 31 2025 (March 31 2024: {

ST

Note 3: Provisions for gratuity, compensated absences and other long term service benefits are made for the Company

as a whole and the amounts pertaining to the key management personnel are not specifically identified and hence are
not included above.

1

Essense Welness lndia Private
Limited

Borrowe r

Vieux Advertising Private Limited 3.15

5 8anwery Healthcare Private Limited 0.33

6

0.98

8

Jade Hospitality Private Limited Vendor

43. Loans granted to related parties which is repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment

INDIAo



l,endingkart Finance Limited
Notcs lbnring part offinancial statements for the year ended March 3l 2025

(t in Lakhs unless otherwise ststed)

48. Leases

where the Company is lessee:

The Company's siSnificant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases for premises which are renewable on
mutual consent at agreed terms. These leases have an average life of between one and nine years. Lease rentals have an
escalation ranging between 5% to 7O%. Leases for which the original lease term is less than twelve months has been
accounted as short term leases.

i. Set out below are the carrying amount of right-of-use assets recognized and movement during the year:

ii. Set out are the ca tn amount of lease liabilities and movement durin the

iii. The expense relatinB to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability is as follows:

iv. The undiscounted maturity analysis of lease liabilities at March 31 2025 is as follows:

Not later than one year 952.36 928.69

Later than one year and not later than five years 2,654.45 3,116.76
Later than five years 530.10 7 44.71

Total undiscounted lease liabilities 4,136.90 4,793.56

v. The effective interest rate of lease liabilities for the year ended March 31 2025 is 13.68% (March 31 2024: 13.58%).

vi. The followin are the amount nized in statement of or loss.

Balanc€ at the beginning of the year 2,984,28 1,598.83

Additions 596.32 2,520.72

closure 337.05 578.00

Depreciation expense 677.48 557.27

Ealance at the end of the year 2,566.06 2,984.24

Opening Balance 3,327.97 2,100.05

Additions 396.01 2,204.67

Accretion of interest 425.71 367.06

Closure lt77 .t4l (512.88)

Payments (93s.1s) (730.94)

closing Balance 3,036.80 3,327,97

Short-term leases 167.84 704.73

557.27Depreciation expense right of use of assets 617.48

367.06Interest expense on lease liabilities 425.r!
704.7 3Expense relating to short term leases (included in other expenses)

(201.20)l'23.44].Loss/ (Gain) on derecoBnition of assets
a27.861,246.99Total Amount recognired in statement oI profit and loss account

INDIA
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Particulars March 312025 March 31 2024

Particulars March 31 2025 March 31 2024

Lease Liability March 312025 March 312024

Particulars March 312025 March 312024

Particulars March 31 2025 March 312024

r .84



Lendingkart Finance Limited
Notcs lorming part offinancial statements for the year ended March 3l 2025

({ in LqLhs unless otherurise staled)

Professional Fees 16.58

Software Expenses o.o7 Lr.87
Digital Marketing 2.O9

7.48Miscellaneous Expenses

Other Finance Cost 150.59 7.7 2

Total 152.76 45.84

49. Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrualbasis)

50 contingent liability and Commitments

a) ContingentLiability

b) Capital and other commitments

51. Retirement benefit plans

Defined benefit obligation
contribution to Gratuity fund (Unfunded):

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 7972. Under the Gratuity Act, an employee who has

completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefits. The level of benefits provided depends on the employee's

length of service, managerial grade and salary at the time of retirement

tn acrordance with lnd AS 19, actuarial valuation has been carried out in respect of the aforesaid defined benefit plan of
gratuity based on the following assumptions:

A.

Guarantees excluding financial guarantees

2,645.80 6,846.42
Credit enhancements provided by the Company towards
securitisation (including corporate guarantee, cash collateral and

loan assets retained as Minimum retention Requirement (MRR)

23,614.28First loss default guarantee in case of co-lending transactions lL,540.54
Matters pertaining to Taxation

52.84Penalty appeal uls 27OA for FY 19-20, filed before CIT(A) pending

for litigation
Appeal against order passed u/s 74 of the CGST Act, 2017 - FY 19-
)n

13.93

Appeal against order passed u/s 74 of the cGsT Act, 2017 - FY 20-

21

7.72

1,695.08Loan sanctioned not yet disbursed 895.76

55.25
Other capital commitments (Excludes 50% reversal of goods and
service tax input credit)

40.oo%

30.00%

35.00%

35.OO'

0.00%

7.15%

72.0O'/"

40.oo.,i

30.00%

35.OO%

35.00%

o.o0%

6.55%
72.OO'/o

Discount rate (per annum)

Rate of salary increase

Rate of employee turnover (per annuml

Age band

25 & Below

25 to 35

35 to 45

45 to 55

55 & Above
INDIA
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Particulars March 312025 March 31 2024

DescriDtion of the capital and other commitments March 31 2025 March 31 20?4

i. Key actuarial assumptions:

Description of the contingent liability March 312025 March 312024

Mar.h 31 2024March 31 2025Particulars



l,cndingkart Finance Limited
Notcs tbmring pa( of financial statements for the year ended March 3l 2025

({ in Lakhs rmless other$'ise stated)

ii. Movement in defined benefit obligation:

iii. Assets and liabilities in the balance sheet:

iv. Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

v. Loss/(Gain) recognised in the statement of Other comprehensive income (OCl):

vi. Reconciliation of net asset/(liability) recognised:

vii. Sensitivityanalysis:

Defined benefit obliSation at the beginning ofthe year

lnterest on defined benefit obligation
Current service cost
(Benefits paid)

Remeasurements due to :

Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from change in financial assumptions
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising on account of experience changes

3 31.99

21.38

104.97
(70.32)

7.40
(6.06)

277.73

13.87

107.99
(33.83)

1.58

37.25

Present Value of obligation at the end of the year 389.37 331.99

Present value ofthe defined benefit obligation at the end of the year

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year

Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)

389.37 331.99

Net liability recognised in the balance sheet 331.99389.37

Current Service Cost

lnterest cost
to4.97
21.38

107.99
73.87

Net gratuity cost re.ognised in the current year 126.35 121.86

Actuarial loss / (gain) on post-employment benefit obligation 1.35 32.83

1.35 32.83Total remeasurement cost / (credit) for the year recognised in OCI

Net defined benefit liability/(asset) as at the beginning of the year

Expense charged to Statement of Profit and Loss

(Benefit paid)

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

331.99

126.35

17o.32l
1.35

271.73

121.86

(33.83)

32.83

Net Liability/(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 389.37 331.99

383.18

395.75

394.t4
384.61

377.2L

409.r7

326.77

337.38

336.10

327.7!
377.03

348.63

lmpact of increase in 0.5% on rate of discounting

lmpact of decrease in 0.5% on rate of discounting

lmpact of increase in 0.5% on rate of salary increase

lmpact of decrease in 0.5% on rate of salary increase

lmpact of increase in 10% on rate of employee turnover
lmpact of decrease in 10% on rate of employee turnover

INDIA
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Particulars March 312025 March 312024

Particulars March 31 2025 March 31 2024

Particulars March 312025 March 312024

Particulars March 31 2025 March 31 2024

Particulars March 31 2025 March 312024

March 31 2025 March 312024Particulars
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l,cndingkart Finance Limited
Notcs fbrming pan offinancial statements for the year ended March 3l 2025

({ in Lakhs unless othen/ise stdled)

Expected benefits for year 1

Expected benefits for year 2

Expected benefits for year 3

Expected benefits for year 4
Expected benefits for year 5
Expected benefits for years 6 to 10

79.93
10.43

68.33
69.06

57.95

723.29

74.47
57.99

63.62

48.03
49.99

772.76

viii, Matu ana of benefit obl

ix. The Experience adjustment on defined benefit obligation and plan assets;

B. Compensatedabsences:

Profile

c. Provident Iund;

The Company contributes to Provident Fund towards employees which is the defined contribution plan for qualifying

employees. Under this Scheme, the Company is required to contribute specified percentage of the payroll cost to fund the

benefits. The Company recognised t 387.00 (March 31 2024:1361.22) for provident fund contributions in the Statement

of profit and loss.

corporate Social Responsibility Exp€nses

Details as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is as under:

Nature of CSR Activities:

F!LE!!a!!E!-Yce402]!iLNot Appl icable.

For FinancialYear 2023-24: Not Applicable.
FIN

o

T

Defined benefit obligation 389.37 331.99 2rL.73 776.37 757.29
Plan assets

Surplus/ (deficit) (389.37) (3 31.99) (211.13) 1776.371 (1s7.29)
Experience adjustment of plan assets

Experience adjustment of plan
liabilities

(6.06) 31.25 (2.e1) (6s.s6)

Present value of unfunded obligations 474.92 679.90

Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 479.t3 423.95

Discount rate (p.a.) 6.5s% 1 .75%

Salary escalation rate (p.a) 12.OO% t2.oo%

Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year

Amount of expenditure incurred
Transferred to CSR unspent account for ongoing projects

Shortfall at the end of the year

Total of previous years shortfall
Details of related party transactions

INDIAcHi
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Particulars March 31 2025 March 31 2024

Paniculars March 31 2025 March 312024

(

Particulars
March 31

2025
March 31

2024
March 3l

2023
March 31

2022
March 3X

202L

29.08

Particulars March 312025 March 31 2024
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l-rodingkart Finance Limited
Notes fonning part of financial statements for the year ended March 3l 2025

({ in Lallhs unless otherwise stdted)

53. Capital:

The Company actively manages its capital base to cover risks inherent in its business and meet the capital adequacy
requirement prescribed by Rgl. The adequacy of the Company's capital is monitored using, among other measures, the
regulations issued by the RBl.

i, Capital management

Obiective:
The Company's objective is to maintain appropriate levels of capital to support its business strategy taking into account the
regulatory, economic and commercial environment. The Company aims to maintain a strong capital base to support the
risks inherent to its business and growth strategies. The Company endeavors to maintain a capital base higher than the
mandated regulatory capital at alltimes.

Planning:
The Company's assessment of capital requirements is aligned with its planned groMh which forms part of an annual
operating plan which is approved bythe Board and also a long-range strateSy. These Browth plans are aligned to assessment
of risks- which include credit, liquidity and interest rate.

The management monitors its capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR) on a monthly basis and the same is also
monitored in Assets Liability Management Committee (ALCO).

The Company endeavors to maintain its CRAR higher than the mandated regulatory norm. Accordingly, capital
augmentation is planned well in advance to ensure adequate funding for its growth.

* The above excludes the interest accrued and ElR.

54. Transfers of assets:

i, Transf€r€d of financial assets that were not derecognised in their entirety

(a) Securitisation
The Company has Securitized certain loans, however it has not transferred substantially all risks and

rewards, hence these assets have not been de-recognized in its entirety,

F,1

o o
D

Z
7

Tier lcapital
Tier ll capital

38,116.05
2,507.25

39,096.02
2,282.27

(a) Total capital 40,677.1O 47374.23

Capital Risk Asset Ratio (%) - Tier I Capital (%)

Capital Risk Asset Ratio (%) - Tier ll Capital (%)

Risk weighted assets (RWA) 1,13,932.30

33.45%

2.20%

1,92,433,63

20.32%

7.|aYo

(b) Capital Risk Asset Ratio (%) 3s.65% 27.50%

(c) Outstanding amount* of subordinated debt raised as

Tier-ll capital (Raised during the year t Nil, previous year {
3,000) 4,500.00 5,500.00
(d) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt lnstruments NA NA

Carrying amount of transferred assets measured at
amortised cost (including loans placed as collateral)
Carrying amount of associated liabilities (Debt securities -
measured at amortised cost)
Fair value of assets
Fair value of associated liabilities
Net position at Fair Value

11,579.51

10,315.67

77,579.57
10,315.67

\2$.44

42,627.5L
38,917.88

3,709.63

42,627 .57

38,917.88

*

ii. Regulatory capital

Particulars March 3X 2025 March 31 2024

March 31 2024Particulars March 31 2025

it\
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Lendingkart Finance Limited
Notes lbrming part of financial statements for the year ended March 3l 2025

({ in Lakhs unless otherwise ststed)

ii. Transfer of financial assets that were derecognized in their entirety.

55, Events after reporting date:

There have been no events after the reporting date that require adjustment to, or disclosure in these financial statements

56. Fair values:
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the
principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e,, an exit price),
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique.

ln order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hieralchy of valuation
techniques.

Valuation framework

The Company's valuation framework includes:
. Benchmarking prices against observable market prices or other independent sources;
. Development and validation of fair valuation models using model logic, inputs, outputs and adjustments.

These models are subject to approvals by various functions including risk, treasury and finance functions. Finance function
is responsible for establishing procedures, governing valuation and ensuring fair values are in compliance with a€counting
standards.

Valuation methodologies adopted

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost except for market linked
debentures and cash and bank balances which are measured at fair value through profit and loss and investments
which are measured at fair value through OCl.

tair value of Market linked debentures is derived from independent valuer. The valuation is done based on
discounted cashflow method. The option portion is projected using Monte Carlo simulations and Geometric
Brownian Motion is used to project the lndex levels into the future. The lndex levels are pro.iected based on certain
assumptions and the value of debenture is then arrived at by discountiog the respective cashflows.

The Company has determined that the carrying values of expenses payables, bank overdrafts and other current
liabilities are a reasonable approximation of their fair value and hence their carrying value are deemed to be fair
value.

57. Fair value hierarchy:

The Company determines fair values of its financial instruments according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1: valuation based on quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active
markets that the Companv can access at the measurement date.

Level 2: valuation based on using observable inputs: financial instruments with quoted prices for similar instruments in

active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued
using models where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3: valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: - financial instruments valued using valuation techniques
where one or more significant inputs are unobservable. This is the case for contingent consideration and indemnification

I

aSsets

The Company has not transferred any assets that are derecognized in their entirety where the Company continues to hav€
continuing involvement.

rl
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Lendingkart Finance Limited
Notes fbmling part of financial statements for the year ended March 3 I 2025

(a in Lakhs unless otheneise staled)

Financiali
by ca

Financial assets:
Trade Receivables

Loans

lnvestment
Other financial assets

157.63
1,38,235.30

43,855.04
1,987.83

898.05
2,73,008.22

59,37r.41
Totalfinancialassets 7,42,247.97 1,987.83 2,73,277.64

Financial liabilitier:
Trade Payables

Debt Securities
Borrowings (other than
debt securities)
Subordinated Debt
Other financial liabilities

838.92
74,596.47

81,650.33
4,335.09

19,845.72

2,991.35
745.56

91,887.60

1,37,244.O9
5,477.12

30,083.03

8,458.21

Total tinancial liabilities 1,85,256.s3 2,991.35 2,65,47L.40 8,458.21

Financial instruments by category

Fair value of financial instruments measured at amortized cost:

Financial assets;
Trade Receivables

Loans

Other financial assets

Level 3

Level 3

Level 3

751 .63

1,38,235.30
43,855.04

898.05
2,r3,OO8.22

59,377.4r

Total financial assets r,42,247 .97 2,73,277.68

Financial liabilities:
Trade Payables

Debt Securities
Borrowings (other than debt securities)
Subordinated Debt

Other financial liabilities

Level 3

Level 3

Level 3

Level 3

Level 3

838.92
74,596.47
81,650.33

4,335.09

79,845.12

745.56
91,887.60

r37,284.09
5,477.72

30,083.03

Total financial liabilities 1,85,266.53 2,65,41L.4O

Fair value of financial instruments At FVTPL:

Fair value of financial instruments des at FVTOCI:

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents and bank balances is equal to the fair value.

58. Financial risk management:

The Company is exposed to certain financial risks namely credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk i.e. interest risk and
foreign currency risk. The Company's primary focus is to achieve better predictability of financial markets and minimize
potential adverse effects on its financial performance by effectively managing the risks on its financial assets and liabilities.

The principal objective in Company's risk management processes is to measure and monitor the various risks associated
with the Company and to follow policies and procedures to address such risks. The Company's risk management framework
is driven by its Eoard and its subcommittees including the Audit Committee, the Asset Liability Mana ttee
and the Risk Management Committee. The Company importance to prudent lending

o

8,458.21
Financial liabilities:
Debt Securitie5 Level 2 2,99\.35

FinancialAssets:
lnvestment Level 1 1,987.83

INDIA
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l-cndingkart Financ€ Limited
Notcs lbrming part offinancial statements for the year ended March 3 | 2025

({ in Lakhs unless otherwise state.l)

bureaus, personal verification of a custome/s business and residence, technical and legal verifications. For credit risk refer
to note 58 (C).

A. Liquidity Risk:

The Company's Board of Oirectors has overall responsibility of management of liquidity risk. The Board decides the strategic
policies and procedures of the Company to manage liquidity risk in accordance with approved risk tolerance limits.

The Asset Liability Committee of the Company consisting of the Company's senior management, is responsible for ensuring
adherence to the risk tolerance limits as well as implementing the liquidity risk management strat€gy of the Company. The
Company continuously monitors liquidity in the market; and as a part of its ALCO strategy, the Company maintains a

liquidity buffer managed by an active investment desk to reduce this risk.

The Company also has a Risk Oversight Committee reporting to the Board and responsible for evaluating overall risks faced
by the Company including liquidity risk.

The Company continues to diversify its sources of borrowings with an emphasis on longer tenor borrowings. This strategy
of balancing varied sources of funds and long tenor borrowings has helped the company to maintain a healthy asset liability
position.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financial assets and
liabilities:

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analyzed (maturity analysis) according to when they are to be
recovered or settled.

FlnancialAssets

Cash and Cash equivalents
Eank balances other than Cash and Cash

equivalents
Trade Receivables

Loans

lnvestments

Other financial assets

23,803.93

33,824.13

157.63

92,829.95

1,987.83

35,286.19

83,742.O5

8,s68.8s

819.16

43,212.31

37 ,t79.45
37,444.37

898.05
7,r8,899.24 1,57,604.80

16,099.10

4,676.45

Total FinancialAssets 1,87,889.65 93,130.07 2,37,633.42 1,78,380.35

Financial Liabilities
Debt Securities (Other than securitisation
liabilities)
Securitisation liabilities
Borrowings (other than debt securities)

Subordinated Debt
Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

64,552.89

10,154.79

56,411.37

2,047.55

838.92

t2,a78.73

28,208.33

890.38

22,327.49

4,857.27

8,057.09

59,853.76

32,372.78

65,333.75

L,778.90

745.56

17,518.65

57 ,63L.r6

6,545.70

46,658.76

6,904.82

74,O29.97

Total Financial Liabilities r,46,484.25 64,350.57 7,77,602.80 7,31,770.41

Assets

Financialassets
Cash and Cash equivalents
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents
Trade Receivables

Loans

lnvestments
Other financial assets

23,719.66
32,499.29

157.63

69,577 .25

1,987.83

35,286.19

68,6s8.05

756.23

8,568.85

23,719.66
33,255.52

157.63

1,38,235.30

1,987.83

43,855.04

INDIA l-

1

(,

Financial assets
March 31 2025 March 31 2024

Within l year After l vear Within l year After 1 year

As at March 312025 Within l year After l year Total

,. \



l,endingkart Finance Limited
Notcs lbrming part offinancial statements for the year ended March 3l 2025

({ in Lakhs unless olherwise staled)

Non-financial assets

Current tax assets (Net)
Deferred tax asset (Net)
Property, plant and equipment
lntangible assets

lntangible assets under development
Goodwill
Right-of-use assets

Other non-financial assets

2,778.7 4

352.19

74,446.O0

290.42
24.98

52.72

589.23
2,566.06

2,774.7 4

14,M6.OO

290.42

24.98

52.72

589.23
2,566.06

352.79
Total assets 1,55,759.37 95,952.35 2,6L,777.72

Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade Payables

Debt Securities
Borrowings (Other than debt securities)
Subordinated Debt

Other financial liabilities

Non-Financial liabilities
Provisions

Other non-financial liabilities

57,195.80
60,682.29

t,523.79
836.74

12,506.03

234.29
724.91

24,392.O2

20,968.04
2,811.30

2.LA

7,339.69

970.00

87,5A7.A2

81,650.33
4,335.09

838.92
t9,845.72

7,204.29

724.97

Total liabilities 1,33,703.85 56,443.23 1,90,187.08

AssetS

Financial assets

Cash and Cash equivalents
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents
Trade Receivables

Loans

Other financial assets

Non-financial assets

Current tax assets (Net)

Deferred tax asset (Net)

Property, plant and equipment
Other lntangible assets

RiBht-of-use assets

Other non-financial assets

37,086.60
30,013.06

898.05
83,690.28

43,272.3t

415.58

!,293r7.94
16,099.10

4,507 .45

3,593.49

538.06
52.00

2,984.28

4,191.88
37,086.60

34,204.94
898.0s

2,L3,OO8.22

59,37 7.4L

4,507.45
3,s93.49

538.06

52.00

2,984.28
416.58

Totalasset5 1,95,376.88 1,61,2a4.2O 3,55,561.08

Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade Payables

Debt Securities
Borrowings (Other than debt securities)
subordinated Debt
Other fi nancial liabilities

Non-Financial liabilities
Provisions

Other non-fi oancial liabilities

745.s6

50,751.98
88,990.43

1,,036.37

77,696.54

200.26

1,016.51

49,593.83
48,293,66

4,434.75
72,386.49

811.63

592.81

7 45.56

1,00,345.81

7,37,284.09

5,47r.72
30,083.03

1,011.89

1,609.32
Total liabilities

--:= -.\.1,60,437.65 1,15,113.17 2,76,550.82
n lines to
t'vtB^t

*The Company holds adequate liquid assets and s re mismatch within board a

As at March 31 2025 Within l year After 1 year Total

A5 at March 31 2024 Within l year After 1 year Total

AD
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o
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Lrndingkart Finance Limited
Notcs fornting part offinancial statements for the year ended March 3l 2025

(( in Lalihs ualess otherwke state.l)

B. Market Risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flow of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in the
market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The Company do not have any exposure
to equity price risk.

{i) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign currency rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primary to
certain vendors in trade payables and borrowings.

Foreign currency exposure risk
The Company's exposure for foreign currency risk at the end of reporting period are as follows:

tore cu 5en

(ii) lnterest rate risk

The Company is subject to interest rate risk, since the rates of loans and borrowing might fluctuate over the tenure of
instrument. lnterest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond control, including the monetary policies of the
Reserve Bank of lndia, deregulation of the financial sector in lndia, domestic and international economic and political
conditions, inflation and other factors. ln order to manage interest rate risk, the Company seek to optimize borrowing
profile between fixed and floating interest bearing loans.

Carrying value of borrowinSs:

Sensitivity analysis:
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables
being constant) of the Company's Statement of profit and loss:

\
I

Expenses payable 998.00 0.83

Foreign currency exposure risk
lncrease by 5%

Decrease by 5%

0.04
(0.04)

Debt Securities (floating) 3,989.64 72,916.87
Debt Securities (fixed) 71,594.74 87,429.00
Borrowings (other than debt securities )(floating) 35,239.48 62,382.40
Borrowings (other than debt securities )(fixed) 46,410.8s 74,907.69
Subordinated debts (fixed) 4,335.09 5,477.72

Total Borrowings 1,67,573.24 2,43,tO7.O2

Debt securities, Borrowints (other than debt
securities) & subordinate debt

cHt
Decrease 50 basis oints

lncrease by 50 basis points (196.1s)

196.15

(376.s0)

376.50

INDIA r

FI

7r

Particulars
March 31 2025 March 31 2024

U5D I in Lakhs U5D I in lakhs

Particulars March 312025 March 31 2024

lmpact on profit before tax
Foreign current rate

March 312025 March 31 2024

lmpact on profit before taxlnterest rate
March 312025 March 312024

o



Lcndingkart Finance Limited
Notes forming part offinancial statements for the year ended March 3l 2025

({ in Lakhs unless otheru)ise stated)

C. Credit Risk:

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising out of a customer or counterparty failing to meet their repayment obligatio ns
to the company. The lending model focuses on sME Lending. The nature of the product is unsecured.

The company assesses the credit quality of all financial instruments that are subject to credit risk.

Classification of financial assets under various stages
The company classifies its financial assets in three stages having the following characteristics:

' Stage 1: unimpaired and without significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition on which a 12-month
allowance for ECL is recognised.

' StaSe 2: a siSnificant increase in credit risk since initial recognition on which a lifetime ECL is recognised.

' stage 3: objective evidence of impairment, and are therefore considered to be in default or otherwise credit
impaired on which a lifetime ECL is recognised.

Unless identified at an earlier stage, all financial assets are deemed to have suffered a significant increase in credit risk
when they are 30 days past due (OPD) and are accordingly transferred from stage 1to stage 2. For stage 1 an EcL allowance
is calculated based on a 12 month Point in Time (PlT) probability weighted probability of default (pD). For stage 2 and 3
assets a life time ECL is calculated based on a lifetime pD.

The company has calculated ECL using three main components: a probability of default (pD), a loss given default (LGD)
and the exposure at default (EAD) along with an ad.iustment considering forward macro-economic conditions,

Financial instruments other than loans, lnterest receivable on assignment of loans and Receivable from co-lenders were
subjected to simplified ECL approach under lnd AS 109 'Financial lnstruments' and accordingly were not subject to
sensitivity of future economic conditions.

Below is the summary for the approach adopted by the Company for various components of ECL viz. pD, EAD and LGD
usinB empirical data where relevant:

Probability of Default (PDl
The company's operates with its internal rating models in which its customers are rated from "A" lo "E" using internal
grades. The models incorporate both qualitative and quantitative information and, in addition to information specific to
the borrower, utilises supplemental external information that could affect the borrowe/s behaviour.

The risk segmentation has been based on the behaviour model risk buckets. Behaviour model is scored at regular intervals,
and incorporate borrower's updated credit information r€port, repayment performance & initial risk rating, to assess the
future risk of Soing default. PDs are then adjusted for lnd As 109 EcL calculations to incorporate forward lookin8
information and the lnd AS 109 Stage classification of the exposure.

Stage 1: based on internal behaviour model (12 months, probability of default)
Stage 2: based on days past due (lifetime probability of default)
Stage 3: 100%

Exposure at Default (EAD)
The exposure at default represents the outstanding and interest accrued of the financial instruments subject to the
impairment calculation

Loss given Default (LGD)

LGD values are assessed based on key characteristics that are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows. The applied
data is based on historically collected loss data.

I
9

rl
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Openint bahnce o, gors
cerrylnt amount

Transrers durinS the year

Tra nsters to Stage 1

Transfe6 to Stage 2

Transfersto Stage 3

Chan8es to contractual cash
flows due to modifications
not resulting in
dereco8nition

Changes in openinS credit

New credit exposurcs
durinS the year, net of

Amounts written ofl

2,07,558.60

L8/.37

17,328.13)

'22,242.O21

(94,5S0.@)

48,835.11

5,O43.79

(119.12)

7,334.27

(3,786.90)

(3,331.39)

984.52

6,349.73

(6s.2s)

(6.1s)

26,024.92

(12,223.01)

1,592.52

11s,427.931

2,18,952.12

(1,10,204.40)

51,512.15

(1s,427.93)

1,73,333.13

116.68

13,619.721

174,592.s41

(89,06s.r1)

1,41,386.16

4, 983.5 1

(95.4s)

3,519.72

(2,733.64)

{2,925.11)

2, r95. 76

4,152.35

120.23)

't 7,326_ta

{9,485.84)

2,434.62

(8,661.3s)

1,83.058.99

11,01,476.06)

,.46,O2O.54

(8,661.35)

Closint balance of grosi
cerryinS amount

1,32,357.93 5,125.18 5,348.83 1,44,831.95 2,O7,55A.60 5,043.79 6,349.73 2,t8,952-12

Lendingkart Finance Limited
Notcs forming pan offinancial statements for the year ended March 3l 2025

(? in Lakhs unless olherwise stqted)

Analysis of changes in the grots carrying amount and corresponding ECL allowances in .elation to loans is as follows:

' nter-company loan is excluded from the above

The table below summarises the gross carrying values and the associated allowances for expected credit loss (ECL) stage wise for
loan portfolio:

As at March 31 2025:

Opening balan@ ot ECL

Transfers durang the year

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfe6 to StaSe 2

Transfers to Stage 3

ChanSes to contractual cash
flows due to modifications
not resulting in
derecognilion

ChanSes in op€ning credit

N€w credit exposures
during the year, net of

Amounts written off

2,954.O2

33.78

1112.74)

(411.02)

{866.81)

2,749.92

(20.86)

113.43

l6s7.ZOl

1,102-40

863.36

266.95

13,966.01

1,274.78

(15,427.93)

2,126.52

'12.921
(0.691

1,068.22

5,943.90

14,201.60

3,641.65

(15,427.93)

3,067.21

14.54

(83.18)

(391.64)

(1,s41.391

1,888.48

(s.36)

83.18

(670.89)

969.66

109.40

381.37

2,104.41

1,062.53

6,354.84

1,277.21

(8,661.3s)

(s.18)

6,141.34

4,922.85

3.541.06

(8,661.3s)
Closlng balance ot ECt

3,747,L5 1,568.08 2,943.99 8,359.22 2,954.O2 863.35 2,126.52 5,943.90

Gross carrying amountr
Allowance for ECL

ECL Coverage ratio

7,32,357.93
3,7 47.75

2.83%

6,125.18
1,668.08
27.23%

6,348.83
2,943.99

46.37%

1,44,83r.95
8,359.22

5,77%

INDIA

F

r
s.

o

* lnter-company loan is excluded from the above.

Particulars Stage I Stage 2 Stase 3 Total

March 312025' March 312024

Stat€ 1 Stage 2 State 3 Total Stage 1 State 2 5ta8e 3 Total

Paniculars
March 312025 March 312024

StaSe 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stag€ 2 Stage 3 Total



I -endingkart Finance Limited
\()lcs fornring part of financial statements for the year ended March 3l 2025

({ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

ECL Covera ratio

Gross carrying amount
Allowance for ECL

2,07,558.60
2,954.02

t.42%

6,349.73
2,726.52

33.49%

2,t8,9s2.t2
5,943.90

2.71%

As at March 31 2024:

The company is a registered Member Lending lnstitute with credit Guarantee Fund for Micro Units and has claimed benefit in EcL
of I 4,749.84 as at March 31 2025. (March 31 2024: I 4,987.59). The ECL Coverage calculated above is after considering the said
benefit.

Measurement uncenainty and sensitlvlty analysis of ECL estimatesi
Expected credit loss impairment loss allowances recognised in the financial statements reflect the effect of a range of possible
economic outcomes, calculated on a probability-weighted basis. The recognition and measurement of ECL involves the use of
estimation. lt is necessary to formulate multiple forvvard looking economic forecasts and its impact as an integral part of ECL
model.

To secure its eligible pool, Company takes guarantee cover for its portfolio under Credit Guarantee Fund Scheme for Micro Units
(cGFMU) and Credit Guarantee Fund Trust for Micro and small Enterprises (CGTMSE). As on March 31 2025, outstanding amount
of 1 88,776.90 (loan assets) is covered under this scheme (March 37 2024: 1 7,61,957.48]|. The Company has paid Sovereign
guarantee fees against the same of < 3,661.33 (March 31 2024: < 4,023.61) which is presented under Note 37 Other expenses.
Th is has helped the Compa ny to offset I 7 ,272.07 worth ot credit losses (March 312O24t < 7 ,295.60l.

ECL sensitivity to future economic conditions
ECL coveraBe of financial instruments under forecast economic conditions:

Gross carrying amount of loans'
Reported ECL

Reported ECL coverage

ECI amounts for alternate scenario

Downside scenario (10%)

Upside scenario (10%)

EC[ coverage ratios by scenario

Downside scenario (10%)

Upside scenario (10%)

1,rt4,831.95

8,359.22

s.?7%

9,19s.14

7,523.30

5.35%

5.19%

2,78,952.72

5,943.90

2.7 t%

6,538.29

5,349.51

2.99%

2.44%
r lnter-company loan is excluded from the above

59. Other statutory information:

The company does not have any Benami property, and no proceeding have been initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any Benami property.
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory
period.

The company has not traded or invested in cryptocurrency or virtual currency during the financial year.
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (lntermediaries) with the understanding that the lntermediary shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf ofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries
The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding party)

ii.

t

with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or e
behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

^
F IN/

rn any manner eve

o rINDIA

(i)

7*
s

Particulars Stage 1 Stase 2 Stace 3 Total
5,0d.3.79

863.36
71.72%

PaIticulars March 312025 March 312024



  



  



l,cndingkart Finance Limited
N otcs forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 3 I 2025

({ in Lakhs ualess otherwke stated)

Lease Liabilities 3,327 .97 (93s.1s) 643.98 3,036.80
Debt Securaties 1,00,345.81 (18,300.24) l4s7.7s) 81,s87.82
Borrowings (Other than debt
securities) 1,37,284.09 (ss,971.20) 81,650.33

Subordinate Debt 5,471.72 (1,000.00) (136.03) 4,335.09
5hare Capital 18,649.38 18,649.38
Total liabilities from Financing
Activities 2,46,42A.99 ls7,ss7.271 347.64 \49,259.42

61. Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

lncludes discount on commercial papers amortised during the year, adjustment for effective interest rate and adjustment on
account of lease creation/ modification/ termination

62. Disclosures pursuant to RBI Notification - RBllooRl2o2l-22/86 DoR.sTR.REc.5ll2l.o4.o4al2ozL-22 dated
September 24 2021:

(a) Details of transfer through assignment in respect of loans not in default during the financial year ended Mar€h
3l 2025: (Excluding transactions entered with respect to circular - RBt/2020-21/63 FtDD.CO.plan. BC.No.8/
04.09.01/2020-21).

Amount of loans transferred thro ugh assignment 77,4a6.15 22,77r.82
Retention of beneficial economic interest 77.34% 70.0o%
Weighted average residual maturity (in months 26.65 25.42
Weighted average holding period {in months ) 7 .37 7.90

NA NA
Rating-wise distribution of rated loans Unrated Unrated

(b) The Company has not acquired loans through assignment during the financial year ended March 31 2025 and
during the previous year ended March 31 2024.

(c) Details of NPA loans transferred to ARCS during the year ended March 31 2025:

4v

(9 -

Lease Liabilities 2,100.06 (730.e4) 1,958.85 3,327.97
Debt Securities 45,O22.56 57 ,704.24 (1,780.99) 1,00,345.81
BorrowinSs (Other than debt
securities) 7,20,477-72 17,355.39 (s43.02) r 37,284.09

Subordinate Debt 2,529.89 3,000.00 158.77]. 5,477.1,2

1,70,124.23 7 6,724.69

No. of accounts 12,984
Aggregate principal outstand ing of loans transferred 35,563
weighted average residual tenor of the loans transferred (in
months)

0.31

Net book value of loans transferred (at the time of transfer)
Aggregate consideration 3,360
Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts
transferred in earlier ear5.
Excess provision reversed in profit & loss on account of sale of
stressed loan

504

lnvestments in Security Recei (sR). 2,856

INDIA

tSRs currently not rated, to be rated within timelines as per RBI guidelines

7*

Particulars As on April0l 2024 Cash Flows Others As on March 31 2025

337.44

Particulars March 31 202S March 312024

Coverage of tangible security coverage

Particulars As on April 01 2023 Cash Flows Others * As on March 31 2024

Total liabilities from Financing
Activities (423.e3) 2,46,428.99

Particulars March 31 2025 March 312024

\



Lendingkart Finance Limited
Notcs tbrming part offinancial statements for the year ended March 3l 2025

(( in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

63. Disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank of lndia notification RSI/OoR|2O23-24/105 Master Direction - Reserve Bank of
lndia (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale gased Regulation) oirections, 2023 oOR.FlN.REC.No. 4S/
O1.7O.7L912023-24 updated as on March Zt,2OZ4.

Details of investments

A. Disclosure for secudtisationr

a) The information on securitisation of the Company as an originator in respect of outstanding amount of assets securitised
under par structure is given below:

IN4

*)

Value of lnvestments

(i)Gross Value of lnvestments

1,987.83
b)Outside lndia

ton(ii Provisions for

ln lndiaa

b Outside lndia

(iii) Net Value of lnvestments
(a) ln lndia 1,987.83
(b Outside lndia

Movement ot held towards on investments

nt balancei

arthel Add: Provisions made du

back of excess sions duri the year(iii) Less: Wri

(iv) Closi balance

Sr.

No.

1
No. of SPVS sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation
transactions 16 22

2
Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SpVs
sponsored by the NBFC 77,427.51 44,933.53

3
Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply
with MRR as on the date of Balance Sheet

First Loss 8,255.69 8,876.05
Others

b. On balance sheet exposure
First Loss 2,208.77 3,392.09
Others (Overcollateralization) 3,488.26 5,074.58

4
Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than
MRR

a. Off balance sheet exposure

l. Exposure to own securitisations
First Loss

Others

. re to third securitisationsa

First Loss

Others

b. On balance sheet exposure 1
re to own securitisationsLEx W\ ll$/

INDIA

Particulars March 31 2025 March 312024

(a) ln lndia

Particulars March 31 2025 March 312024

a. Off balance sheet exposure



Lendingkart Finance Limited
Notes lblrrr ing part of financial statements for the year ended March 3 I 2025

({ in Lakhs unless otherwise slaled)

First Loss

Others

re to third securitisations
First Loss

Others

5
Sale consideration received for the securitised assets and
gain/loss on sale on account of securitisation 73,243.29 90,535.7 2

6

Form and quantum (outstanding value) of services provided
by way of, liquidity support, post-securitisation asset
servici etc

1

Performance of facility provided. please provide separately
for each facility viz. Credit enhancement, liquidity support,
servicing agent etc. Mention percent in bracket as of total
value of facility provided.
(a) Amount paid
(b) Repayment received
(c) Outstanding amount (in the form of Credit enhancement)
(l) Corporate Guarantee
(ll) Fixed Deposits
(lll) Others

8,255.69
2,208.71
3,488.26

Nt!
NIL

8,876.05
3,392.09
5,074.58

NIL

NIL

Average default rate of portfolios observed in the past.
Please provide breakup separately for each asset class i.e
RMB Vehicle Loans etc.

4.33% 2.90%

9

Amount and number of additional/top up loan given on same
underlying asset. Please provide breakup separately for each
asset class i.e. RMBS, Vehicle Loans etc

N.A N.A

10
lnvestor complaints (a) Directly/lndirectly received and; (b)
Complaints outstandi N,A N,A

rThe above figures are based on the information duly certified by the SpV's auditors.

B. Disclosure for direct assignment

Details of assignment transactions undertaken by the Company during the year

C. Exposur€s

(a) Exposure to capital market
The company has no exposure to the capital markets directly or indirectly in the current and previous year.

(b) Exposure to Real Estate Sector
The Company has no exposure to the real estate sector directly or indirectly in the current and p

F ltl4

INDIA
o,

7

No. of accounts 3,055 4,462
Aggregate value (net of provlsions) of accounts sold !7,486.t5 22,7 17.82

regate consideration L7,486.75 22,771.82
Additional consideration realised in respect of accounts transferred in
earlier years

in / loss over net book valueAggregate

cri

o r

Sr.

No. Particulars March 31 2025 March 31 2024

Particulars March 31 2025 March 312024

I

(



t.lrndingkart Finance Limited
\olcs forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 3l 2025

(? in Lakhs unless olherwise stated)

Total amount of intra-group exposures 7,762.57
Total amount of top twenty intra-group exposures 7,762.57
Percentage of intra-group exposures to total
exposure of the Company on borrowers/customers 7.20%

(c) lntra Group Exposure
The Company has intra group exposure in the current and previous year as under:

(d) Sectoralexposure

(e) Unh€dted foreign currency exposure
The Company is having NIL Unhedged foreign currency exposure as at March 31 2025 and March 31 2024.

O. Regist.ation with other financial sector regulator
The Company has obtained registration as a Corporate Agent (Composite) in February 2019 with lnsurance Regulatory
and Department Authority of lndia (lRDAl). The Registration no. is CAO541 and is valid till February 27 2028.

E. No penalties imposed on the Company by the Reserve Bank of lndia or any other regulator during d

1. Agriculture and
Allied Activities

2. lndustry

Textiles 17,770.47 836.28 4.87% 28,320.83 965.57 3.47%
Vehicles, Vehicle Parts
& Transport Equipment 7,608.13 246.17 3.240/0 10,583.18 2.15%

76,733.27 69r.22 4.73% 26,9t2.49 809.52 3.01%
Other lndustries 66,204.94 2,957.8r 4.47% 97,564.72 3,123.81 3.20%

Total of lndustry L,O7,776.4L 4,732.02 4.39% 1,53,381.02 5,726.39 3.74%

Logistics 3,792.22 226.46 5.97% 5,862.69 749.07 2.54%
Manpower Services 3,526.77 21.1 .21. 6.76% 5,443.35 126.60 2.33%
Software Services 7,206.64 19.69 1.63v. 1.,928.41 50.65 2.63%
Other Service Activities 19,643.79 885.7 4.51yo 29,437 .70 823.96 2.79%

Total of Services 28,169.36 1,349.06 4.79% 42,671.55 1,150.28 2.70%

4. Personal Loans 8,945.7A 267 .7 6 2.99% 12,899.55 73.06 o.57%

5. lntra Group
Exposure 7,752.57 o.oo%

5. Others (please
specify)

Total 1,46,s94.s2 6,348.84 4.33% 2,7A,952.12 6,349.73 2.90%

INDIA

*

-<t

March 312025 (March 312024: NIL). -tI. CHI

Particulars March 31 2025 March 312024

2024-25 2023-24
Sectors Total

Expo5ure
Grgss
NPAs

GNPA %
Total

Exposure
Gross
NPAs

GNPA %

All Engineering

3. Services



l-endingkart Finance Limited
Notcs forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 3l 2025

({ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

F. Ratings assigned by credit ratint agencies and migration of ratings during the year

The Company has obtained ratings from ICRA Limited, lndia Ratings & Research, and lnfomerics Rating (lVR) for
Term Loans, Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDS), and Commercial Paper (CP). The ratings assigned for the
respective instruments are as follows:

G. Break up of 'lmpairment on financial instruments at amortlsed cost' shown under the head Expenditure in the
statement of profit and loss

* Net of CGTMSE and CGFMU benefit.

H. Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

i. Concentration of Deposits - NA

ii, Concentration ot Advances

iii. Concentration of Exposures

Line of Credit/ Bank
lines

llCRAl BBB+/[ICRA] 42; Placed on Rating
Watch with Positive lmplications
IVR BBB+/ RWPI (Rating Watch with
positive implications)

ICRA 8BB+(Positive)/ICRA A2

IVR BBB+/ Negative

Non-Convertible
Debentures/ cP

ICRA BBB+; Placed on Rating Watch with
Positive lmplications
PP-MLD [ICRA] BBB+; Placed on Rating
Watch with Positive lmplications
IVR BBB+/ RWPI (Rating Watch with
positive implications )

IND BBB+/ Stable
IND PP-MLD BBB+ / Stable
IND 42 (Short term rating for Commercial
Paper)

ICRA BBB+(Positive)
IVR BBB+/ Negative
tNo PP-MLD BBB+ / Stable
INO BBB+/Stable
IND 42 (Short term rating for
cP)
CRlSlL PPMLD BBB+/Positive
(Withdrawn)

Provision on Loans 2,3s9.31 1197.44].

Write offs t5,427.93 8,651.35

lmpairment of other financial assets 34,558.33 77,767.54

Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 2,477.59 1,045.63
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total
Advances of the applicable NBFC

7.65% 0.480/0

Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers 2,477.59 1,045.63
Percentage of Exposure to twenty largest borrowers to Total
Advances of the applicable NBFC

1.64% 0.47%

Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts 125.99 135.60

INDIA0

F

-

iv. Concentration of NPA5

Cr'1/

lnstrument As at March 312025 As at March 31 2024

Break up of 'lmpairment and allowance'shown under
the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account*

March 31 2025 March 312024

Particulars March 312025 March 31 2024

Particulars March 31 2025 March 31 2024

Particulars March 312025 March 31 2024



[,endingkart Finance Limited
Notes tbnlring part offinancial statements for the year ended March 3l 2025

(? in Lakhs unless otherwi;e stated)

1 Agriculture & allied activlties
2 MSME* 4.42% 3.050/o

3 Corporate borrowers
4 Services

5 Unsecured personal loans 2.99% o.57%
6 Auto loans
'7 Other personal loans

8 Other retail loans

l. Sector-wise NPAs

*Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises vide its notification dated lune O1 2O2O announced the
criteria for classification of micro, small and medium enterprises basis which the Company has classified its
customers into micro, small and medium enterprise in accordance with MSMED Act.

l. Movement of NPAra

+ Represents stage-3 loans

'*Net NPA of 2.37% is after considering the benefit a€cruing to the company from Sovereign guarantee Schemes
(CGFMU and CGTMSE). The benefit of these schemes is 7.26% and the Net NPA without considering the benefits
stands at 1.11%.

l(. Classification and provisions for loan portfolio

I Net NPA5 to net advances (%)*' 2.37% 1.95%
I Movement of NPAs (Gross)

i) Opening balance 6,349.73 4,752.35
ii) Additions during the year 24,563.49 19,531.66
iii) Reductions during the year 24,564.39 71 ,934.28
iv) Closing balance 6,348.83 6,349.73

t Movement of net NPAs

i) Opening balance 4,223.21, 2,641.88
ii) Additions during the year 15,626.88 72,916.54
iii) Reductions during the year 16,445.25 17,341..2L
iv) ClosinB balance 3,404.84 4,223.27

Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding
provision on standard assets)

i) Opening balance 2,126.52 2,LOA.41
ii) Provisions made during the year 8,936.61 6,675.72
iii) Write-off/Write-back 8,119.14 6,s93.07
iv) Closing balance 2,943.99 2,726.52

Loan outstanding
Standard assets (stage-1 and Stage-2) 7,40,245.68 2,72,602.39
Non-performing assets (Stage-3) 6,348.83 6,349.73
Loss assets

Less: Provision

Standard assets (Stage-1 and Stage-2) 5,415.23 3,877.3A

Non performing assets {Stage-3) 2,943.99 2,L26.52
Loss assets

Loan outstanding (net)

Standard assets (stage-1 and Stage-2) 1,34,830.4s 2,08,785.00
Non-performing assets (Stage-3) 3,404.84 4,223.27
Loss assets

Sr. No. Sector
Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances in that sector

March 31 2025 March 312024

5r, No. Parti€ulars March 31 2025 March 312024

Asset classitication March 31 2025 March 31 2024



 



 

 

  



Lendingkart Finance Limited
Not.s tbmring part of financial statements for the year ended March 3 I 2025

(? in Lakhs unless olherr)ise stated)

' Cross currency interest rate lwap

O. Details of SinBle borrower limlts (SBLI/ Group borrower limits (GBt-) exceeded
The Company has not exceeded the single borrower limits or group borrower limits as set by the Reserve Eank of India

P. Advances agalnst lntangible securitles
The Company has not granted any loans against intangible assets as security.

Q. Draw down from r€seryes
During FY 2025, there were no draw down from Reserves (Previous year: Nil)

R. Details of financing of parent company products
There was no financinB activity during the current financial year (Previous year: Nil)

S. Breach of covenant (on Listed instruments)

One of the Financial Covenants of a Secured, Listed, Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (lSlN: 1NE090W07667)
issued by the company, stated that the company shall ensure that at all times the Profit before Tax shall be positive on
an annual basis. For the financial year ended March 31 2025, the Company has incurred a loss before tax, Consequently,
the above-mentioned financial covenant has not been complied with, resulting in a breach of covenant. The Company
has duly informed the Debenture Trustee of the breach and is in the process of engaging with the Trustee and Oebenture
holders to evaluate the appropriate course of action.

T. The Company does not have any outstanding loans against gold jewellery as at March 31 2025 (March 31 2024: Nil)

U, Divergence in Asset Classiflcation and Provisioning

a) The additional provisioning requirements assessed by the Reserve Bank exceeds 5 percent ofthe reported profits before
tax and impairment loss on financial instruments for the reference period - NIL

b) The additional Gross NPAs identified by the Reserve Bank exceeds 5 percent ofthe reported Gross NPAs for the reference
period.

*l
?

i) Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)
- For hedging 8,315.50

ii) Marked to Market Positions
(a)Asset I+l Estimated gain
(b) tiability [-l Estimated loss

iii) Credit exposure
iv) Unhedged exposures

t Gross NPAS as on March 31, as reported by the NBFC

2 Gross NPAs as on March 31, as assessed by the
Reserve Eank

3 Divergence in Gross NPAs (2-1)

Net NPA5 as on March 31, as reported by the NBFC

5 Net NPAS as on March 31, as assessed by the Reserve Bank

6 Divergence in Net NPAs (5-4)

1 Provisions lor NPAS as on March 31, as reported by the NBFC

8 Provisions for NPAS as on March 31, as assessed by the Reserve Bank

NIL

K",qa

NII

z

)*

Quantitative Disclosures

d) Foreign currency non-r€patriate loans avail€d

Sr

No,
Particulars March 312025 March 31 2024

Currency
Derivatives

Interest Rate
Derlvatives

Currency
Derivatlvesl

lnterest Rate
Derivatives

r

Sr, Particulars March 312025 March 312024

4.

,-<9T*<U



Lendingkart Finance Limited
\olcs lbrnring part of financial statements for the year ended M arch 31 2025

(l in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

9

Reported Profit before tax and impairment loss on financial
instruments for the year ended March 31,

11 ported Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended March

12. Adjusted (notional) Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year
ended March 31, after considering the divergence in provisioning

Assets Liability Management (Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities)

of.ertaid iremr ot A$et. rnd

The Company manages ALM effectively and below is the details related to the same:
e Free cash and bank balances of { 27,143.15
. Fixed deposits pledged aga inst the a bove borrowings o t < 77,717.!4
. Sandion lines available for utilization of { 2,505.00

of(€naln hEn! of ArieB.nd

The Company manages ALM effectively and below is the details related to the same:
. Free cash and bank balances of < 40,730.87
. Fixed deposits pledged against the above borrowings of < t2,932.79
. Sanction lines available for utilization of < 19,315.29

w. Schedule to the balance sheet of a Non-Banking Financial company

9,145.54 1,025.10 969.49 6,719.39 5,779.24 17,185.92 13,382.35 65,910.47 6,451_O2 !,46,994.57
498.12 1,489.51 1,987.81

9,130.12 !,2A4.7A 6,t94.11 12,339 16 16,467.61 30,288.98 43,736.53 45,35005 2,811.10 t,61,573.24

8,759.19 L76A 29 1,600.14 6,883.17 6,921.14 20,835.79 40,299.34 't ,24,277 .66 7,606.99 2,1&952.12

1,594 30 1,181.86 7,0t6.72 8,066.35 11,859.00 41,291.29 69,561.2s 90.739.26 8,648 23 2934.16 2,43,101.02

Sr. No.

Liabilities Side

1
Loans and advances availed by the NBtC inclusive ol interest accrued
thereon but not
a Debentures

Secured *
7L,642.O3 90,o7 2.43

Unsecured* 9,945.79 4,938.98
other than fa lli with in the mean its)of ublic de
b Deferred Credits

Term Loans*c 55,691.08 97,944.44
loans and b(d lnter-co 8,445.92 9,992.75

(e Commercial Pa 5,334.41
(f) Public its

)Other Loans nature 10.848.42 40.818.01
* There is no overdue

,ad
2

Break-up of (1) (f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of
interest acc.ued thereon but not

/,.-\
t ./) \.1

//:
ilP/

Sr Particulars March 312025 March 312024
Divergence in provisioning (8-7)

10.

3ol31
Ovlr 1

uP lo 5
5

7

30/31

Particulars March 31 2025 March 312024

T



Lendingkart Finance Limited
Notcs fomring part offinancial statements for the year ended March 3l 2025

({ in Lakhs unless othef',rise staled)

5r. No. March 312025 March 31 2024
(a) ln the form of Unsecured debentures
(b) ln the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where
there is a shortfall in the
value of securit

ublic deposits(c) Other

Assets side
Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables lother than
those
included in (4) below
(a) Secured
(b) Unsecured 1,38,235.30 2,73,008.22

(i) Lease assets includin lease rentals under sund debtors
(a) Financial lease

b o erating lease
(ii)Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors

(a) Assets on hire
b Re ossessed Assets

towards asset financing activlties(iii Other loans countin
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(b) Loans other than a above

Break-up of lnvestments
Current lnvestments
. Quoted

(a) Equit
(b) Preference

{ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities 1,987.83
(v) others lease specify)

(i)Shares

a) Equity
(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
iv) Government Securities

Others (please spec

Term lnvestments:
l. Quoted

(i)Shares

b Preference

(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
v) Others {please speci

.\

5

Particulars

4.
Break up of Leased Assets and stock on Hire and other assets counting
towards asset fi nancing activities.

(i)Shares

ll. Unquoted

(a) Equity

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

-$b\\e,\

3.

)



I -cndingkart Finance Limiaed
\orcs lbrnr ing part of financial statements for the year ended March 3 I 202 5

(? in Lakhs unless olherwise state.l)

Sr, No.

6

F

Particulars March 31 2025 March 31 2024
ll. Un uoted

(i) Shares

a Equity
(b) Preference

lt Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities

Others (please s ec

Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4)
above: Please see Note 2 below
1, Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries
(i)Secured

(ii) Unsecured 7,762.57
Total 1,162.57

(b)com anies in the same rou
(i) Secured
(ii) Unsecured L,762.57

Total 7,762.57
c Other related parties

i) Secured

ii) Unsecured
Total
2. Other than Related Parties
i)Secured

(ii) Unsecured 7,36,412.73 2,73,OO8.22
Total 1,36,472.73 2,73,0O8.22

lnvestor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long
term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted):
Please see Note 3 below
1. Related Parties

(a)Subsidiaries

i. Market Value / Break up or fair value or NAV
ii. Book Value (Net of Provisions

i. Market Value / Break u or fair value or NAV
ii. Book Value (Net of Provisions )

i. Market Value / Break up or fair value or NAV
ii. Book Value Net of Provisions)

2. Other than Related Parties

i. Market Value / Break u or fair value or NAV
ii. Book Value Net of Provisions)

8.

{i Gross Non-Performin Assets
(a) Related arties
(b) Other than related parties 5,348.83 6,349.73

(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related rties

3,404.83 4,223.27(b) Other than related parties

uired in satisfaction of debt(iii)Assets a

7

I

r+-
'

NACc

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(b) Companies in the same group

(c) Other related parties

Other information

"//-t Ei

INDI<t



Lcodingkart Finance Limited
Notcs lbmring pan of financial statements for the year ended March 3l 2025

(f in Lakhs unless otherwise staled)

x. Disclosure for liquidity coverage ratio as per RBt Master Direction RBUD} 2O23-24/7OO DoR.FlN.REC.
No.45/03.10.119/2023-24, updated as on 21st March,2024 as amended from time to time is not applicable as the asset
size of the company is less than I 5,00,000 Lakhs.

54. Liquidity Risk Disclosures

l. Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)

*Significant counterparty is as defined in RBI Circular RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD)

CC.No.102/03.10.007/2079-20 dated 4 November 2019 on Liquidity Risk Management Framework, as a

single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated counterparties accounting in aggregate for more than
1% of the NBFC-NDSI's, NBFC-Ds total liabilities and 10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs.

ll. Top 20 large deposits - Not applicable

lll. Top 10 borrowings

lV. Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product

V. Stock ratio:

lnstitutional set-up for Liquidity Risk Management
Refer Note-58(A) of financial statements.

Number of significant counter parties* 20

Amount 1,43,888.81
Percentage of funding concentration to total deposits N,A
Percentage of funding concentration to total liabilities 75.66%

Total amount of top 10 borrowings t,o1,L70.45
Percentage of amount of top 10 borrowings to total borrowings 63.95vo

Debt Securities 62,935.O5 33.O9%

Term loans and WCDL 72,677.66 38.27%

10,315.67 5.42%
External Commercial Borrowings 8,337.10 4.38%
lnter-company Borrowings 8,445.92 4.44%
ccloD 532.7 5 o.2a%
sub-debt 4,335.09 2.28%

1 commercial papers as a % of total liabilities o.oo%
2 Commercial papers as a % of total assets o.oo%
3 Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one

year) as a % oftotal liabilities N.A
4 Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one

year) as a % of total assets N,A
5 Other short-term liabilities as a % of total liabilities 70.30%
6 Other short-term liabilities as a % of total assets 51.09%

INDIA

?

o r

Particulars March 31 2025

Particulars March 31 2025

Particulars March 31 2025
Percentage of
total liabilities

Securitisation liabilities

lNl)
c(

5r,
No.

Stock ratio Percentage



(? in Lakhs ualess otherwke stated)

Asset classification as
per RBI Norms

(1

Pretorming Assets

Non-performing
Assets (NPA)

Substandard

Doubtful - up to 1 ar
1 to 3 years

More than 3 Years

Loss

Subtotal of NPA

Subtolal

'lnter-company loans is excluded from the above

65. During the year ended March 31 2025 (March 31 2024 - Nil) the compa ny has n ot declared dividend

67. The company has complied with Rule 3 ofthe companies (Accounts) Rules,2014, as amended on August 5,2023, pertaining
to the maintenance of electronic books of account and other relevant books and papers. The books of account and relevant
records are accessible in lndia at all times, and backups are maintained in electronic format on a daily basis, stored on servers
physically located within tndia.

For the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has used accounting software that includes an audit trail (edit log)
feature for maintaining its books of account. This feature was operational throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded an the accounting systems, except in the case of one software-Loan Management System (LMs)-where the audit
t ra il fu nctiona lity was not enabled at the database level to ca ptu re d irect data changes until Jan ua ry 2 7, 2025. .-. - .

,$'o'
o

P

Asset
classification
as per lnd AS

109

Gross
Carrying

Amount as
per lnd As

109*

Loss

Allowances
(Provisions)

as required
under lnd AS

109

Net Carrying
Amount

Provi5ion
required

as per
IRACP

norms

Difference as
per lnd AS 109
provisions and
IRACP norms

12) (3) (4) (s)=(3)-(4) (6) (7)

Stage 1 7,32,357.93 3,747.75 1,28,510.78 529.43 3,277.72
Stage 2 6,725.t8 1,668.08 4,457.70 24.58 1,543.50

1,38,483.11 5,415.23 1,33,067.88 5 54.01 4,46t.22

Stage 3 6,348.83 2,943.99 3,404.84 634.88 2,309.71

Stage 3

Stage 3

Stage 3

Stage 3

6,348.83 2,94t.99 3,404.84 634.88 2,309.11

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Stage 1 !,32,357.93 3,747.t5 1,24,670.78 529.43 3,2t7.72
Stage 2 6,12s.18 1,668.08 4,457 .70 24.5A 1,643.50
Stage 3 6,348.83 2,943.99 3,404.84 634.88 2,309.11

1,44,831.95 8,359.22 1,36,4?2.73 1,188.89 7,770.33

Acc

:

Lc[dingkart Finance Limited
Notcs fonning part of financial statements for the year ended March 3 I 2025

Subtotal

Subtotal of Doubtful

Total

55. comparison between Provisions .equired under IRACP and impairment allowances made under lnd AS 1O9i

Standard

Other items such as
guarantees, loan
commitments, etc.
which are in the scope
of lnd AS 109 but not
covered under current
lncome Recognition,
Asset Classification and
Provisioning (IRACP)

norms

Total

DN

)

z



Lerdiogkart Firance Limited
Notcs lbnning pan offinancial statemenrs for the year ended March3l 2O2S

(? in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

During the course of our audit, we did not observe any instances of tampering with the audit trail. The Company has preserved
the audit trail in accordance with statutory record retention requirements, except for the period mentioned above in respect
of the LMS software.

68. BusinessCombination

Acquisitions during the year ended March 31 2025

A. Acquisition of business of Upwards Capital private Limited
on 10th April, 2024, the Company acquired financin&/lending business of Upwards Capital Private Limited, a non-listed
company based in lndia and specializing consumer finance and corporate lending with pioneering models, in exchange
for a total consideration of { 716.00. The Company a€quired the above business because the acquisiton expands both
ats existing product portfolio, i.e., personal loans and customer base. ln addition to portfolio diversifi€ation, the
transaction is expected to unlock significant operational synergies, enhance market penetration, and strengthen the
Company's positioning within the competitive lending landscape.

The purchase price had been allocated based on estimated fair values at the acquisition date, for various assets and
liabilities acquired/ assumed under a Sale and Purchase Agreement, The excess of the purchase consideration over fair
value of the assets acquired has been allocated to Goodwill. The fair value of assets and liabilites on the date of
acquisition has been determined by the management on the basis of its assessment of the nature of business and the
underlying assets acquired.

A.1 Assets acquired & liabilities assumed

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Upwards Capital Private Limited as at the date of acquisition
were:

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables

Loans

Other FinancialAssets

Other Non-Financial Assets

Deferred tax asset N Refer Note No. 38.2

194.09

293.17

2,248.O9

183.16

72.O2

34.09
TotalAssets 2,964.62
Liabilltles

Trade payables

Loans & Eorrowings

Debt Securities

Other Financial Liabilities

Other Non-Financial Liabilities

Provisions

312.11

326.79

1,785.65

7to.77

267.83

34.75
Total Liabilities 2,A37.85
Total identifiable net assets at fair value
Goodwillarisi Refer Note No.17on uisition

t26.77

589.23
Purchase consideration transferred 716.00

INDIA t-

FI1

()

7*

.CHI

Particulars
Fair Value recognised on

acquisition



Lendingkart Financc Limited
Notcs forming part offinancial statements for the year ended March 3l 2025

({ in Lakhs unless olherwise stated)

Notes:

The acquisition date fair value of the Trade Receivables amounts to { 293.17. The gross amou nt of trade receivables is I
293.77 and it is expected that none of the trade receivables is credit impaired and the full contractual amount can be
collected. The difference between the fair value and the carrying amount is the result of discounting over the expected
timing of the cash collection and an adiustment for counterparty credit risk.

The deferred tax liability mainly comprises of temporary tax difference arising on the recognition of the Financial
Guarantees and Effective lntertest Rate on Loans & Advances and Eorrowings.

l[. The deferred tax asset mainly comprises of temporary tax difference arising on the recognition of the Expected Credit
Losses on financial Assets.

The Company measured the acquired lease liabilities using the present value of the remaining lease payments at the date
of acquisition. The right-of-use assets were measured at an amount equal to the lease liabilities and adiusted to reflect
the unfavorable terms of the lease relative to market terms.

The Soodwill of { 589.23 comprise the value of expected synergies arising from the acquisition. Goodwill is allocated
entirely to Financial Services Segment of the Company. None of the goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

A.3

A.2

cash id 716.00
Total consideration 716.00

Cash Acquired for as part of business acquisition

Cash Paid for acquisition (716.00)

194.09
Net cash on (s21.s1)

INDIA
((\

I FI

ii

Purcha5e Consideration Amouht

Analysis of cash flows on acquisition: Amount

)
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l,cndingkart Financ€ Limited
Norcs forming pan of financial statements for the year ended March 3 I 2025

(? in Lakhs unless otherwise

69. The Company has reclassified/regrouped the previous yea/s figures to conform to the presentation of the current yea/s
classification, where applicable.

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105555W

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
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V. Kamat

a

Prashant Prakash Joshi

Chief Executive OfficerPartner

Membership No.039585

Place: Mumbai
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Date: May 29 2025
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